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completed and Chiyu Bank became a member of
Xiamen International Bank Group.
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Financial Highlights

1k
2017 2016 Change
AR For the year ﬁﬁifﬁgg fﬁ?ggg +/- %
FEHURE E F R 2 3= Net operating income before impairment
A allowances 1,426,080 1,305,763 +9.21
S-Syl Operating profit 886,890 783,390 +13.21
CR Nl Profit before taxation 898,642 768,623 +16.92
GSicyryil Profit for the year 751,832 651,859 +15.34
i At year-enc Hkso0  sooo n
FREAFO G H Capital and reserves 9,563,497 6,830,259 +40.02
T3 T RS A Issued and fully paid up share capital 300,000 300,000 -
B Total assets 84,088,931 54,062,259 +55.54
Jzp o Financial ratios % % +- %
SRR R Return on average total assets * 1.18 1.18 -
PR RS R 2 Return on average shareholders’ equity 10.40 9.82 +0.58
RCASHIA LS Cost to income ratio 33.44 35.11 -1.67
£ipthR Loan to deposit ratio 66.82 67.72 -0.90
ENMEEELLRAVEE Y Average value of liquidity coverage ratio
E—FE First quarter 181.56 151.84 +29.72
E_FE Second quarter 177.51 149.42 +28.09
E=FE Third quarter 156.97 150.11 +6.86
BT Fourth quarter 143.03 140.99 +2.04
gaE AR Total capital ratio ® 19.78 19.61 +0.17
R

1. SPELE T E R

Profit for the year

Return on average total assets

2. AT

Return on average shareholders’ equity

FAEEEETE

Daily average balance of total assets

G gl

Profit for the year

HE R TE (S R AN A 2 - 4] B AR R BRERHY P

Average of the beginning and ending balance of total equity holders

3. BFLERUFLAS AR - ERAEFE
SRHEAE o

3. Loan to deposit ratio is calculated as at year end. Loan represents gross
advances to customers.

4. The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is computed on the
unconsolidated basis which comprises the positions of local offices and
overseas branches of the Bank specified by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(“HKMA”) for its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking
(Liquidity) Rules.

4. R EEILRAPPEER DIRSGE S 1
FoAWAREE GRITSE CREbtk) HBAD K%
ThREMEHE (" 28F ) mEEHEE
SRS T Z AR P RO M TAEAK -

5. SHEALLRTIRIE (1738 (&4 HHAD
Bt e ke E R BOR ASRTT 2 At
SRR SO M TR & DFE BT 5 -

5. Total capital ratio is computed on the combined basis that comprises the
positions of local offices and overseas branches of the Bank specified by the
HKMA for its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
Rules.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

In 2017, the Mainland of China, as one of the world’s major economies,
became a crucial engine for global economic development through its
remarkable economic growth and the advocate of the Belt and Road Initiative.
Meanwhile, the US economy still persisted to grow along with the rate hike
cycle. The Eurozone economy sustained stable growth and continued its
recovery. Hong Kong has benefited from the improvement of the external
environment, the economy continued to grow steadily.

Amid stable improvement in the global and Mainland economy, the banking
industry in Hong Kong was growing steadily. The loan market, benefited from
the growth of cross-border businesses, recorded relatively faster development.
Yet, the intensifying deposit market competition led to high funding cost. In
conjunction with the persistently low interest rate environment, the banks faced
considerable challenges in maintaining profitability. Also, as supervision on the
banking industry tightened up, compliance cost continued to rise.

In view of opportunities and challenges in the operating environment and
increasing uncertainties in operating risk, the Group aims to pursuit a
continuous business growth and maintains a solid financial strength at the
same time in order to better withstand market uncertainties. Moreover, the
Group has stepped up in enhancing and strengthening risk management and
internal control in order to maintain a sustainable growth.

In 2017, the Group continued to fully leverage its own competitive advantages,
remain to be customer-centric and take navigating risk-based business
strategies in order to maintain the momentum of growth. In response to market
changes and customer needs, the Group continued to enrich the service
model for its customers. In the Personal Banking business sector, the quality of
its service team consistently improved and the facilities at the branches were
also upgraded. Besides, the Group constantly strengthened its wealth
management services by offering comprehensive financial products such as
deposits, insurance, investment plans and personal loans to better meet the
different needs of its customers in this low interest rate environment. For the
Corporate Banking business, the Group continued to broaden its offerings in
cross-border corporate business services in order to provide a total solution to
its corporate customers. Riding on the branches set up in Fujian, the Group
provided its customer with full range of cross-border and tailored banking
services for fulfilling their needs in wealth management and various kinds of
financing solutions.

With branches in Hong Kong, together with 2 branches and 2 sub-branches in
Fujian, China, the Group has continued to carry out enhancement projects on
our branches to improve our corporate image as well as to provide better
services to our customers with enhanced facilities. This is also to represent our
ongoing pursuit of decent, flexible, customised and professional services for
our customers.

Since the signing of the Sale and Purchase Agreement between Xiamen
International Investment Limited and Bank of China (Hong Kong) at the end of
2016, the Group had officially moved into a preparation period until the share
transfer on 27 March 2017 (the “Completion Date”). The preparation and
execution for the share transfer was considerably complicated. During the
period, the Group maintained good communication between its customers,
staff and relevant organisations, as well as preserved high quality customer
service in order to minimise the undesirable impact on its customers. With the
joint efforts of relevant parties, the share transfer was successfully completed
on the Completion Date. After the share transfer, the Group has accelerated
business development while maintaining an anticipated level of customers’
satisfaction and positive employees’ morale.
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FEPFFE A R A 1E 950,504,000 T 0 K2
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2016 )% T 0.16 {EH 57 B 0.47% -

BZE 2017 FE - REFHGSEEE /BB
84,088,931,000 ¢ - @ 2016 4F Ji5 #¥%
55.54% - & = & H R 42,283,361,000
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review

For the year 2017, the Group recorded a profit attributable to shareholders of
HK$751,832,000, increased by 15.34% from last year. This is mainly due to
increase in net interest income and net fee and commission income. The return
on average shareholders’ equity and the return on average total assets were
10.40% and 1.18% respectively.

Net interest income for the year was HK$950,504,000, increased by 13.28%. It
was mainly due to increase in average interest bearing assets by 15.5%, but net
interest margin dropped by 2 basis points to 1.55% compared with 2016. Due to
increase of commission income from loan and securities brokerage services,
net fee and commission income increased by 45.69% to HK$450,990,000.
Operating expenses increased by 4.02% to HK$476,890,000, while the cost to
income ratio decreased by 1.67 percentage point to 33.44%.

In 2017, net charge of loan impairment allowances was HK$62,369,000,
decreased by HK$1,440,000 as compared with last year. The classified or
impaired loan ratio also decreased by 0.16 percentage points to 0.47%
compared with the end of 2016.

As of 31 December 2017, the total consolidated assets of the group increased
by 55.54% to HK$84,088,931,000 compared with the end of 2016. Advances to
customers increased by 37.43% to HK$42,283,361,000. Customer deposits
also increased by 39.27% to HK$63,279,437,000.

Prospect

Looking forward to 2018, the Fed’s intention to continue gradually raising
interest rates and the European Central Bank's move to begin scaling back
guantitative easing provide cause for optimism that the global economy has
returned to a more even keel and will maintain its growth momentum. However,
factors such as longer term shifts in international trade patterns and economic
transition on the Mainland indicate that the economic environment will remain
highly uncertain. The operating environment for banks in Hong Kong continued
to be challenging. Nevertheless, opportunities coexist with these challenges
and proactive measures must be taken to grasp these new opportunities. New
growth drivers for the development of banks in Hong Kong included the Belt and
Road Initiative; the developing framework of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau
Greater Bay Area; and the Mutual Market Access policy. Moreover, the
accelerated pace of RMB internationalisation and the economic and financial
reform in the Mainland of China will provide banks with more business
opportunities.

The Group strives to implement the strategy of "operating with integrity and
business acumen, navigating risks, and pursuing lean management". The
Group will continue to pursue a prudent but growth strategy by maintaining a
sustainable balance between risk control and business growth, in conjunction
with optimising resources allocation, sound corporate governance and risk
management. In terms of business development, the Group will continuously
enhance the customer experience and the professionalism of the service
teams, broaden its products and services offerings, enhance its service network
in terms of coverage points and strengthen its electronic banking channels in
response to the market development and customer needs.

The Group will continue to accomplish its promise of providing flexible,
tailor-made and professional banking and financial services to customers.
Moreover, in order to pass on our founder Mr Chen Jiageng'’s corporate value in
nurturing the next generation and contributing to the community, the Group will
continue to fulfil its commitment to corporate social responsibilities and a
dedicated customer service.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Risk Management

Overview

The Group believes that sound risk management is crucial to the success of
any organisation. In its daily operation, the Group attaches a high degree of
importance to risk management and emphasises that a balance must be struck
between risk control and business development. The principal types of risk
inherent in the Group’s businesses are credit risk, interest rate risk, market risk,
liquidity risk, operational risk, reputation risk, legal and compliance risk, and
strategic risk. The Group’s risk management objective is to maintain risk
exposures within acceptable level amid the Group’s efforts made to enhance
shareholders’ wealth. The Group has a defined risk appetite statement
approved by the Board, which is an expression of the types and level of risk that
the Group is willing to take in a controllable way in order to achieve its business
goals and to meet the expectations of its stakeholders. For details of the
Group’s risk management governance structure, please refer to Note 4 to the
Financial Statements.

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is unable or
unwilling to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the trading book
and banking book, as well as from on- and off-balance sheet transactions of the
Group. It arises principally from lending, trade finance and treasury businesses.
For details of the Group’s Credit Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.1 to
the Financial Statements.

Market risk management

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of
foreign exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions held by the
Group due to the volatility of financial market price (foreign exchange rate,
interest rate, equity price, commodity price). The Group adopts a moderate
market risk appetite to achieve a balance between risk and return. For details of
the Group’s Market Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.2 to the Financial
Statements.

The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general market risks to the
Risk Management Committee (“RC”) and senior management on a periodic
basis. The Group adopts a uniformed VAR calculation model, using a historical
simulation approach and two years of historical market data, to calculate the
VAR of the Group over a one-day holding period with a 99% confidence level,
and sets up the VAR limit of the Group.

The Group adopts back-testing to measure the accuracy of VAR model results.
The back-testing compares the calculated VAR figure of market risk positions of
each business day with the actual and hypothetical revenues arising from those
positions on the next business day. Generally speaking, the number of
back-testing exceptions in a rolling 12-month period will not exceed four times,
given a 99% confidence level. The graph below shows the back-testing result of
the VAR against actual revenues of the Group.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Risk Management (continued)

Market risk management (continued)
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There was 1 actual loss exceeding the VAR for the Group in 2017 as shown in the
back-testing results.

Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic value arising
from movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s asset and
liability positions. The Group’s interest rate risk exposures are mainly structural.
The major types of interest rate risk from structural positions are repricing risk,
basis risk, yield curve risk and option risk. For details of the Group’s Interest Rate
Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.2 to the Financial Statements.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds to grow assets or
pay due obligations, and need to bear an unacceptable loss. The Group maintains
sound liquidity risk appetite to provide stable, reliable and adequate sources of
cash to meet liquidity needs under normal circumstances or stressed scenarios;
and to survive with net positive cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios without
requesting the HKMA to act as the lender of last resort. For details of the Group’s
Liquidity Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.3 to the Financial Statements.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Risk Management (continued)
Operational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
process, people and system, or from external events. The risk is inherent in
every aspect of business operations and confronted by the Group in its day-to
-day operational activities.

The Group has implemented the “Three Lines of Defence” for its operational
risk management. All departments or functional units as the first line of defence
are the primary parties responsible for operational risk management, and carry
out the duties and functions of self risk control in the process of business
operation through self-assessment and self enhancement. Compliance and
Operational Risk (“COR”) under Risk Management Department (“RMD”)
together with certain specialist functional units in relation to operational risk
management within the Group are the second line of defence. They are
responsible for assessing and monitoring the operational risk conditions in the
first line of defence, and providing them with guidance. Audit Division is the
third line of defence which provides independent assessment to the
effectiveness and adequacy of the operational risk management framework
and is required to conduct periodic audit of the operational risk management
activities of various departments or functional units within the Group regarding
their compliance and effectiveness and to put forward recommendations for
remedial actions.

The Group has put in place an effective internal control process which requires
the establishment of policies and control procedures for all the key activities.
The Group adheres to the fundamental principle of proper segregation of
duties and authorisation. The Group adopts various operational risk
management tools or methodologies such as key risk indicators,
self-assessment, operational risk events reporting and review to identify,
assess, monitor and control the risks inherent in business activities and
products, as well as purchase of insurance to mitigate unforeseeable
operational risks. Business continuity plans are established to support
business operations in the event of an emergency or disaster. Adequate
backup facilities are maintained and periodic drills are conducted.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Risk Management (continued)
Reputation risk management

Reputation risk is the risk that negative publicity about the Group’s business
practices, whether genuine or not, will cause a potential decline in the
customer base, or lead to costly litigation or revenue decrease. Reputation risk
is inherent in other types of risk and every aspect of business operation and
covers a wide spectrum of issues.

In order to mitigate reputation risk, the Group has formulated and duly followed
its Reputation Risk Management Policy. The policy aims to identify and prevent
reputation risk proactively at an early stage when an incident occurs.

In addition, the Group has put in place a comprehensive framework to
continuously monitor reputation risk incidents in the financial industry. This
continuous monitoring enables the Group to effectively manage, control and
mitigate any potential adverse impact from an incident. The Group also adopts
robust disclosure practices to keep our stakeholders informed at all times,
which helps build confidence in the Group and establish a strong public image.

Legal and compliance risk management

Legal risk is the risk that unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or adverse
judgments may disrupt or otherwise negatively affect the operations or
financial conditions of the Group. Compliance risk is the risk of legal or
regulatory sanctions, financial losses or losses in reputation the Group may
suffer as a result of its failure to comply with all applicable laws and
regulations. Legal and compliance risks are managed by the COR under RMD
while the Head of RMD reports to the Deputy General Manager. The COR is
responsible for legal risk management of the Group with advisory services
rendered by the internal legal counsel of COR. As part of the Group’s corporate
governance framework, the policy for the management of legal and
compliance risk is approved by the RC as delegated by the Board.

Strategic risk management

Strategic risk generally refers to the risks that may cause current or future
negative impacts on the earnings, or capital or reputation or market position of
the Group because of poor business decisions, improper implementation of
strategies and inadequacies in the response to the changing market condition.
The Board reviews and approves the strategic risk management policy. Key
strategic issues have to be fully evaluated and properly endorsed by the senior
management and the Board.

The Group regularly reviews its business strategies to cope with the latest
market situation and developments.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Risk Management (continued)
Capital management

The major objective of the Bank’s capital management is to maximise total
shareholders’ return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to
the Bank’s overall risk profile. The Asset and Liability Management Committee
(“ALCO") periodically reviews the Bank’s capital structure and adjusts the
capital mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal balance among risk,
return and capital adequacy.

To comply with the HKMA's requirements as stated in the Supervisory Policy
Manual “Supervisory Review Process”, the Bank adopts the internal capital
adequacy assessment process (“ICAAP”) and reviews it annually. Based on
the HKMA's guidelines on Pillar I, ICAAP has been initiated to assess the extra
capital needed to cover the material risks not captured or not adequately
captured under Pillar |, and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital
ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are
determined. Meanwhile, operating ranges for the aforementioned capital ratios
have also been established which enable the flexibility for future business
growth and efficiency of capital utilisation.

Stress testing

The Group supplements the analysis of various types of risks with stress
testing. Stress testing is a risk management tool for estimating risk exposures
under stressed conditions arising from extreme but plausible market or
macroeconomic movements. These tests are conducted on a regular basis by
the Group’s various risk management units in accordance with the principles
stated in the Supervisory Policy Manual “Stress-testing” published by the
HKMA. The ALCO monitors the results against the key risk limits approved by
the RC. The RMD reports the combined stress test results of the Group to the
Board and RC regularly.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility

Enhancing customer experience

The Bank keeps enhancing customer experience by introducing new service.
With the addition of deposit and withdrawal service of JPY, GBP and AUD
dollars at 8 designated branches, customers can enjoy a one-stop service via
their foreign exchange accounts. To further deepen the relationship with
customers, the Bank also organised a series of funds and investment talks in
various branches, in which financial experts are invited to share with
customers their opinions on market trends and their tactical strategies in
investment.

Apart from improving the network and management model, the Bank has made
continuous efforts to upgrade the bank facilities and project a new image to the
public. With the renovation of Chiyu Bank Building and Central branch
completed in 2017, the brand new Wealth Management Centre is also in
operation. To cope with diverse business needs, San Po Kong branch has
added a Stock Information Zone while the Ma On Shan branch has enlarged
the banking hall. The renovation of Belvedere Garden branch has also been
completed.

During the year, the Bank continuously optimises the electronic channels like
“Chiyu Wechat official account”, “Chiyu Mobile Banking App” and “CYB
Mortgage App”. These electronic services have not only delivered the Bank’s
latest business information and promotional offers to the customers, but also
enhanced their experience in services. In June 2017, the brand new
“Fingerprint Authentication” service in mobile banking was launched.
Customers can login to their mobile banking simply with fingertips in a safe and
easy way!

Advocating environmental awareness

To promote environmental awareness and reduce paper consumption, the
Bank continuously promotes the e-cheque services to personal and corporate
customers as well as various associations and organisations. Through the
e-cheque platform, customers can enjoy secured, convenient and
environmental friendly payment services to manage their finance.

To protect the earth, the Bank kept joining the “Charter on External Lighting”
organised by The Environment Bureau and promised to switch off lighting
installations in the night to minimise light nuisance and energy wastage.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (continued)
Benefiting Education

In 2017, to celebrate the Bank’s 70th Anniversary, HK$2 million was donated to
a Primary School in Fuzhou City, Fujian Province, to help building the “Chiyu
Library” in campus. Through the rich collection and fully equipped facilities, the
Bank hopes to encourage students to study hard to reach their goals.

In October 2017, celebrating Mr Chen Jiageng’s 143th birthday, the Bank
received the “Special Contribution Award” from the “Xiamen City Chenjiageng
Education Development Foundation” (former “Jiyou Chenjiageng Education
Development Foundation”) in recognition of her efforts in education donations
over the past years.

Contributing to society

To celebrate the Bank’s 70th Anniversary, a series of celebrating activities were
held on 23 September in Jimei of Xiamen. The Xiamen International Bank
group as well as her domestic and overseas subsidiaries joined the Charity
Riding Relay with the aims to promote the green, civilised and healthy life
philosophy.

To show the care to the society, the Bank’s volunteer team actively involved in
various volunteer activities such as the “ATM Education Talks for Elderly 2017”
organised by The Hong Kong Association of Banks. The elderly were taught
and motivated to use the ATM and other digital banking services. In 2017, the
Bank dispatched a team to participate in the "Oxfam Trailwalker 2017"
fund-raising event. Moreover, volunteer team and their family members joined
the event of “Respecting and Caring for the Elderly in Southern District, Hong
Kong” organised by Aberdeen Kai-fong Welfare Association.

Caring for employees

Organised recreational activities to increase employee’s centripetal force
and sense of belonging to the Bank

The Bank is people-oriented. To show the care to staff, spring dinner is held
every year and for this year, a special exhibition was organised to introduce the
immortal life story of our founder, Mr Chen Jiageng, at the Chiyu Bank Building.
It is a historical exhibition open to existing and retired staff.

In order to advocate personal growth and team spirit, cross departmental
trainings and “Outstanding Performance Award Presentation” are held every
year. Units and staff who have extremely well performance in the past year are
rewarded. Besides, to enhance the work-life balance spirit and strengthen the
bonding among all levels of staff, the Bank organised a variety of recreational
activities during the year, such as “70th Anniversary Bowling Day”, “70th
Anniversary Hiking Days” and movie appreciation for the staff and their
families. These activities not only enriched our staff’s life after work, they also
reflected the corporate culture of the Bank, being people-oriented and caring
for the employees.

10
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (continued)

Caring for employees (continued)

Organised recreational activities to increase employee’s centripetal force
and sense of belonging to the Bank (continued)

The Bank enthusiastically encourages the staff to participate in a wide range of
sport competitions. In 2017, our team won the 1st runner-up in the “2017
Badminton competition” organised by The Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises
Association” and the “Interbank 7-person soccer Competition” organised by
The Chinese Banks' Association Limited. They also won the 2nd runner-up in
the “Bank of East Asia Cup 7-person soccer competition”. These events help
motivating the staff to showcase their team spirit and strive for excellence.

Enhanced the team by broadening their vision

The Bank is continuously strengthening the human resource management by
offering personalised training programmes to staff such as the Elite Training for
MT Programme participants. The “2017 Start-up Programme” organised by
parent bank offered our new joining staff a chance to go Xiamen and exchange
with the mainland staff.

Awards and recognition

In 2017, the Bank was continually awarded with the “Caring Company
Scheme” certificate and logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service in
recognition of our support to social care and commitment to employees in the
past year.

11
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Report of the Directors

The Directors (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”) of Chiyu Banking
Corporation Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Bank”) are pleased
to present their report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries (together with the Bank
hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2017 (hereinafter referred to as the “Financial Statements”).

Principal Activities

The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance. The principal activities of the Group are the provision of
banking and related financial services. An analysis of the Group’s
performance for the year by business segments is set out in Note 38 to
the Financial Statements.

Business Review

For business review of the Group for the year, please refer to the
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report.
The above section forms part of this report.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 38.

No interim dividend was declared during the year.

The Board has recommended a final dividend (the “2017 Final
Dividend”) of HK$75 per share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2017. Subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Bank at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “2017 AGM”), the
2017 Final Dividend will be payable to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Bank as at the close of
business at the date of 2017 AGM.

Shares Issued

No share was issued by the Bank during the year. Details of the shares
of the Bank are set out in Note 31 to the Financial Statements.

Issue of Additional Equity Instruments

During the year, the Bank issued perpetual non-cumulative
subordinated additional tier 1 capital securities (“additional equity
instruments”) with a face value of US$250 million. The net proceeds
from the issue of additional equity instruments will be used for general
corporate purposes of the Bank. Details of the issue of additional
equity instruments are set out in Note 32 to the Financial Statement.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$2,082,000.

13
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Directors

The directors of the Bank (hereinafter referred to as the “Directors”)
during the year and up to date of this report are:
Chairman Lyu Yaoming # (appointed on 27 March 2017)
Yue Yi # (resigned on 27 March 2017)
Vice Chairman Zheng Wei (appointed on 27 March 2017)
Ng Leung Sing # (resigned on 27 March 2017)
Zhang Canmin # (appointed on 18 April 2017)
Chen Cheng # (appointed on 8 May 2017)
Tsoi Lai Ha # (appointed on 27 March 2017)
Tan Wan Chye #
Fu Kim (resigned as Vice Chairman on

27 March 2017)
Chan Yiu Fai
Woo Chia Wei *
Yu Kwok Chun *
Cheung Wai Hing *
Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen *
Chen Zhong Xin # (resigned on 20 April 2017)
Huang Ling # (resigned on 18 April 2017)
Tse Siu Ling # (resigned on 27 March 2017)

Directors

# Non-executive Directors
* Independent Non-executive Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Bank, the
appointment of directors will be approved by ordinary resolution or by
the decision of the Board of Directors. Approval from the HKMA will
also be obtained in accordance with the Banking Ordinance.

All Directors are subject to retirement and rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Bank, and the re-election of retiring directors should
be subject to the recommendation and review from the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Board before approval is sought
from shareholders at the AGM.

In accordance with Articles 24(2) and 25 of the Bank’s Articles of
Association, one-third of the Directors for the time being must retire
from office at the annual general meeting held each year, but shall be
eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Mr Lyu Yao Ming, Mr Zheng Wei,
Ms Tsoi Lai Ha and Mr Tan Wan Chye shall retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

Save for Mr Fu Kim and Mr Chan Yiu Fai being also directors of certain
subsidiaries of the Bank, other directors of the subsidiaries of the Bank
during the year and up to date of this report are:

Fung Chi Lap (appointed on 13 March 2017)

Wong Siu Man

Yip Man Kai

Tang Chu, Leonard (appointed on 11 December 2017)

Kwong Kei Man (appointed on 9 November 2017)

Chan Chun Him (appointed on 9 November 2017)

Fan Wing Yu, Winnie (appointed on 13 March 2017 and resigned on 1
March 2018)
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Bank or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or his/her connected entity had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Management Contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the

whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered
into or existed during the year.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Bank or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any other
body corporate.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Bank, every Director shall
be indemnified out of funds of the Bank against all liability incurred by
him/her as Director. The Bank has maintained insurance for the benefit
of Directors against liability which may lawfully be incurred by the
Bank.

Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules

This annual report complies with the applicable requirements set out in
the Banking (Disclosure) Rules under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance.

Auditor

At the close of annual general meeting held on 20 April 2017, Ernst &
Young retired as auditor of the Bank upon expiration of its term of office
and KPMG was appointed as new auditor of the Bank to hold office
until the conclusion of the annual general meeting to be held in 2018
(hereinafter referred to as the “2017 AGM”).

The financial statements for the year 2017 have been audited by
KPMG who will retire and offer themselves for re-appointment at the
2017 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Lyu Yaoming
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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Biographical Details of Directors

Board of Directors

Mr. LYU Yaoming
Chairman and Non-executive Director

PhD in Economics, Senior Economist, was appointed as the Chairman and a
Non-executive Director of the Bank in March 2017. Currently, Mr. Lyu serves as
Vice Chairman of the Board and President of Xiamen International Bank Co.,
Ltd., Chairman of the Board of Luso International Banking Limited, Director of
Xiamen International Investment Limited, Deputy Director of Institute of Finance,
Xiamen University. Mr. Lyu had successively served as Branch Manager of
Fuzhou Branch of the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Deputy Branch
Head of Fujian Branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China.Since
December 1997, Mr. Lyu had successively held the posts of Executive Director,
Vice Executive President and President of Xiamen International Bank.

Mr. ZHENG Wei
Vice Chairman, Chief Executive and Executive Director

Holds a Bachelor’s degree in Economics from the Xiamen University and is a
senior economist, was appointed the Vice Chairman and an Executive Director
of the Bank in March 2017 and was appointed the Chief Executive of the Bank in
June 2017 and is the Chairman of the Executive Committee and a member of
the Risk Management Committee. Mr. Zheng is an Executive Director and Vice
President of Xiamen International Bank. Mr. Zheng was the Deputy General
Manager of Xiamen International Bank and the General Manager of the
Shanghai Branch of Xiamen International Bank from July 2007 to February
2017. Mr. Zheng had also previously served Xiamen International Bank as the
Deputy Manager of the Credit Department, the Deputy Manager and Manager of
the Credit Management Department, the General Manager of the Zhuhai Branch
and the Assistant General Manager of Xiamen International Bank.

Ms. TSOI Lai Ha
Non-executive Director

Holds a Bachelor's degree in Management Accounting from Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a Chartered Global Management Accountant and
Certified Financial Planner, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Bank in March 2017 and is also a member of the Executive Committee, the
Audit Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Ms. Tsoi is
the Chief Financial Officer of Xiamen International Bank. From June 1995 to
May 2013, Ms. Tsoi served Xiamen International Bank as Group Financial
Controller. Prior to joining Xiamen International Bank, she was Manager at the
Financial Planning Department of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Deputy Manager
of the Accounting Department of Asian Oceanic Group and Group Financial
Controller of Mbf Asia Capital Corporation Holding Ltd.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

Mr. ZHANG Canmin
Non-executive Director

Holds a Bachelor’s degree in Agricultural Economics and Management from the
Fujian Agricultural College and a Master’s degree in Business Administration
from the Xiamen University, he was appointed a Non-executive Director of the
Bank in April 2017. He has been the Head of CPC Xiamen Municipal United
Front Work Department since October 2016 and the Director of the Committee
of Jimei Schools since January 2017. He had previously served the Fujian
Academy of Social Sciences’ Fujian Tribune magazine as Assistant Editor and
Editor. Between June 1992 and July 1995, Mr. Zhang had successively served
the General Office of the Fujian Provincial People’s Government as Clerk,
Deputy Principal Clerk and Principal Clerk. Mr. Zhang had also served the CPC
Haicang Taishang Investment Unit Work Committee as Chief Secretary of the
Secretariat, the Assistant to the Department Head of the Economic
Development Department and the Vice Principal of the Committee Office from
June 1993 to July 1995. Since July 1995, Mr. Zhang was the Department Head
of the Publications Department of the General Office of the Fujian Provincial
People’s Government, until March 2000 when Mr. Zhang became the Vice
Principal of the Xiamen Planning Committee and the Vice Principal of the
Xiamen Development Planning Committee. From October 2003 to January
2007, Mr. Zhang had successively served various posts, including the Vice
Principal of the CPC Haicang Taishang Investment Unit Work Committee, the
Deputy Secretary of the Haicang District, the Deputy District Head of the District
Government. Between January 2007 and June 2011, Mr. Zhang had been the
Vice Party Secretary, Chief Executive of the District Government and the
Secretary of the Siming District. From June 2011 to September 2011, Mr. Zhang
served the Xiamen Cross-Straits Financial Center Development Headquarters
as the Deputy General Director. Mr. Zhang was the Vice Mayor of Xiamen
Municipal Government between October 2011 and April 2015. Prior to becoming
the Head of the United Front Department in October 2016, Mr. Zhang had been
a Standing Committee Member, Secretary General, Deputy Mayor, Principal of
the Municipal Authorities Efficiency Monitoring Office and Secretary of the
Municipal Authorities Committee of Xiamen from April 2015.

Mr. CHEN Cheng
Non-executive Director

Graduated from the Hunan Changsha Third Artillery Academy majoring in
Communications and has completed a degree in Economics and Management
at the Party School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China,
he was appointed a Non-executive Director of the Bank in May 2017. Mr. Chen
is the Vice Director of the Committee of Jimei Schools and has been the Curator
of Tan Kah Kee Museum since October 2008. He was an Officer at the Nanjing
Military Region from 1982 to 1989. Mr. Chen was the Head of the Fourth Office
of the Xiamen Municipal Government from February 1989 to September 1996.
Since September 1996, Mr. Chen had been the Vice Principal of the Economy
Department of the Xiamen Chamber of Commerce, until November 2005.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

Mr. TAN Wan Chye
Non-executive Director

Holds a Bachelor of Engineering Degree from Manchester College of Science
and Technology, University of Manchester, England and a Post Graduate
Diploma in Industrial Administration, he was appointed a Non-executive Director
of the Bank in June 1982. He is also a member of the Audit Committee of the
Bank. Mr. Tan is the largest individual shareholder of the Bank and is the son of
Mr. Tan Kong Piat, the former Chairman of the Bank. Mr. Tan is the Chairman of
Tan Kong Piat (Pte) Ltd, which is a holding company, Tan Kong Piat & Co Pte
Ltd, which is an investment trading company, Asia Industrial Development (Pte)
Ltd and Asia Property Development (Pte) Ltd, which are both property
development companies. He is also a Director of 1LG30G Pte Ltd. He had
previously served as a Director of the following companies importing Chinese
canned food and herb, Chung Nam Company (Pte) Ltd, Bin Hong Co Pte Ltd,
Tiong Wan Pte Ltd and Nam Leong Co Sdn Bhd. He took part in the design &
construction of Central Power Stations in England and Singapore. He is a
Chartered Engineer, a Member of the Institute of Mechanical Engineers,
England, and a Member of Institute of Engineers, Singapore. Mr. Tan is active in
the charitable activities in Singapore. He is a Chairman of Buddhist Lodge
Education Foundation, a board member of Mee Toh School, a Trustee of Kwan
Im Thong Hood Cho Temple and Mee Toh Foundation, they distribute donations
that amount to millions of Singaporean Dollars to schools, hospitals and
charitable organisations.

Mr. YU Kwok Chun
Independent Non-executive Director

Holds a Bachelor's degree in Commerce from the MacQuarie University,
Honorary University Fellow of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and the
Hong Kong Baptist University and Honorary Doctor of Business Administration
of the City University of Hong Kong, he was appointed Independent
Non-executive Director of the Bank in April 2002. He is also Chairman of the
Risk Management Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Bank. Mr. Yu is Chairman of the Yue Hwa Group and Chairman of Yue Hwa
Chinese Products Emporium Limited. Mr. Yu is active in various social
services in Hong Kong as well as in the PRC. Mr. Yu is Executive Member of
the National Committee of The 12th Chinese National People’s Political
Consultative Conference. He is Member of the Advisory Committee of the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University, Founding Chairman and First President of
the Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong Community Organizations Limited,
Permanent Honorary Chairman and Vice Chairman of Friends of Hong Kong
Association Limited, Chairman of The Hong Kong Federation of Overseas
Chinese Associations, Committee Member of The Chinese General Chamber of
Commerce, Permanent Honorary Advisor of the Hong Kong Meizhou
Federation, Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Overseas Chinese General
Association, Permanent Honorary President of Ka Ying Chow Commercial
Association Limited, Permanent Honorary President and Founding Chairman of
the Unified Association of Kowloon West Limited, and Honorary President of the
Hong Kong and Kowloon General Merchandise Merchants’ Association Limited.
Mr. Yu is Advisor to The All-China Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese,
Overseas Vice President of Overseas Exchange Association of Guangdong
Province, Vice Honorary President of the Guangdong, Hong Kong and Macau
Cooperation Promotion Association of Guangdong Province, Director and Vice
Chairman of the Board of the Jinan University, Guangzhou, Vice President of the
Jinan University Education and Foundation Fund Limited, Guangzhou, Honorary
President of the Board of Directors of Jiaying University, Meizhou, Guangdong
Province, Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Beijing Chinese Language
and Culture College, and Director of the First Board of Advisory Directors of Sun
Yat Sen University, Guangzhou. Mr. Yu was awarded the honour of Justice of
the Peace, Silver Bauhinia Star and Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region successively in 1998, 1999 and
2006.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

Prof. Woo Chia-Wei
Independent Non-executive Director

Holds a Master’'s Degree and a PhD in Physics from Washington University in
St. Louis in the United States, e was appointed an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Bank in April 2002. He is also a member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Bank. Prof. Woo is also the Senior Advisor to
Shui On Holdings Limited and the President Emeritus of the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology, an Independent Non-executive Director
of each of Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited and First Shanghai Investments
Limited. Prof. Woo was previously the President, Provost, Department Head,
and a Professor of several prominent universities in the United States of
America. Prof. Woo was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of
Hong Kong, the Commander of the Most Excellent Order of the British Empire
by the United Kingdom, as well as Chevalier de la Legion d’ Honneur by the
President of France.

Mr. CHEUNG Wai Hing
Independent Non-executive Director

LLB (Hon.), HKU, he was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Bank in November 2006. He is also the Chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of the Bank.
Mr. Cheung is a senior partner of Woo Kwan Lee & Lo, Solicitors and the Head
of its Litigation Department. Mr. Cheung is currently the Chairman of Applied
Research Council of the Government of Hong Kong. He also serves as the
Honarary Legal Advisor of Po Leung Kuk, The Hong Kong Tuberculosis, Chest
and Heart Diseases Association and Wai Yin Association. Mr. Cheung is a
trustee of The D. H. Chen Foundation and was a trustee of the Association for
Celebration of Reunification of Hong Kong with China Charitable Trust until the
winding up of its operation. Mr. Cheung is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong
and qualified to practise in England and Wales, Australia (Victoria) and
Singapore. He is also a China-Appointed Attesting Officer and a Civil Celebrant
of Marriages of the Government of Hong Kong.

Mr. LEE Hoi Yin, Stephen
Independent Non-executive Director

Awarded a Bachelor of Arts (Hons) degree in Accountancy from City of London
Polytechnic, an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and The Institute of Internal Auditors, and a fellow member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, he was appointed an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Bank in November 2013. He is also
the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Risk Management
Committee of the Bank. Mr. Lee has over 30 years’ experience in accounting,
auditing and financial management, at KPMG in London and Hong Kong. He
was an audit partner of KPMG Hong Kong before becoming the
Partner-in-Charge of the Risk & Compliance advisory practices of KPMG in
respect of Hong Kong, the PRC and the Asia Pacific region. He retired from
KPMG in 2011, and is currently serving as an Adjunct Associate Professor at
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and as President of The Institute of
Internal Auditors Hong Kong Limited. He is a Member of the Board of the
Hospital Authority of Hong Kong and an Independent Director of Prime Property
Fund Asia GP Pte Limited.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

Mr. FU Kim
Executive Director

Holds a Bachelor's Degree in Financial Services from The University of
Manchester, an associate of The Chartered Institute of Bankers and The Hong
Kong Institute of Bankers, he was appointed an Executive Director of the Bank
in February 2016 and was appointed the General Manager of the Bank in June
2017. He is also a member of the Executive Committee of the Bank. He was the
Vice Chairman of the Bank during February 2016 to March 2017, the Chief
Executive of the Bank during February 2016 to June 2017 and was the Deputy
General Manager (Front Line) of the Bank during March 2013 to February 2016.
Between 1984 and 2001, Mr. Fu has successively served as the Deputy
Manager of Mainland Business Department, Manager and Deputy Head of
Loans Department of Kwangtung Provincial Bank, Hong Kong Branch. He had
been the Deputy Head of the Commercial Business Division, the Head of the
Kowloon West Commercial Business Centre and the Head of Commercial
Business of the Corporate Banking and Financial Institution Department of Bank
of China (Hong Kong) Limited since the merger of BOCHK Group in October
2001.

Mr. CHAN Yiu Fai
Executive Director

Holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong and a Master’s Degree in Corporate Governance from
The Open University of Hong Kong, he was appointed an Executive Director of
the Bank in March 2003 and as the Deputy General Manager of the Bank in
December 2002. Presently he is mainly responsible for the risk management
and internal control functions of the Bank. Between 1981 and 2001, Mr. Chan
had served in the Hua Chiao Commercial Bank in various positions as the
Branch Manager, the Head of Business Development Department, China
Business Department, Strategic Planning Department and Project Research
Department. He was the Head of the Mainland Branch Business Department of
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited after the merger of BOCHK Group in
October 2001.
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Corporate Governance

During the year, the Bank has followed the guidelines as set out in the
Supervisory Policy Manual CG-1 entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally
Incorporated Authorised Institutions” issued by The Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (hereinafter referred to as the “HKMA”). The Bank is committed to
maintaining the highest corporate governance standards and considers such
commitment essential in balancing the interests of shareholders, customers
and employees; and in upholding accountability and transparency.

Board of Directors (“Board”) and the Management

The Board is responsible for setting objectives and formulating long term
strategies as well as managing the Group’s overall business. It currently
comprises twelve Directors with a variety of different experience and
professionalism. Among them, three are Executive Directors, remaining nine
are Non-executive Directors. Of the nine Non-executive Directors, four are
Independent Non-executive Directors whose indispensable function is to
provide independent scrutiny. The Board meets regularly and five board
meetings were held in the year with an average attendance rate of 98%. The
Board authorises the Management to implement the strategies as approved by
the Board. The Management is responsible for the day-to-day operations of
the Group and reports to the Board. The Chief Executive is responsible for
providing leadership for the whole Management and implementing important
policies and development strategies as adopted by the Board. In order to
focus on strategic and material issues that have significant impact on the
Group’s operation, financial performance, risk management and long-term
development, four committees have been established under the Board to
oversee the major areas of the Group. Details of the committees are given
below:

Executive Committee (“EC”)

The EC has been delegated with authorities from the Board to handle matters

which require the Board’s review, but arise during the adjournment of the

Board. Its responsibilities include:

- approving policies, implementation plans and management measures to
effect the group-wide development strategies and business plans approved
by the Board;

+ reviewing the implementation progress of strategies and business plans;

+ recommending strategic proposals to the Board for its consideration and
approval;

+ approving the Group’s rules and regulations according to the policies
imposed by the supervisory authorities and the holding companies; and

+ reviewing and approving significant credit applications.

The members of EC during the year and up to date of the Report of the
Directors are:

Mr Zheng Wei (Chairman) (appointed on 20 April 2017)

Ms Tsoi Lai Ha (appointed on 20 April 2017)

Mr Fu Kim (re-designated from Chairman to member on

20 April 2017)
Mr Chan Yiu Fai (resigned on 20 April 2017)

Ms Tse Siu Ling (resigned on 27 March 2017)

All of them are Directors of the Bank. Four EC meetings were held in the year
with an attendance rate of 100%.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Audit Committee (“AC”)

The AC assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight role over the Group in the
following areas:

+ integrity of financial statements and financial reporting process;
+ internal control systems;

- effectiveness of internal audit function and performance appraisal of the
Head of Audit Division;

- appointment of external auditor and assessment of its qualification,
independence and performance;

- periodic review and annual audit of the Group’s financial statements;

- compliance with applicable accounting standards as well as legal and
regulatory requirements on financial disclosures; and

- corporate governance framework of the Group and implementation thereof.

The members of AC during the year and up to date of the Report of the
Directors are:

Mr Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen (Chairman)

Mr Cheung Wai Hing

Mr Tan Wan Chye

Mr Yu Kwok Chun

Ms Tsoi Lai Ha (appointed on 20 April 2017)

Mr Woo Chia Wei (resigned on 20 April 2017)
All of them are Non-executive Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr Lee Hoi
Yin, Stephen, Mr Cheung Wai Hing and Mr Yu Kwok Chun are Independent

Non-executive Directors. Four AC meetings were held in the year with an
attendance rate of 95%.

22



& A A
: C:
Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

ANEIRE (&)

i EEZRY

R\ E 2 B G R AR
EHBTY (EAEIREY) AVBE:

- AT ACER A TR S AR R T B
HEEA SRR A SR

- akl >~ B AR [F SRS AL
N EwNl

- FEMEHEAEEEREHECR - HIER
P e M R A

- FREEAEEEASER
- WENHCEAGEE PR

- HERER AR R EHBOR - HIE
BBz TR

- R BN A AN S ] v g Y A
BOR R

- AR A A B R B e e Y R e K A
5 (FEEBLBIRIN) -

PERREZEESR GRS AL mpEtE
BEREAT

BG4 (TR (201744 7520H

HZEFEER)

FHEE (F~2017 4 B 20 H
EZT)

(e (201743 H 28 H
ERE)

SreEfed (jr 20173 H 27 H
BT

NSt (201743 H 27 H
BT

B gl (F~2017 4 5 20
FEE)

WEIRAIRTZER KRG ERE
P e BB IR TE S AR e E e g
PEANTERT 4 T - HFEHE 95% -

Corporate Governance (continued)

Risk Management Committee (“RC”)

The RC assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of the risk
management of the Group in, among others, the following areas:

- formulation of the risk appetite and risk management strategy of the Group
and determination of the Group’s risk profile;

+ identification, assessment and management of material risks faced by
various business units of the Group;

+ review and assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management policies, system and internal control;

+ review and monitoring of the Group’s capital management;
+ review and approval of the Group’s target balance sheet;

+ review and monitoring of the Group’s compliance with the risk management
policies, system and internal control;

+ review and approval of high-level risk-related policies of the Group; and

« review and approval of significant or high risk exposures or transactions
(except for credit transactions).

The members of RC during the year and up to date of the Report of the
Directors are:

Mr Yu Kwok Chun (Chairman) (re-designated from member to Chairman
on 20 April 2017)

Mr Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen (appointed on 20 April 2017)
Mr Zheng Wei (appointed on 28 March 2017)
Mr Ng Leung Sing (resigned on 27 March 2017)
Ms Tse Siu Ling (resigned on 27 March 2017)
Mr Fu Kim (resigned on 20 April 2017)

All of them are Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr Yu Kwok Chun and Mr.
Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen are Independent Non-executive Directors. Four RC
meetings were held in the year with an attendance rate of 95%.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”)

The NRC assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of the Group
in the following areas:

- human resources strategy, remuneration strategy and incentive
framework of the Group;

+ selection and nomination of Directors, Board Committee members and
certain senior executives as designated by the Board from time to time;

+ structure, size and composition (including skills, experience and
knowledge) of the Board and Board Committees;

« remuneration of Directors, Board Committee members, senior
management and key personnel;

- effectiveness of the Board and Board Committees, and

- training and continuous professional development of Directors and
Senior Management.

The members of the NRC during the year and up to date of the Report of the
Directors are:

Mr Cheung Wai Hing (Chairman)

Ms Tsoi Lai Ha (appointed on 20 April 2017)

Mr Woo Chia Wei

Ms Tse Siu Ling (resigned on 27 March 2017)

All of them are Non-executive Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr
Cheung Wai Hing and Mr Woo Chia Wei are Independent Non-executive
Directors. Two NRC meetings were held during the year with an attendance
rate of 100%.

Major tasks performed during the year (included the approval, review and
proposal to the Board):

+ review the amendment and formulation on the major human resources
and remuneration policies;

- review on the performance appraisal result and bonus payment for the
year 2016 and the proposal on the salary adjustment for the year 2017 of
the Senior Management and Key Personnel;

- proposal on the Annual Review of the Four Type of Staff as delineated in
the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” of HKMA; and

- review on the change of senior management of the Bank, members of
the Board of Directors and their remuneration package.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

The Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism of the Group is based on the
principles of “effective motivation” and “sound remuneration management”.
It links remuneration with performance and risk factors closely. It serves to
encourage staff to enhance their performance and, at the same time, to
strengthen their awareness of risk so as to achieve sound remuneration
management.

The Remuneration and Incentive Policy of the Group is generally in line with
the board principles set out in the HKMA's “Guideline on a Sound
Remuneration System” and applicable to the Bank and all of its subsidiaries
(including the branches and institutions within and outside Hong Kong).

1. “Senior Management” and “Key Personnel”

The following groups of employees have been identified as the “Senior
Management” and “Key Personnel” as defined in the HKMA's “Guideline
on a Sound Remuneration System”:

+ “Senior Management”: The senior executives designated by the
Board who are responsible for oversight of the firm-wide strategy or
material business lines, including Chief Executive, General Manager
and Deputy General Managers.

- “Key Personnel”: The employees whose individual business activities
involve the assumption of material risk which may have significant
impact on risk exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are
directly and materially linked to the risk management, or those who
have direct influence to the profit, including heads of material
business lines, Head of Treasury, as well as heads of risk control
functions.

2. Determination of the Remuneration Policy

To fulfil the above-mentioned principles and to facilitate effective risk
management within the framework of the Remuneration Policy of the
Group, Human Resources Division is responsible for proposing the
Remuneration Policy of the Group and will seek consultation from the
risk control units including risk management, financial management and
compliance if necessary, in order to balance the needs for staff
motivations, sound remuneration and prudent risk management. The
proposed Remuneration Policy will be submitted to the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee for approval.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)

3. Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

(1) Performance Management Mechanism

The Group has put in place a performance management mechanism
to formalise the performance management at the levels of the Group,
units and individuals. The annual targets of the Group will be
cascaded down under the framework of balanced scorecard whereby
the performance of the Senior Management and different units would
be assessed from the perspectives of financial, customer, building
blocks/key tasks, human capital, risk management and compliance.
For individual staff at different levels, annual targets of the Group will
be tied to their job requirements through the performance
management mechanism. Performance of individuals will be
appraised on their achievement against targets, their contribution
towards performance of their units and fulfilment of risk management
duties and compliance. Not only is target accomplishment taken into
account, but the risk exposure involved during the course of work
could also be evaluated and managed, ensuring security and normal
operation of the Group.

(2) Risk Adjustment of Remuneration

To put the principle of aligning performance and remuneration with
risk into practice, based on the risk adjustment method of the Group,
the key risk maodifiers of the Bank have been incorporated into the
performance management mechanism. Credit risk, market risk,
interest rate risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, legal risk, compliance
risk and reputation risk form the framework of the risk adjustment
method. The size of the variable remuneration pool of the Group is
calculated according to the risk adjusted performance results
approved by the Board of the Bank and is subject to its discretion.
This method ensures the Group to fix the Group’s variable
remuneration pool after considering risk exposures and changes and
to maintain effective risk management through the remuneration
mechanism.

(3) Performance-based and Risk-adjusted Remuneration

Management

The remuneration of staff is composed of “fixed remuneration” and
“variable remuneration”. The proportion of one to the other for
individual staff members depends on job grades, roles,
responsibilities and functions of the staff with the prerequisite that
balance has to be struck between the fixed and variable portion, so
as to encourage the staff to follow the philosophy of prudent risk
management and sound long-term financial stability.

Every year, the Group will conduct periodic review on the fixed
remuneration of the staff with reference to various factors like
remuneration strategy, market pay trend and staff salary level, and
will determine the remuneration based on the affordability of the
Group as well as the performance of the Group, units and individuals.
As mentioned above, performance assessment criteria include
quantitative and qualitative factors, as well as financial and
non-financial indicators.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)

3. Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

(3) Performance-based and Risk-adjusted Remuneration
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Management (continued)

The size of the Variable Remuneration Pool of the Bank is
determined by the Board of the Bank on the basis of its financial
performance and the achievement of non-financial strategic business
targets under the long-term development of the Group. Thorough
consideration is also made to the risk factors in the determination
process. The size of the Variable Remuneration Pool is reached by
the Board of the Bank who makes discretionary adjustment to it if
deemed appropriate under prevailing circumstances. When the
Bank’s performance is relatively weak (e.g. failed to meet the
threshold performance level), no variable remuneration will be paid
out that year in principle, however, the Board of the Bank reserves
the rights to exercise its discretion.

As far as individual units and individual staff are concerned, allocation
of the variable remuneration is closely linked to the performance of
the units, and that of each individual staff as well as the unit he/she is
attached to, and the assessment of which should include risk
modifiers. The performance and remuneration arrangement of risk
control personnel are determined by the achievement of their core job
responsibilities, which is independent from the business they
oversee; for front-line risk controllers, a cross-departmental reporting
and performance management system is applied to ensure the
suitability of performance-based remuneration.

(4) Linking the payout of the variable remuneration with the time

horizon of the risk to reflect the long-term value creation of the
Group

To work out the principle of aligning remuneration with the time
horizon of risk and to ensure that sufficient time is allowed to
ascertain the associated risk and its impact before the actual payout,
payout of the variable remuneration of staff is required to be deferred
in cash if such amount reaches certain prescribed threshold. The
Group adopts a progressive approach towards deferral. The longer
the time horizon of risk in the activities conducted by the staff, the
higher the job grade or the higher amount of the variable
remuneration, the higher will be the proportion of deferral. Deferral
period lasts for 3 years.

The vesting of the deferred variable remuneration is linked with the
long-term value creation of the Group. The vesting conditions are
linked to the yearly performance (financial and non-financial) of the
Group in the next 3 years to the effect that the variable remuneration
could only be vested to such extent as set for the relevant year in that
3-year period subject to the condition that the Group’s performance
has met the threshold requirement in the corresponding year. In case
of material revision of the original estimates of the performance of the
Group or individual units, or if a staff is found to commit fraud, or
found to be of malfeasance or in violation of internal control policies,
the unvested portion of the deferred variable remuneration of the
relevant staff will be clawed back.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)

4. Annual Review of Remuneration Policy
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(1) The Remuneration Policy of the Group is subject to annual review
with reference to changes on external regulatory requirements,
market conditions, organisational structure and risk management
requirements, etc.

(2) The annual review of the “Variable Pay Deferral Policy” of the Bank
has been conducted during the year The amended version will
adopt stricter deferred measures, so as to follow the philosophy of
prudent risk management and sound long-term financial stability.

(3) Based on the latest organization structure and the business strategy
of the Bank, the identification criteria & position lists of the “Senior
Management” and “Key Personnel” and etc., as delineated in the
“Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System”, were also reviewed.

. External Remuneration Consultant

To ensure the suitability and competitiveness of the remuneration and
incentive mechanism, the Bank appointed Willis Towers Watson Hong
Kong Limited for independent consultation in areas of pay management
mechanism and market remuneration data of Senior Management and
key positions. The Bank has taken the relevant market information into
account on the remuneration management.

. Disclosure on Remuneration

The Group has fully complied with the guideline in Part 3 of the
“Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” issued by the HKMA to
disclose information in relation to our remuneration and incentive
mechanism.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 38 to 191, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2017 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment of advances to customers
Refer to notes 11, 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 63 to 65.
The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group’s advances to customers as at 31 December 2017  Our audit procedures to assess impairment of advances to

amounted to HK$42,283,361,000, 9% of which related to customers included the following:

exposures in the People’s Republic of China, excluding Hong —  assessing the design, implementation and operating

Kong. effectiveness of key internal controls over the approval,
recording, monitoring and restructuring of advances to
customers, the credit grading process and the
measurement of impairment allowances for individually
assessed advances to customers;

An impairment allowance is recognised when there is objective -  for the key underlying systems used for processing of

evidence that an advance to customer is impaired. transactions in relation to advances to customers we
utilised our information technology specialists to assess the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness of a
selection of relevant automated controls within these
systems. We also assessed the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of key internal controls over
these underlying systems, including controls over access to
these systems and controls over data and management of
changes in the information systems;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Impairment of advances to customers (continued)

Refer to notes 11, 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 63 to 65.
How the matter was addressed in our audit (continued)

The Key Audit Matter (continued)

The amount of classified or impaired loans of the Group
increased from HK$193,093,000 as at 31 December 2016 to
HK$200,201,000 as at 31 December 2017, with total
impairment allowances amounting to HK$246,448,000
(including HK$70,115,000 and HK$176,333,000 for individual
impairment allowance and collective impairment allowance
respectively) as at 31 December 2017.

From the Group’s perspective, the portfolios which gave rise to
the greatest uncertainty in determining impairment allowances
for advances to customers were those where the advances to
customers were unsecured, where the advances to customers
were subject to potential collateral shortfalls or where
impairment  allowances were derived from collective
assessment models.

Individual impairment allowances are estimated by
management once objective evidence of impairment becomes
apparent. Management exercises judgement in determining
the quantum of loss based on a range of factors. These
include available remedies for recovery, the financial situation
of the borrower, collateral valuation, the seniority of claim and
the existence and cooperativeness of other creditors. Whilst
the Group appoints external valuers for the valuation of certain
collateral, enforceability, timing and means of realisation also
affect the ultimate collectability and thereby the amount of
impairment allowances as at the reporting date.

The determination of collective impairment allowance is heavily
dependent on the external macro environment and the Group’s
internal credit risk management. The Group’s collective
impairment allowance is derived from estimates including the
Group’s historical losses for advances to customers, the loss
emergence period (i.e., the time lapse between the occurrence
of the event causing eventual default to the actual charge-off)
and other adjustment factors.

34

evaluating the validity of the models used and assumptions
adopted in the Group’s calculation of collective impairment
allowances by critically assessing input parameters
involving subjective judgement, seeking collaborative
evidence from external sources and comparing the
historical losses against the Group’s other internal records.
As part of these procedures, we challenged the Group’s
revisions to estimates and input parameters, the
consistency of judgement applied in the use of economic
factors, the loss emergence period and the observation
period for historical losses. We compared the economic
factors used in the model to market information to assess
whether they were aligned with relevant market and
economic development. We also assessed the
emergence period by tracing the lifecycle of overdue
accounts from the occurrence of the specific credit event
causing eventual default to the actual date the account was
identified as impaired. Having considered the above, we
performed recalculations to assess the amount of collective
impairment allowances;

assessing the impairment allowances for individually
impaired advances to customers by selecting a risk-based
sample for credit review. We analysed the advances to
customers by industry sector to select samples for credit
review in industries more vulnerable to economic
slowdown. We also selected samples based on other risk
criteria and from the Group’s watch list and overdue report.
We utilised our information technology specialists to assess
the compilation of the overdue report. We selected further
samples for credit review from advances to customers
classified as “Special Mention” or “Non-performing” in
accordance with the Guideline on Loan Classification
System as set by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority;

critically assessing, on a sample basis, the forecast cash
flows for impaired advances to customers, challenging the
viability of the Group’s recovery plans, evaluating the timing
and means of realisation of collateral and considering other
sources of repayment asserted by management. We also
evaluated the consistency of management’s application of
key assumptions, assessed any change in basis and
compared the data to our own data sources; and

evaluating the competence and integrity of the external
valuers engaged by the Group to value certain collateral
and comparing the valuation of collateral provided by the
external valuers with publicly available information, on a
sample basis.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Impairment of advances to customers (continued)

Refer to notes 11, 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 63 to 65.

The Key Audit Matter (continued)

We identified impairment of advances to customers as a key
audit matter because of the inherent uncertainty and
management judgement involved in determining the amount of
impairment allowances and because of its significance to the
financial results and capital of the Group.

Assessment of the fair value of financial instruments

How the matter was addressed in our audit (continued)

Refer to notes 5, 20, 21 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 55 to 62.

The Key Audit Matter (continued)

As at 31 December 2017 the fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments was HK$20,334,043,000 of which
HK$502,658,000, HK$19,817,107,000 and HK$14,278,000
were classified as level 1, 2 and 3 financial instruments
respectively.

The valuation of the Group’s financial instruments, which are
stated at their fair values, is based on a combination of market
data and valuation models which often require a considerable
number of inputs. Many of these inputs are obtained from
readily available data for liquid markets. Where such
observable data is not readily available, as in the case of level 3
financial instruments, estimates need to be developed which
can involve significant management judgement.

The Group has developed its own models to value certain level
2 and 3 financial instruments, which involves significant
management judgement.

We identified assessment of the fair value of financial
instruments as a key audit matter because of the degree of
complexity involved in valuing certain financial instruments and
because of the degree of judgement exercised by management
in developing its own models and in determining the inputs
used in the valuation models.

How the matter was addressed in our audit (continued)

Our audit procedures to assess the fair value of financial

instruments included the following:

— assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the valuation and
independent price verification for financial instruments;

—  for the key underlying systems used for the processing of
transactions in relation to financial instruments we utilised
our information technology specialists to assess the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of a selection
of relevant automated controls within these systems. We
also assessed the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of the key internal controls over these
underlying systems, including controls over access to these
systems and controls over data and change management;

— assessing the fair values of level 1 and certain level 2
financial instruments by comparing the fair values applied
by the Group with publicly available market data, on a
sample basis;

—  evaluating the methodology adopted by management and
assessing the reasonableness of the inputs and
assumptions used by management in the valuations;

—  engaging our internal valuation specialists to perform, on a
sample basis, independent valuations of certain level 2
financial instruments and comparing these valuations with

the Group’s valuations. Our independent valuations
included developing models, obtaining inputs
independently and, verifying the inputs obtained

independently; and

— assessing whether the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements appropriately reflected the Group’s
exposure to financial instrument valuation risk with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.  This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.

We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,

and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Fong Hoi Wan.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2018
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RIS Consolidated Income Statement
FfaE
w2 12 H 31 HilFE For the year ended 31 December Notes 2017 2016
AT AT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEUA Interest income 1,385,960 1,149,623
FIESZH Interest expense (435,456) (310,542)
HFIEBA Net interest income 6 950,504 839,081
Ak E B E U A Fee and commission income 473,211 328,682
FRs e RS2 Fee and commission expense (22,221) (19,126)
TRIRIEE R ASWA Net fee and commission income 7 450,990 309,556
SRS MRS Net trading gain 8 7,935 64,725
FUE R LA EE Lat AT 2 Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments
SR T EF s~ (B518) designated at fair value through profit or loss 793 (7,190)
Hpth el E 205U Net gain on other financial assets 9 8,167 84,335
A& ZUA Other operating income 10 7,691 15,256
EEUR{E AR R B U A Net operating income before impairment
allowances 1,426,080 1,305,763
VAL (R PR Net charge of impairment allowances 11 (62,300) (63,917)
TRERBULA Net operating income 1,363,780 1,241,846
LT Operating expenses 12 (476,890) (458,456)
At oray | Operating profit 886,890 783,390
s N\ EE 7 35~ (5 Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments on
1) investment properties 13 11,050 (14,100)
HE EHEYEE - B8 FERH 2 Net gain/(loss) from disposal/revaluation of
Fizs, (58D properties, plant and equipment 14 702 (667)
Sz lpaill Profit before taxation 898,642 768,623
FRIE Taxation 15 (146,810) (116,764)
SERERSF Profit for the year 751,832 651,859
s Dividends 16 . .
543 F 191 H > [ s mA 75k 2 4H The notes on pages 43 to 191 are an integral part of these financial statements.
BERS ©
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

LiE=s
For the year ended 31 December Notes 2017 2016
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Profit for the year 751,832 651,859
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to income statement:
Premises:
Revaluation of premises 26 (9,403) (40,931)
Deferred tax 30 3,798 7,863
(5,605) (33,068)
Iltems that may be reclassified subsequently to
income statement:
Available-for-sale securities:
Change in fair value of available-for-sale
securities 24 (40,553) (51,410)
Release upon disposal of available-for-sale
securities reclassified to income statement 9 (8,225) (84,451)
Deferred tax 30 9,110 8,885
(39,668) (126,976)
Currency translation difference 88,967 (74,794)
49,299 (201,770)
Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 43,694 (234,838)
Total comprehensive income for the year 795,526 417,021
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 795,526 417,021

The notes on pages 43 to 191 are an integral part of these financial statements.

39



& A ]
- ¢
Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

SEEMBIRRER Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FfsE
®12H 31 H As at 31 December Notes 2017 2016
BETT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
HiE ASSETS
JEE AT B 4B B A7 TSR A T e LA <2 Cash and balances with banks and other
TRERsEER financial institutions 19 17,287,963 5,274,371
EIRfT R EMSREE -2+ = Placements with banks and other financial
{5 H A EIHA > 2 BT institutions maturing between one and
twelve months 780,905 1,037,868
FUE B LA EE bat AfBis 2 Financial assets designated at fair value
EREE through profit or loss 20 212,225 653,943
rTESRTE Derivative financial instruments 21 129,146 99,435
SRR EAt BRI Advances and other accounts 22 43,054,376 31,137,452
A Investment in securities 24 20,011,461 13,387,676
EYE Investment properties 25 214,910 203,860
YIZE - M RS Properties, plant and equipment 26 1,552,253 1,532,373
IRIERRIH & 7 Deferred tax assets 30 19,911 14,179
HAth &z Other assets 27 825,781 721,102
H A Total assets 84,088,931 54,062,259
=i LIABILITIES
SRAT R At SRR 2 ek R Deposits and balances from banks and
4hER other financial institutions 9,987,634 1,004,055
TSR TE Derivative financial instruments 21 18,789 16,971
BFEEAR Deposits from customers 28 63,279,437 45,437,620
HoAt AR R Other accounts and provisions 29 1,000,068 557,688
EMIFRTE R (R Current tax liabilities 91,552 55,879
IRIERRTHEA (R Deferred tax liabilities 30 147,954 159,787
BRI Total liabilities 74,525,434 47,232,000
-7 EQUITY
BZ Share capital 31 300,000 300,000
fehfH Reserves 7,325,785 6,530,259
NS e R Capital and reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the Bank 7,625,785 6,830,259
HINEARTH Additional equity instruments 32 1,937,712 =
B Total equity 9,563,497 6,830,259
B i A Total liabilities and equity 84,088,931 54,062,259

% 43 £ 191 H Z (et /E AN 15
RZAHRERTY -

KEBEGH 2018 4 3 H 27 Hid
AT LT AL AREE

=iEH L1
#HE EFE

The notes on pages 43 to 191 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2018 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

ZHENG Wei
Director

LYU Yaoming
Director
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SRETELR B

2016 4£ 1 H 1 H At 1 January 2016, as

HIE

previously reported

Eﬁ’f&ﬂiﬁwﬁ*é}ua’]ﬁ Adjustment to opening

balance of retained
earnings

2016 4£ 1 H 1 H At 1 January 2016, as

27|
FERE
Hoth s
R
Ak &
R
ElliEn Gl
LNl
i35\

restated

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income:
Premises
Available-for-sale
securities
Currency translation
difference
Total comprehensive
income

Transfer to retained
earnings
Dividend

122016 4212 H 31 H At 31 December 2016

12017 &£ 1 H 1 H> At 1 January 2017, as

FHABIRR

previously reported

%ﬁ’;’fllﬁﬁ?ﬂitﬁ?ﬂ’]ﬁ Adjustment to opening

balance of retained
earnings

2017 £ 1 A 1 HZ At1January 2017, as

27|
LR
HoAtr s
A R

YRS

BITHINEA TR
[Ls e dezanl

25\

#2017 412 H 31 H

* PREEBEETEAE 39 SEHEK
TRHUBMEAERSD - BB R BOREAR

restated

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income:
Premises
Available-for-sale
securities
Currency translation
difference
Total comprehensive
income

Issue of additional
equity instruments
Transfer to retained
earnings
Dividend

At 31 December 2017

W 5 BT R R 2B A (S 39.
TR 2 (s Rt

ELfth R T TR ) ©
55 43 2 191 H I 38 A ik

RZHREST

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

B AR T SR
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
46
Reserves

At e

FEEM #HHATE
ZN G EEEEE B hA BEREE  HEER HEt BUNAEATE EAEH

Reserve for

fair value

changes of

Premises  available- Additional

Share revaluation for-sale Regulatory  Translation  Retained equity Total
capital reserve _ securities reserve* reserve earnings Total instruments equity
AT BT BT BT BT BT BT BRTIT  BETT
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000
300,000 1,161,107 84,815 223,259 2,774 4,687,556 6,459,511 - 6,459,511
- - - - - (46,273) (46,273) - (46,273)
300,000 1,161,107 84,815 223,259 2,774 4,641,283 6,413,238 - 6,413,238
- - - - - 651,859 651,859 - 651,859
- (33,068) - - - - (33,068) - (33,068)
- - (126,976) - - - (126,976) - (126,976)
- - (1,314) - (73,480) - (74,794) - (74,794)
- (33,068)  (128,290) - (73,480) 651,859 417,021 - 417,021
- - - 6,764 - (6,764) - - -
300,000 1,128,039 (43,475) 230,023 (70,706) 5,286,378 6,830,259 - 6,830,259
300,000 1,128,039 (43,475) 230,023 (70,706) 5,332,651 6,876,532 - 6,876,532
- - - - - (46,273) (46,273) - (46,273)
300,000 1,128,039 (43,475) 230,023 (70,706) 5,286,378 6,830,259 - 6,830,259
- - - - - 751,832 751,832 - 751,832
- (5,605) - - - - (5,605) - (5,605)
- - (39,668) - - - (39,668) - (39,668)
- - (1,742) - 90,709 - 88,967 - 88,967
- (5,605) (41,410) - 90,709 751,832 795,526 - 795,526
- - - - - - - 1,937,712 1,937,712
- - - 95,368 - (95,368) - - -
300,000 1,122,434 (84,885) 325,391 20,003 5,942,842 7,625,785 1,937,712 9,563,497

41

The notes on pages 43 to 191 are an integral part of these financial statements.

* In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking risks, including future losses or
other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised under Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS”)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

FsE:
For the year ended 31 December Notes 2017 2016
BT BETIT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Operating cash inflow/(outflow) before
taxation 33(a) 12,355,313 (3,887,266)
Hong Kong profits tax paid (93,997) (105,877)
Overseas profits tax paid (18,259) (20,346)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating
activities 12,243,057 (4,013,489)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of properties, plant and
equipment 26 (54,525) (40,391)
Proceeds from disposal of properties, plant
and equipment 398 952
Net cash outflow from investing activities (54,127) (39,439)
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of additional equity instruments 1,937,712 -
Net cash inflow from financing activities 1,937,712 -
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 14,126,642 (4,052,928)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 4,701,085 8,798,277
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents 184,989 (44,264)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 33(b) 19,012,716 4,701,085

The notes on pages 43 to 191 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Principal activities

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of banking and related financial
services.

The Bank is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of
its registered office is No.78 Des Vouex Road Central, Hong Kong.

2. Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs is a
collective term which includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, HKASs and Interpretations) issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale
securities, financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
financial instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, precious metals at
fair value, investment properties which are carried at fair value and premises
which are carried at fair value or revalued amount less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the
Management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.
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BRI (8D

2. EEETER (8D

2.1

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

REEE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(@) BR201741H 1 Hieaaaayest (a) Standards and amendments issued that are already mandatorily effective
FEFERRGIM AR R EET for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2017
RAFER
/85T A oyt Pty AEEERR
Applicable for Currently
financial years relevant to
Standards/Amendments Content beginning on/after the Group
EELTERETE (KE5T)  BIESREER PR E M 20174173 1H =
HKAS 7 (Amendment) Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2017 Yes

EREGEERIH125E (KE3T)
HKAS 12 (Amendment)

- BEGEHEREE TR (KEET)T
SRR L HERIE M - e
AP ER EMIE H Aoy
SRS O % 5 DL R S
A RE R A R R S B I
AR ARSI RS IR
ERYEAL - MITUEIRZIR BT R
TR AL LA - PRI (SR T &
OB IEEANE -

MeEE A REEN BE%

HHE B A SR HIERR
EAEFRENERT - & afEs 87
BN ~ HERR EE T T T H B et 8
FEHIERT AR S T B A&
VA %5 e 15 2 R AR B 2 flr s 2w
ERERT - BRAVABIEETH A SEE
HIMA B S A E R -

TR AR E B S IEA IR N H A
Income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets 1 January 2017 No
for Unrealised Losses

20171 H 1 H &

+ HKAS 7 (Amendment), “Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative”. The

amendments are part of the Disclosure Initiative project and require entities
to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. No comparative information
is required for first time application of these amendments. The amendments
will result in additional disclosure to be provided in the financial statements.

« “Improvements to HKFRSs” contains numerous amendments to HKFRSs

which the HKICPA considers not urgent but necessary. It comprises
amendments that result in accounting changes for presentation, recognition
or measurement purpose as well as terminology or editorial amendments
related to a variety of individual HKFRSs. The adoption of these
improvements does not have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective

E£EHR 2017 ERFTERAZ ZEH]I R and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2017
&7
AEEREE
R B5T RE iyl P AREEEHR
Applicable for Currently
financial years relevant to
Standards/Amendments Content beginning on/after  the Group
EIB 5 AR 554055 FeEYIZENTER 201841 H1H =
(&)
HKFRS 40 (Amendment) Transfer of Investment Property 1 January 2018 Yes
AR B R I EE 255 B REREAE T« ARG Y D B G TR 20181 H1H e
(&f237)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Share-Based Payment: Classification and 1 January 2018 No
Measurement of Share-Based Payment
Transactions
AR s R I EE 95 B TR 20181 H1H =
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018 Yes
AR S RSB 1558 TR P EERIYA 201841 H 1H B
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018 Yes
EBY SRS 1657 THE 201941 H1H =
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019 Yes
TR S R 22 gt HNEER 5 R T UE 20181 H1H =
HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance 1 January 2018 Yes
Consideration
TR S R REE23 ok Pt Z B M 2 201941 H1H B
HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019 Yes
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

+ HKAS 40 (Amendments),

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2017 (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to
the Group is as follows:

“Transfer of Investment Property”. The
amendments clarify that when an entity transfer a property to or from
investment properties, there must be a change in use. A change in use
would involve an assessment of whether a property meets, or has ceased
to meet, the definition of investment property; and supporting evidence that
a change in use has occurred. The amendments can be applied
prospectively or retrospectively. Early application is permitted. The adoption
of the amendments will not have material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”. The issuance of IFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” completes the International Accounting Standards Board’s
comprehensive response to the financial crisis. HKFRS 9, the equivalent
standard of IFRS 9 under HKFRS, includes a logical model for classification
and measurement, a single, forward-looking “expected loss” impairment
model and a tighter linkage of risk management to hedge accounting. The
changes introduced in HKFRS 9 are highlighted as follows:

(i) Classification and Measurement

Financial assets

Financial assets are required to be classified into one of the following
measurement categories: (1) measured subsequently at amortised cost,
(2) measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive
income (all fair value changes other than interest accrual, amortisation
and impairment will be recognised in other comprehensive income) or (3)
measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss. Classification is
to be made on transition, and subsequently on initial recognition. The
classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing its
financial instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2017 (continued)

(i) Classification and Measurement (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

A financial instrument is subsequently measured at amortised cost only if
it is a debt instrument, and the objective of the entity’s business model is
to hold the asset to collect the contractual cash flows, and the asset’s
contractual cash flows characteristics represent only unleveraged
payments of principal and interest. A debt instrument is subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held in
a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the instrument
fulfils the contractual cash flows characteristics. All other debt instruments
are to be measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Equity instruments are generally measured subsequently at fair value with
limited circumstances that cost may be an appropriate estimate of fair
value. Equity instruments that are held for trading will be measured at fair
value through profit or loss. For all other equity investments, an
irrevocable election can be made at initial recognition to recognise
unrealised and realised fair value gains and losses in other
comprehensive income without subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to the income statement even upon disposal. Dividend
income is recognised in the income statement when the right to receive
payment is established.

The Group applied HKFRS 9 initially on 1st January 2018. Based on
prepliminary assessments undertaken to date, the impact to equity holder
of the Group related to classification and measurement requirements is
estimated to be immaterial.

Financial liabilities

Except for the two substantial changes described below, the classification
and measurement requirements of financial liabilities have been basically
carried forward with minimal amendments from HKAS 39.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2017 (continued)

0

(i)

Classification and Measurement (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

The accounting for fair value option of financial liabilities were changed to
address own credit risk. The amount of change in fair value attributable to
changes in the credit risk of the financial liabilities will be presented in
other comprehensive income. The remaining amount of the total gain or
loss is included in the income statement. If this creates or enlarges an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss, then the whole fair value change is
presented in the income statement. The determination of whether there
will be a mismatch will need to be made at initial recognition of individual
liabilities and will not be re-assessed. Amounts presented in other
comprehensive income are not subsequently reclassified to the income
statement but may be transferred within equity. This removes the volatility
in profit or loss that was caused by changes in the credit risk of liabilities
elected to be measured at fair value. It also means that gains caused by
the deterioration of an entity's own credit risk on such liabilities will no
longer be recognised in profit or loss.

The standard also eliminates the exception from fair value measurement
contained in HKAS 39 for derivative financial instruments that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of an unlisted equity instrument.

Impairment

The standard introduces a new, expected-loss impairment model that will
require more timely recognition of expected credit losses. Specifically, it
requires entities to account for 12 months expected credit losses from
inception when financial instruments are first recognised and to recognise
full lifetime expected credit losses on a more timely basis when there have
been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The
impairment for financial instruments that are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (debt
instruments), loan commitments and financial guarantees will be governed
by this standard.

The Group applied HKFRS 9 initially on 1* January 2018. Based on
preliminary assessments undertaken to date, it is estimated that the
adoption of HKFRS 9 has no significant impact on equity holder of the
Group and CET1 capital of the Bank.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2017 (continued)

(i) Impairment (continued)

The Group is refining and finalising its models for expected credit losses
calculations and the assumptions, judgements and estimation techniques
employed are subject to change until the Group finalises its first financial
statements that include the date of initial application.

(iii) Hedge accounting

The requirements related to hedge accounting would better align the
accounting treatments with risk management activities and enable entities
to better reflect these activities in their financial statements. It relaxes the
requirements for assessing hedge effectiveness which more risk
management strategies may be eligible for hedge accounting. It also
relaxes the rules on using non-derivative financial instruments as hedging
instruments and allows greater flexibility on hedged items. Users of the
financial statements will be provided with more relevant information about
risk management and the effect of hedge accounting on the financial
statements.

+ HKFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. HKFRS 15 applies a

single model and specifies the accounting treatment for all revenue arising
from contracts with customers. The new standard is based on the core
principle that revenue is recognised to reflect the consideration expected to
be entitled when control of promised good or service transfers to customers.
It is also applicable to the recognition and measurement of gains or losses
on the sale of some non-financial assets such as properties or equipment
that are not an output of ordinary activities. HKFRS 15 also includes a set of
disclosure requirements about revenue from customer contracts. The new
standard will replace the separate models for goods, services and
construction contracts stipulated in different standards under the current
HKFRS. The adoption of this standard does not have a material impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

« HK(IFRIC) — Int 22,

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2017 (continued)

+ HKFRS 16, “Leases”. HKFRS 16 supersedes the existing standard and

interpretations related to leases. It applies a single control model to identify
leases and distinguish between leases and service contracts. Significant
changes to lessee accounting are introduced, with the distinction between
operating and finance leases removed and the right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities recognised except under short-term and low value leases.
There are no significant changes to the lessor accounting requirements.
The standard is applied retrospectively. Early application is permitted for
entities that have also adopted HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”. The adoption of this standard does not have a material impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

“Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration”. The interpretation addresses how an entity should use the
exchange rate on the date of cash payment or receipt for transactions that
involve advance consideration paid or received in a foreign currency. The
interpretation can either be applied retrospectively or prospectively. Early
application is permitted. The application of this interpretation will not have a
material impact on the Group's financial statements.

+ HK(IFRIC) - Int 23, “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments”. The

interpretation states that the effects of uncertainty in accounting for income
taxes should be reflected and measured by determining how probable a
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The interpretation
is applied retrospectively. Early application is permitted. The application of
this interpretation will not have a material impact on the Group's financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Adjustment to opening balance of retained earnings as at 1 January 2016

During a review of deferred tax balances in 2017, the Bank identified that the
opening balance of deferred tax assets as at 1 January 2016 arising from
deductible impairment allowances was overstated. In accordance with HKAS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, the Bank
has adjusted the opening balance of retained earnings as at 1 January 2016
for this amount, with consequential adjustments to the comparative amounts
for deferred tax assets and net assets as at 31 December 2016. The Bank has
concluded that the impact of these adjustments is not material to the Bank’s
consolidated statement of financial position as at 1 January 2016 or at 31
December 2016.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Bank and all of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee). When the Bank has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including: (a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee; (b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and (c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

(i) Business combinations not under common control

Acquisitions of businesses not under common control are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is the fair values at the acquisition date of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred (including contingent
consideration arrangement) and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed in the income statement as incurred.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If after
assessment, the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in the income statement as a bargain purchase gain.
Subsequently, goodwill is subject to impairment testing at least annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

@

(i)

Business combinations not under common control (continued)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at
fair value at the acquisition date and considered as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments being made against goodwill or gain on bargain purchase.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the measurement period about
facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date.
Measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition
date.

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Business combinations under common control

For a combination with a company under common control, the merger
accounting method will be applied. The principle of merger accounting
is a way to combine companies under common control as though the
business of the acquiree had always been carried out by the acquirer.
The Group’s consolidated financial statements represent the
consolidated results, consolidated cash flows and consolidated
financial position of the Group as if any such combination had occurred
from the date when the Bank and the acquiree first came under
common control (i.e. no fair value adjustment on the date of
combination is required). The difference between the consideration and
carrying amount at the time of combination is recognised in equity. The
effects of all transactions between the Group and the acquiree, whether
occurring before or after the combination, are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group. Comparative
amounts are presented as if the acquiree had been combined at the
start of the earliest period presented unless the acquiree first came
under common control at a later date. The transaction costs for the
combination will be expensed in the income statement.

(1) Inter-company transactions

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated; unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment of the assets transferred. Where necessary, accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2

2.3

2.4

Consolidation (continued)
Subsidiaries (continued)
(i) Business combinations under common control (continued)

(2) Investments in subsidiaries

In the Bank's statement of financial position, the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less allowance for impairment losses. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Bank on the basis of
dividends received and receivable. Dividend income from subsidiaries is
recognised in the income statement when the right to receive payment is
established.

Segmental reporting

The operating result of segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the Management, which is the chief operating
decision maker of the Group, that allocates resources and assesses the
performance of operating segments. Income and expenses directly associated
with each segment are included in determining operating segment
performance.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Bank’s functional
and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period for items that are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency
transactions using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period
are recognised directly in the income statement, except when deferred in other
comprehensive income as qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on monetary securities held at fair value through profit
or loss are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Changes in the fair
value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of the securities and other changes in the
carrying amount of the securities. Translation differences related to changes in
the amortised cost are recognised in the income statement, and other changes
in the carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as available-for-sale are included in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.4

25

Foreign currency translation (continued)

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a

functional currency different from Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong

Kong dollars as follows:

» assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of the
reporting period;

* income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

« all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the currency translation
reserve in equity through other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities, borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments are taken to other comprehensive
income and are accumulated separately in equity in the translation reserve.
When a foreign entity is disposed, such exchange differences are reclassified
from equity to the income statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Fair
values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, including
recent market transactions, and through the use of valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow models and option pricing models, as
appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive
and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are treated as
separate derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract is not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the income
statement.

Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes in their fair value
are recognised immediately in the income statement unless they are
designated as hedges and are effective hedging instruments, then they are
subject to measurement under the hedge accounting requirements.

The Group documents at inception the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at the hedge inception and on an ongoing
basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged
items. These criteria should be met before a hedge can be qualified to be
accounted for under hedge accounting.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

Net investment hedge

A gain or loss on the effective portion of the hedging instrument is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity; a gain or loss on
the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.
Accumulated gains and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to the income statement upon disposal of the foreign
operation as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

2.6 Offsetting financial instruments

2.7

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Interest income and expense and fee and commission income and
expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement for all
financial assets and financial liabilities using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument
(e.g. prepayment options or incentives relating to residential mortgage loans)
but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes fees,
premiums or discounts and basis points paid or received between parties to
the contract, and directly attributable origination fees and costs which
represent an integral part of the effective yield.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written
down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognised on the
written down value using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Subsequent
unwinding of the discount allowance is recognised as interest income.

Fee and commission income and expense that are not an integral part of the
effective yield are recognised on an accrual basis ratably over the period
when the related service is provided, such as administrative fee, asset
management fee and custody services fee. Loan syndication fees are
recognised as revenue when the related syndication arrangement has been
completed and the Group has retained no part of the loan package for itself or
has retained a part at the same effective interest rate as applicable to other
participants.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following four categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity securities and available-for-sale financial assets. The
Management determines the classification of investments at initial
recognition. The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets are held. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair
value. Except for financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss,
all transaction costs of financial assets are included in their initial carrying
amounts.

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading,
and those designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception.

A financial asset which has been acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term or is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking is
classified as held for trading. Derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedges.

A financial asset, other than one held for trading, will be designated as
a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, if it meets one of the
criteria set out below, and is so designated by the Management:

» eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an accounting mismatch”)
that would otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets or
recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases; or

« applies to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both that is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the group is provided internally on that
basis to the key management; or

» relates to financial assets containing one or more embedded
derivative that significantly modifies the cash flow resulting from those
financial assets.

These assets are recognised initially at fair value, with transaction costs
taken directly to the income statement, and are subsequently
re-measured at fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)
(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of such assets
(excluding the interest component) are reported in net trading gain/loss
or net gain/loss on financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss. The interest component is reported as part of
interest income.

(2) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market,
including placements with and advances to banks and other financial
institutions, investment debt securities without an active market and
loans and advances to customers. They arise when the Group provides
money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading
the receivable. They are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method less allowances for
impairment losses.

(3) Held-to-maturity

Financial assets classified as held-to-maturity are those traded in active
markets, with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group’s Management has both the positive intention and the ability
to hold to maturity. Where the Group sold held-to-maturity assets (i)
other than due to an isolated event beyond the Group’s control,
non-recurring and could not have been reasonably anticipated by the
Group, such as a significant deterioration in the issuer’s
creditworthiness, significant change in statutory or regulatory
requirement or (i) other than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity
assets, the entire category would be tainted and reclassified as
available-for-sale. They are initially recorded at fair value plus any
directly attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less allowances
for impairment losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)
(4) Available-for-sale

Financial assets classified as available-for-sale are those that are either
designated as such or are not classified in any of the other categories.
They are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time but may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates,
exchange rates or equity prices.

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recorded at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at fair value. Unrealised gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investments are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income, until the financial asset is derecognised or
impaired at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously
recognised in equity should be transferred to the income statement.
However, interest income which includes the amortisation of premium
and discount is calculated using the effective interest method and is
recognised in the income statement. Dividends on equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other operating
income when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its
new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that has
been recognised in other comprehensive income is amortised to profit
or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest method. Any difference between the new amortised cost and
the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the
financial asset using the effective interest method. If the financial asset
is subsequently determined to be impaired, the amount recorded in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
immediately.

The treatment of translation differences on available-for-sale securities
is dealt with in Note 2.4.

2.9 Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following categories:
trading liabilities, financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss, deposits and other liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at
inception and recognised initially at fair value.

(1) Trading liabilities

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short-term. Derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedges. It is measured at fair value and any gains and losses
from changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.9 Financial liabilities (continued)

(2) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

A financial liability can be designated at fair value through profit or
loss if it is so designated at inception. Financial liabilities so
designated include certain certificates of deposit in issue and certain
deposits received from customers that are embedded with
derivatives. A financial liability is so designated if it meets one of the
following criteria:

+ eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an accounting mismatch”)
that would otherwise arise from measuring the financial liabilities or
recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases; or

« applies to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both that
is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the group is provided internally on
that basis to the key management; or

« relates to financial liabilities containing one or more embedded
derivative that significantly modifies the cash flow resulting from
those financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in fair
value are recognised in the income statement.

(3) Deposits and other liabilities

Deposits and other liabilities, other than those classified as trading
liabilities or designated at fair value through profit or loss, are carried
at amortised cost. Any difference (if available) between proceeds net
of transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period using the effective interest
method.

2.10 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a contract between the holder and the
debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as financial
liabilities and reported under “Other accounts and provisions” in the
financial statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of (i) the amount determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets” and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, accumulated amortisation recognised over the life of the
guarantee on a straight-line basis. Any changes in the liability relating
to financial guarantee contracts are taken to the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.11 Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities are recognised on the
trade date, the date on which the Group purchases or sells the assets.
Loans and receivables (except investment securities without an active
market) are recognised when cash is advanced to the borrowers.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or where the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. When the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, the Group either continues to recognise the
transferred financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement if
control remains or derecognise it if there is no retained control.

Trading liabilities and financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised on the trade date. Deposits that are not
trading liabilities are recognised when money is received from customers,
other liabilities are recognised when such obligations arise. Financial
liabilities are derecognised from the statement of financial position when
and only when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. If the Group purchases its own debt, it is removed
from the statement of financial position, and the difference between the
carrying amount of a liability and the consideration paid is included in net
trading gain/loss.

Securities and bills sold to a counterparty with an obligation to repurchase
at a pre-determined price on a specified future date under a repurchase
agreement are referred to as repos. Securities and bills purchased from a
counterparty with an obligation to re-sell to the counterparty at a
pre-determined price on a specified future date under a resale agreement
are referred to as reverse repos.

Repos or securities lending are initially recorded as due to banks,
placements from banks and other financial institutions, as appropriate, at
the actual amount of cash received from the counterparty. Financial
assets given as collateral for repurchase agreements are not
derecognised and are recorded as investment in securities or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Reverse repos or securities
borrowing are initially recorded in the statement of financial position as
cash and due from banks or placements with banks and other financial
institutions, as appropriate, at the actual amount of cash paid to the
counterparty. Financial assets received as collateral under reverse
repurchase agreements are not recognised on the statement of financial
position. The difference between sale and repurchase price is recognised
as interest income or interest expense over the life of the agreements
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.12 Fair value measurement

The Group measures its premises and investment properties, precious
metals and certain financial instruments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in its principal market or the most advantageous

market accessible by the Group at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

If the market for assets or liabilities is not active, the Group uses valuation
including the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation
techniqgues commonly used by market participants, that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

techniques,

minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

2.13 Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold, silver and other precious metals.
Precious metals are initially recognised and subsequently re-measured at
fair value. Mark-to-market gains or losses on precious metals are

included in net trading gain/loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses as at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event’) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the reliably estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets. Objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets may be impaired includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about the
following probable loss events:

0]
(i)
(iii)

(v)
v

(vi)

(@)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payment;

the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;

the disappearance of an active market or downgrading below
investment grade level for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; or

observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows from a group of financial assets since the
initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet
be identified with the individual financial assets in the group,
including:

+ adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the group;
or

* national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
the assets in the group.

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant. If
the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment together with all other
financial assets that are not individually significant or for which
impairment has not yet been identified. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or
continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(1) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity securities has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred),
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity security has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is
the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis
of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows
of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that may
result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the
collateral.

For the purposes of a collective assessment of impairment, financial
assets are grouped on the basis of similar and relevant credit risk
characteristics. Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of
future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the
debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual
terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively
evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of the contractual
cash flows of the assets in the group and historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group.
Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current
observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not
affect the period on which the historical loss experience is based and
to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not
exist currently.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(1) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related
allowance for impairment losses. Such loans are written off after all
the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of
the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off decrease the amount of impairment losses in the
income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of allowance for impairment
losses decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognised
impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is reversed by adjusting
the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in
the income statement.

Loans whose terms have been renegotiated with substantial
difference in the terms are no longer considered to be past due but are
treated as new loans.

(2) Assets classified as available-for-sale

If evidence of impairment exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the accumulated losses, measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost or amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the
income statement, is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost is considered in determining whether the
assets are impaired. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in the income statement, the impairment loss to
the extent of its decrease is reversed through the income statement.
With respect to equity instruments, further fair value changes are
recognised in the reserve for fair value change of available-for-sale
securities through other comprehensive income, impairment losses
are not reversed through the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.15 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Potential indications of impairment may include significant adverse
changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment in
which the assets operate or whether there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in value below their cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset'’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash
generating units). Assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, impairment testing of the
investment in a subsidiary is also required upon receiving dividend from
that entity if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of that
entity concerned in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of that entity in the Bank’s statement of financial position exceeds
the carrying amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in its
consolidated statement of financial position.

2.16 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the companies in the
Group, are classified as investment properties. Properties leased out
within Group companies are classified as investment properties in
individual companies’ financial statements and as premises in
consolidated financial statements. Land held under operating lease is
classified and accounted for as investment property when the rest of the
definition of investment property is met. The operating lease is accounted
for as if it is a finance lease.

Investment properties are recognised initially at cost, including related

transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.16 Investment properties (continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The item is stated at cost less impairment and is included in the carrying
amount of investment properties. Once the item begins to generate
economic benefits, it is then measured at fair value. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as
premises, and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost
for accounting purposes. If an item of premises becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income as a revaluation of premises
under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”. However, if a fair value
gain reverses a previous revaluation loss or impairment loss, the gain is
recognised in the income statement up to the amount previously debited.

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties are mainly branches and office premises. Premises are stated
at fair value based on periodic, at least annually, valuations by external
independent valuers less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset
and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. In the
intervening periods, the directors review the carrying amount of premises,
by reference to the open market value of similar properties, and
adjustments are made when there has been a material change.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises are
credited to the premises revaluation reserve through other comprehensive
income. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same individual
asset are charged against premises revaluation reserve through other
comprehensive income; all other decreases are expensed in the income
statement. Any subsequent increases are credited to the income
statement up to the amount previously debited, and then to the premises
revaluation reserve. Upon disposal of premises, the relevant portion of the
premises revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
released and transferred from the premises revaluation reserve to retained
earnings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

All plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditures
that are directly attributable to the acquisition and installation of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’'s carrying amount or are
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The item is
stated at cost less impairment until it begins to generate economic
benefits, then the item is subsequently measured according to the
measurement basis of its respective assets class. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down the
cost or revalued amount of such assets over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

* Properties
* Plant and equipment

Over the life of government land leases
2 to 15 years

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, as at
the end of each reporting period.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and external sources of
information are considered to determine whether there is any indication
that properties, plant and equipment, are impaired. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and where
relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its
recoverable amount. Such an impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement except where the asset is carried at valuation and the
impairment loss does not exceed the revaluation surplus for that same
asset, in which case it is treated as a revaluation decrease. The
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. Impairment loss is reversed through the premises
revaluation reserve or the income statement as appropriate.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount, relevant taxes and
expenses. These are recognised in the income statement on the date of
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
revaluation reserve to retained earnings and is not reclassified to the
income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.18 Leases

(1) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. The total payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
Contingent rental payable is recognised as expense in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has
expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of
penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination
takes place. Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

(2) Finance leases

Leases of assets where lessee have obtained substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Government land leases in Hong Kong are classified as finance leases
as the present value of the minimum lease payments (i.e. transaction
price) of the land amounted to substantially all of the fair value of the
land as if it were freehold.

Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the
lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on
the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, are included in other liabilities. Investment
properties acquired under finance leases are carried at their fair value.

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value
of the lease payments is recognised as a receivable. Lease income is
recognised over the term of the lease using net investment method,
which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with original maturity less than three
months from the date of acquisition, including cash, balances with banks
and other financial institutions, short-term bills and notes classified as
investment securities and certificates of deposit.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
can be made.

2.21 Employee benefits

(1) Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes
under either recognised ORSO schemes or MPF schemes that are
available to the Group’s employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of
employees’ basic salaries for the ORSO schemes and in accordance
with the MPF rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit scheme
costs are charged to the income statement as incurred and represent
contributions payable by the Group to the schemes. Contributions
made by the Group that are forfeited by those employees who leave
the ORSO scheme prior to the full vesting of their entitement to the
contributions are used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contributions or to meet its expenses under the trust deed of the
ORSO schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-administered
funds separate from those of the Group.

(2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for unused annual leave and the amount of sick leave
expected to be paid as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the end of the reporting period.

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special approved
annual leaves are non-accumulating; they lapse if the current period's
entitlement is not used in full. Except for unexpired annual leaves,
they do not entitle employees to a cash payment for unused
entitlement on leaving the Group.

(3) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus plans that are
expected to be settled longer than twelve months will be discounted if
the amounts are significant.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income taxes

Tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised directly in other comprehensive income. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law enacted or
substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period in each jurisdiction
where the Bank and the subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income, is recognised as a current income tax expense in the period in
which profits arise.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment
provisions, depreciation of premises and equipment, and revaluation of
certain assets including available-for-sale securities and premises.
However, the deferred income tax is not recognised if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred income tax assets are recognised on all deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of any unused tax credits and
unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income statement except
for deferred income tax relating to fair value re-measurement of
available-for-sale securities and revaluation of premises which are
charged or credited to other comprehensive income, in which case the
deferred income tax is also credited or charged to other comprehensive
income and is subsequently recognised in the income statement together
with the realisation of the deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from investment property
is determined based on the presumption that the revaluation amount of
such investment property will be recovered through sale with the relevant
tax rate applied.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.23 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their fair value
less costs to sell and the amortised cost of the related outstanding loans
on the date of repossession, and the related loans and advances together
with the related impairment allowances are derecognised from the
statement of financial position. Subsequently, repossessed assets are
measured at the lower of their cost and fair values less costs to sell and
are reported as “non-current assets held for sale” included in “Other
assets”.

2.24 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary capacities,
that result in its holding or managing assets on behalf of individuals, trusts
and other institutions. These assets and any gains or losses arising
thereon are excluded from these financial statements, as they are not
assets of the Group.

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confimed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When the inflow is virtually certain, it will be recognised as an asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.26 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be
related to the Group if:

@

(b)

a person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the
Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or
the Group’s parent.

an entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions

applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or

an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the

other entity is a member).

(iii)

Both entities are joint venture of the same third party.
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group.
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified
in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or to
the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.
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accounting policies

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next reporting period. Estimates and
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Areas susceptible to changes in essential
estimates and judgements, which affect the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities, are set out below. It is possible that actual results may require
material adjustments to the estimates referred to below.

3.1

3.2

Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at least on a
quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss should be
recorded in the income statement, the Group makes judgements as to
whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans and
advances before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan in
that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that
there has been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a
group (e.g. payment delinquency or default), or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on assets in the group. The Management uses
estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
portfolio when estimating expected future cash flows. The methodology
and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future
cash flows are reviewed regularly.

Carrying amounts of loans and advances as at 31 December 2017 are
shown in Note 22.

Impairment of held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities
The Group reviews its held-to-maturity and available-for-sale investment

o it ER A A AR E IR i portfolios to assess impairment at least on a quarterly basis. In
T—EHE - WA EZEREEERY determining whether any of these investments is impaired, risk

BURE RS & 5l F b i B =&
B> FIHOSMNERS FHRPER K T 5 fE -
FEEG SR FESITIGR -
ST AR E RIS - MBI EER
B~ B A E R R AR
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characteristics and performance such as external credit rating and market
price, will be assessed. The Group makes estimates on the default rate
and loss severity of each investment with reference to market
performance of the portfolios, current payment status of the issuers or
performance of the underlying assets, or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the collateralised assets. The methodology and
assumptions used for impairment assessments are reviewed regularly.

Carrying amounts of investment in securities as at 31 December 2017 are
shown in Note 24.
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Fair values of derivative financial instruments

The fair values of derivative financial instruments that are not quoted in
active markets are determined by using valuation techniques. Valuation
techniques used include discounted cash flows analysis and models with
built-in functions available in externally acquired financial analysis or risk
management systems widely used by the industry such as option pricing
models. To the extent practical, the models use observable data. In
addition, valuation adjustments may be adopted if factors such as credit
risk are not considered in the valuation models. Management judgement
and estimates are required for the selection of appropriate valuation
parameters, assumptions and modeling techniques. Further details will
be discussed in Note 5.

Carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments as at 31 December
2017 are shown in Note 21.

Held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 in classifying certain
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity as held-to-maturity securities. This classification requires
significant management judgement to evaluate the Group’s intention and
ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to hold these
investments to maturity other than for specific circumstances defined in
HKAS 39, such as selling an insignificant amount, selling close to maturity
or due to significant credit deterioration of such investments, it will be
required to reclassify the entire portfolio of financial assets as
available-for-sale securities. The investments would then be measured at
fair value and not amortised cost.

Carrying amounts of held-to-maturity securities as at 31 December 2017
are shown in Note 24.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses and impairment allowances are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level
of future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets on unused tax credits are recognised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the estimation of available
tax credits and the possibility to recover such deferred tax assets
recognised.
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The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of engaging in a variety of
business activities. The principal financial risks are credit risk, market risk
(including currency risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. This note
summarises the Group’s exposures to these risks, as well as its objectives, risk
management governance structure, policies and processes for managing and the
methods used to measure these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Group’s risk management governance structure is designed to cover all
business processes and ensures various risks are properly managed and
controlled in the course of conducting business. The Group has a robust risk
management organisational structure with a comprehensive set of policies and
procedures to identify, measure, monitor and control various risks that may arise.
These risk management policies and procedures are regularly reviewed and
updated to reflect changes in markets and business strategies. Various groups of
risk takers assume their respective responsibilities for risk management.

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of shareholders, is the highest
decision-making authority of the Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk
management. The Board, with the assistance of its committees, has the primary
responsibility for the formulation of risk management strategies and ensuring that
the Group has an effective risk management system to implement these
strategies.

The Risk Management Committee (“RC”), a standing committee established by
the Board of Directors, is responsible for overseeing the Group’s various types of
risks, approving Level | risk management policies and monitoring their
implementation, reviewing significant or high risk exposures or transactions (other
than credit transactions) and exercising its power of veto if it considers that any
transaction should not proceed. The Executive Committee (“EC”) is responsible
for approving credit transactions exceeding Chief Executive (“CE”) ‘s authority.
The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its role in overseeing the
internal control system.

The Chief Executive (“CE”) is responsible for managing the Group’s various types
of risks, and material risk exposures or transactions within his authority delegated
by the Board of Directors. General Manager assists the CE in managing the
Group’s various types of risks, and approving material risk exposures or
transactions within his authority. With the support from Risk Management
Department (“RMD”) and Financial Management Department (“FMD”), the Deputy
General Manager assists the CE in fulfilling his responsibilities for the day-to-day
management of risks and initiating new risk management strategies, projects and
measures that will enable the Group to better monitor and manage new risk issues
or areas that may arise from time to time from new businesses, products and
changes in the operating environment. He will also take appropriate initiatives in
response to regulatory changes. The Deputy General Manager and the Head of
RMD are also responsible for reviewing material risk exposures or transactions
within their delegated authority. In accordance with the principle of setting the
hierarchy of risk management policies approved by the Board, Senior
Management are also responsible for approving the detailed risk management
policies of their responsible areas.

Various units of the Group have their respective risk management responsibilities.
Business units act as the first line of defence while risk management units, which
are independent from the business units, are responsible for the day-to-day
management of different kinds of risks. Risk management units have the primary
responsibilities for drafting, reviewing and updating various risk management
policies and procedures.
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Financial risk management framework (continued)

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control systems, including
establishment of an organisation structure that sets clear lines of authority and
responsibility for monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.
Proper reporting lines also provide sufficient independence of the control functions
from the business areas, as well as adequate segregation of duties throughout the
organisation which helps to promote an appropriate internal control environment.

Product development and risk monitoring

To ensure the effectiveness of risk assessment and monitoring, the Group has a
comprehensive product development and risk monitoring system where roles and
responsibilities of all related units are clearly defined and proper due diligence
processes on product development are in place.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the Board and the Management,
respective product management units are responsible for formulating business
and product development plans, and proceeding to specific product development
activities. The department of strategic development shall ensure the plans are
aligned with the Group’s overall strategies. Departments that are responsible for
risk management, legal, compliance and finance etc. are accountable for risk
assessment and review.

Apart from product development, respective product management units shall work
closely with relevant risk evaluating departments to identify and assess the risks of
new products. Risk evaluating departments shall conduct independent review on
the risk assessment results and the corresponding risk management measures.
Products can only be launched upon completion of the product due diligence
process to the satisfaction of all risk evaluating departments and approval from
designated unit heads/the Management.

4.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is unable to or
unwilling to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the trading
book and banking book, as well as from on- and off-balance sheet
transactions of the Group. It arises principally from lending, trade finance and
treasury businesses.

Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk management
policies and procedures, and appropriate credit risk limits to manage and
control credit risk that may arise. These policies, procedures and credit risk
limits are regularly reviewed and updated to cope with changes in market
conditions and business strategies.

The Group’s organisation structure establishes a clear set of authority and
responsibility for monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.
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Credit risk management framework (continued)

The Head of RMD is responsible for credit risk management with
assistance from Credit Risk Management. Various units of the Group
have their respective credit risk management responsibilities. Business
units act as the first line of defence. The RMD, which is independent from
the business units, is responsible for the day-to-day management of credit
risks and has the primary responsibility for providing an independent due
diligence through identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling credit
risk to ensure an effective checks and balances, as well as drafting,
reviewing and updating credit risk management policies and procedures.

The Board of Directors delegates credit approval authority to the CE. The
CE can further delegate to the subordinates within his limit authorised by
the Board of Directors. The Group sets the limits of credit approval authority
according to the credit business nature, rating, the level of transaction risk,
and the extent of the credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group has been
continuously revisiting its credit strategies and conducting rigorous reviews
on the concerned portfolios.

Advances

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted according to
the level of risk associated with the customer, counterparty or transaction.
The Credit Risk Assessment Committee, comprising experts from credit
and other functions, is responsible for making an independent assessment
of material credit applications. Credit applications for non-retail exposures
are independently reviewed and objectively assessed by risk management
units. Obligor ratings (in terms of probability of default) and facility ratings
(in terms of loss given default) are assigned to these portfolios to support
credit approval. Retail internal rating systems are deployed in the risk
assessment of retail credit transactions, including small business retail
exposures, residential mortgage loans and personal loans. Loan grades,
obligor and facility ratings as well as loss estimates (if applicable) are used
to support credit approval.

The Group also uses loan grades, obligor ratings and loss estimates (if
applicable) to support credit monitoring, reporting and analysis of credit risk
information. For non-retail exposures, more frequent rating review and
closer monitoring are required for higher-risk customers. For retail
exposures, monthly updated internal ratings and loss estimates are used
for credit monitoring on a portfolio basis. More comprehensive review is
required for obligors being identified under high-risk pools.

The Group employs an internal master rating scale that can be mapped to
Standard & Poor’s external credit ratings. The structure of internal master
rating scale is in compliance with the requirement of the Banking (Capital)
Rules under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Advances (continued)

Credit Risk Management provides regular credit management information
reports and ad hoc reports to the RC and Board of Directors to facilitate their
continuous monitoring of credit risk.

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry,
geography, customer and counterparty. The Group monitors changes to
counterparty credit risk, quality of the credit portfolio and credit risk
concentrations, and reports regularly to the Group’s Management.

The Group adopts loan grading criteria which divides credit assets into five
categories with reference to the HKMA'’s guidelines, as below:

“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is current in meeting its
repayment obligations and full repayment of interest and principal is not in
doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is experiencing
difficulties which may threaten the Group’s position. Ultimate loss is not
expected at this stage but could occur if adverse conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays a definable
weakness that is likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is improbable and the
Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking into
account the net realisable value of the collateral.

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible after all collection
options (such as the realisation of collateral or the institution of legal
proceedings) have been exhausted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Debt securities and derivatives

For investments in debt securities, the obligor ratings or external credit
ratings, assessment of the underlying assets and credit limits setting on
customer/security issuer basis are used for managing credit risk associated
with the investment. For derivatives, the Group sets customer limits to
manage the credit risk involved and follows the same approval and control
processes as applied for advances. Ongoing monitoring and stop-loss
procedures are established.

Settlement risk arises mainly from foreign exchange transactions with
counterparties and also from derivatives transactions in any situation where a
payment in cash, securities or equities is made in the expectation of a
corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily settlement limits
are established for each counterparty or customer to cover all settlement risk
arising from the Group’s market transactions on any single day.

Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been documented in the
credit risk management policies and procedures which cover acceptance
criteria, validity of collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut ratio, valuation and
insurance, etc. The collateral is revalued on a regular basis, though the
frequency and the method used varies with the type of collateral involved and
the nature and the risk of the underlying credit. The Group has established a
mechanism to update the value of its main type of collateral, real estate
properties, with the use of public indices on a portfolio basis. Collateral is
insured with the Group as the beneficiary. In the personal sector, the main
types of collateral are real estate properties, cash deposits and securities. In
the commercial and industrial sector, the main types of collateral are real
estate properties, securities, receivables, cash deposits and machinery.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group will assess the guarantor’s
financial condition, credit history and ability to meet obligations.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not hold any collateral that it was
permitted to sell or re-pledge in the absence of default by the borrower (2016:
Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

A. Credit exposures

The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario of exposure to the
Group without taking into account any collateral held or other credit
enhancements. For on-balance sheet assets, the maximum exposure to credit
risk equals their carrying amount. For letters of guarantee issued, the maximum
exposure to credit risk is the maximum amount that the Group could be required
to pay if the guarantees are called upon. For loan commitment and other credit
related liabilities, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the full amount of the
committed facilities.

The nature of the collateral held and other credit enhancements and their
financial effect to the different classes of the Group’s financial assets are as
follows.

Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

These exposures are generally considered to be low risk due to the nature of the
counterparties. Collateral is generally not sought on these assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and investment in securities

Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.

Derivative financial instruments

The Master Agreement published by the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association, Inc. (ISDA Master Agreement”) is the preferred agreement for
documenting derivatives activities of the Group. It provides the contractual
framework under which dealing activities of over-the-counter (“OTC”)
transactions are conducted, and sets out close-out netting provisions upon
termination following the occurrence of an event of default or a termination event.
In addition, if deemed necessary, Credit Support Annex ("CSA") will be included
to form part of the Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement. Under a CSA,
collateral is passed from one counterparty to another, as appropriate, to mitigate
the exposures.

Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments

The general types of collateral are disclosed on page 80. Advances and other
accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments are collateralised to the extent
considered appropriate by the Group taking account of the risk assessment of
individual exposures. The collateral coverage of advances to customers is
analysed on pages 91 to 92. The components and nature of contingent liabilities
and commitments are disclosed in Note 34. Regarding the commitments that are
unconditionally cancellable without prior notice, the Group would assess the
necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality of a borrower
deteriorates. For contingent liabilities and commitments, 32.84% (2016: 36.14%)
is covered by collateral as at 31 December 2017.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts

Gross advances and other
summarised by product type as follows:

Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages
- Others
Corporate
- Commercial loans
- Trade finance

Trade bills

82

accounts before

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

impairment allowances are

2017 2016
BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
3,131,138 2,707,429
4,209,836 3,224,061
34,226,994 24,331,694
715,393 504,960
42,283,361 30,768,144
1,017,463 592,098
43,300,824 31,360,242
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue when the principal
or interest is past due and remains unpaid. Advances repayable by regular instalments
are classified as overdue when an instalment payment is past due and remains unpaid.
Advances repayable on demand are classified as overdue either when a demand for
repayment has been served on the borrower but repayment has not been made in
accordance with the instruction or when the advances have remained continuously
exceeded the approved limit that was advised to the borrower.

Advances are impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred and
that loss event(s) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the advances
that can be reliably estimated.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on advances has been incurred,
the amount of loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows generated by the advances. Objective
evidence that advances are impaired includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about the loss events.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an
impairment loss include:

- Significant financial difficulty incurred by the borrower;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in principal or interest
payment;

- For economic or legal reasons related to the borrower’s financial difficulty, the Group
has granted to the borrower a concession that it would not otherwise consider;

- Probable that the borrower will become bankrupt or undergo other financial
reorganisation; or

- Other observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows from such advances.
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Advances neither overdue nor impaired

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Advances that were neither overdue nor impaired are analysed by internal credit

grade as follows:

2017
= TERE REEEEAT T
Special Substandard
Pass mention or below Total
AT AT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 3,124,385 4,040 - 3,128,425
- Others 4,127,444 3,311 108 4,130,863
Corporate
- Commercial loans 33,929,629 85,293 - 34,014,922
- Trade finance 701,344 - - 701,344
41,882,802 92,644 108 41,975,554
Trade bills 1,017,463 - - 1,017,463
42,900,265 92,644 108 42,993,017
2016
= TRERE REPELLT HEEt
Special Substandard
Pass mention or below Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 2,692,219 9,343 48 2,701,610
- Others 3,185,086 2,119 - 3,187,205
Corporate
- Commercial loans 24,049,785 112,396 - 24,162,181
- Trade finance 460,867 3,776 - 464,643
30,387,957 127,634 48 30,515,639
Trade bills 592,098 - - 592,098
30,980,055 127,634 48 31,107,737

The occurrence of loss event(s) may not necessarily result in impairment loss
where the advances are fully collateralised. While such advances are of
“substandard” or lower grades, they are regarded as not being impaired and have

been included in the above tables.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(b) Advances overdue but not impaired

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

The gross amount of advances overdue but not impaired is analysed as follows:

2017
A AR
#H 3{ER 3{EAE 6 EAHE A
BT  FE#6MEA FEBALE iy D T
Overdue Overdue for Overdue
for six months for one Overdue
three or less year or less for
months or but over but over over one
less three months  six months year Total
AT EWETIT AT AWETIT ARTIT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 2,713 - - - 2,713
- Others 77,820 - - 1,153 78,973
Corporate
- Commercial loans 27,182 - - - 27,182
- Trade finance - - - - -
107,715 - - 1,153 108,868
Trade bills - - - - -
107,715 - - 1,153 108,868
2016
pind iy e HEREE
#iA 3 H 3{EAE 6 MAHE biinf L
LN fEmeEA AHEMELF i 1A HEEt
Overdue Overdue for Overdue
for six months for one Overdue
three orless year orless for
months or but over but over over one
less three months six months year Total
BT BT HAMETIT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 5,819 - - - 5,819
- Others 35,613 151 - 1,092 36,856
Corporate
- Commercial loans 17,266 11,508 - 3,205 31,979
- Trade finance 762 - - - 762
59,460 11,659 - 4,297 75,416
Trade bills - - - - -
59,460 11,659 - 4,297 75,416
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(c) REEK (c) Impaired advances
M Al AR Sk Advances individually identified to be impaired are analysed by product type as
SERIATAT follows:
2017 2016
B BRETE HEEL iR ETE
Market Market
Gross value of Gross value of
advances collateral advances collateral
AT BETIT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
HEEER Advances to customers
A Personal
- 1445 - Mortgages - - - -
- HAth - Others - - - -
ALl ] Corporate
- BREGK - Commercial loans 184,890 344,565 137,534 271,527
- HERE - Trade finance 14,049 18,090 39,555 16,408
198,939 362,655 177,089 287,935
kbt & OUE 2 RE Impairment allowances
HE made in respect of
such advances 70,115 83,408
2017 2016
AT HAIETIT
HK$°000 HK$ 000
o it R EENE Current market value of collateral held
PEE ST {E against the covered portion of such
advances to customers 362,655 287,935
FitERPREE S EE Covered portion of such advances to
£ customers 193,725 144,982
PG HEIRM R EE X Uncovered portion of such advances to
FEE customers 5,214 32,107

TREAEF TS AR
AP EEAE -

742017 4212 H 31 H »
HAHMEZE SRR
(2016 £ : fi) -

The impairment allowances were made after taking into account the value of

collateral in respect of such advances.

As at 31 December 2017, there were no impaired trade bills (2016: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(c) Impaired advances (continued)

Classified or impaired advances to customers are analysed as follows:

2017 2016
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Gross classified or impaired advances to
customers 200,201 193,093
Gross classified or impaired advances to
customers as a percentage of gross
advances to customers 0.47% 0.63%
Individually assessed impairment allowances
made in respect of such advances 70,115 83,408

Classified or impaired advances to customers represent advances which are
either classified as “substandard”, “doubtful” or “loss” under the Group’s
classification of loan quality, or individually assessed to be impaired.
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(d) Advances overdue for more than three months

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three months is analysed as

follows:

Gross advances to
customers which have
been overdue for:

- six months or less but
over three months

- one year or less but
over six months

- over one year

Advances overdue for over
three months

Individually assessed
impairment allowances
made in respect of such
advances

88

2017

2016

&H

EEFERK
SR
% of gross
advances to

(9= =¥ /¢
HEHE R
% of gross
advances to

B

Amount customers Amount customers
AT HAETIT
HK$°000 HK$'000
32,012 0.07% 13,817 0.04%
325 0.00% - 0.00%
44,952 0.10% 42,470 0.14%
77,289 0.17% 56,287 0.18%
20,014 7,643



LI N § ]
: 4 AT
Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

BRI (8D

4. CREREE (8)

41 EEER (8
B. 4R HEAIEE (&)

(d) ‘g 3 ER ZEK
(&

HE AR E SR
P B A T E

AR E T A

FHCZ AR EE
FEK

S B SR E BRI
i ERAEAFEREF
TH TR B A AR 2 K
ETHTEAREFHT
HETIEREYIE -

FA2017 412 H 31 H 3%
AmiEE 3 ERZES
5% (2016 4« fiE)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(d) Advances overdue for more than three months (continued)

2017 2016
AT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000
Current market value of collateral held
against the covered portion of such
advances to customers 108,507 92,764
Covered portion of such advances to
customers 72,524 50,680
Uncovered portion of such advances to
customers 4,765 5,607

Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is principally represented by
charges over business assets such as commercial and residential premises for
corporate loans and mortgages over residential properties for personal loans.

As at 31 December 2017, there were no trade bills overdue for more than three
months (2016: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(e) Rescheduled advances

2017 2016
fEZ FERK % P EER
&8 SEEEE L &H WEESL
% of gross % of gross
advances to advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Rescheduled advances
to customers net of
amounts included in
“Advances overdue
for more than three
months” 107,972 0.25% 110,107 0.36%

Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been restructured or
renegotiated because of deterioration in the financial position of the borrower or of the
inability of the borrower to meet the original repayment schedule. Rescheduled
advances, which have been overdue for more than three months under the revised
repayment terms, are included in “Advances overdue for more than three months”.
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

LURBRIN 2 P B
BT
HITENET2REA
R BN &8
[R R B R R R T

The following analysis of the gross advances to customers by industry sector is
based on the categories with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA
return of loans and advances.

Hrd o
2017
AR A
BAESE RENHE EREHMEr  EEFFHEZ
TR ZHES BRR{E #H BEREE BAEREE
Gross % covered by Individually  Collectively
advances collateral Classified assessed assessed
to or other or impairment  impairment
customers security impaired Overdue allowances  allowances
AT EHTT A¥TT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
B &85 Loans for use in Hong Kong
TREeRcE Industrial, commercial and
financial
- Yk - Property development 3,211,855 51.01% - - - 17,056
- VBB - Property investment 3,733,127 98.56% - 11,298 - 15,300
- BRlsE - Financial concerns 1,893,717 34.69% - - - 9,584
- BEERAD - Stockbrokers 872,019 10.00% - - - 4,540
- ftEs R e - Wholesale and retail
trade 1,740,306 82.88% - 12,211 - 8,074
- Sl - Manufacturing 2,870,953 20.26% - 3,308 - 14,240
- A R - Transport and transport
equipment 1,778,285 32.64% - - - 9,457
- (RIHDEED - Recreational activities 17,209 100.00% - - - 67
- EalRHL - Information technology 483,175 2.50% - - - 2,557
- Hith - Others 5,067,141 78.17% - 1,711 - 21,800
{EA Individuals
- e EE AR - Loans for the purchase of
NSRS flats in Home
B SR SUR Qumersip Scheme,
s e, rivate Sector
B2 Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase
Scheme 38,303 99.99% - - - 30
- EEHM YR - Loans for purchase of
2= other residential
properties 3,074,108 99.61% - 2,713 - 2,153
- HAth - Others 3,188,308 97.93% 108 74,208 - 2,378
TEE A EeasE Total loans for use in Hong
Kong 27,968,506 67.50% 108 105,449 - 107,236
AR Trade finance 715,393 54.54% 14,049 14,049 2,412 3,415
TEEALIIMER 2 S5 Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 13,599,462 46.95% 186,044 80,337 67,703 65,682
EAsi =il Gross advances to
customers 42,283,361 60.67% 200,201 199,835 70,115 176,333
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

A (8D

TERABE 2 &5
TREemcE

- Wk

- VBRRIYE

- R

- E R EEE

- B
- SRR
- FrHbED)
- R
- St
B
- BT R -
AT
S
M S5

- BEHM YRS
Bk

- Hfifl
TET{E B

R
TEBEABSNER 2 85K

BRI

Loans for use in Hong Kong

Industrial, commercial and
financial
- Property development
- Property investment
- Financial concerns
- Stockbrokers
- Wholesale and retail
trade
- Manufacturing

- Transport and transport

equipment
- Recreational activities
- Information technology
- Others

Individuals

- Loans for the purchase of

flats in Home
Ownership Scheme,
Private Sector

Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase

Scheme

- Loans for purchase of
other residential
properties

- Others

Total loans for use in Hong

Kong

Trade finance

Loans for use outside Hong

Kong

Gross advances to
customers

4. Financial risk management (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

2016
TR S ECH A

RS FESME EREHE 2 AT
AR ZHEtE B it} B R B
Gross % covered Individually Collectively
advances by collateral Classified d a d
to or other or impairment impairment
customers security impaired Overdue  allowances allowances
AT T BT T AT T BT AT I
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3,421,202 11.62% - - - 21,512
3,712,582 98.80% 11,508 11,961 - 15,340
944,258 7.21% - - - 5,901
504,555 12.74% - - - 3,311
1,554,323 79.11% - 16,719 - 6,854
1,441,421 40.73% - 2,013 - 7,786
1,524,273 42.27% - - - 9,273
19,160 100.00% - - - 82
599,446 1.55% - - - 3,928
4,289,437 70.46% - 130 - 20,744
30,957 100.00% 48 - - 32
2,657,501 99.54% - 5,819 - 2,153
2,149,012 96.63% 151 30,815 - 1,841
22,848,127 63.30% 11,707 67,457 - 98,757
504,960 61.31% 39,555 34,949 28,106 2,493
7,415,057 41.32% 141,831 34,624 55,302 38,132
30,768,144 57.97% 193,093 137,030 83,408 139,382
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4. CREREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

() ZFEEERE (8)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(i) ETRSBZEFE
A (8D

PR as T s 2 Hr e
TRAEAER - R E M
SHREE o R E &

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

The amounts of new impairment allowances charged to the income statement, and
classified or impaired loans written off during the year are shown below:

AT
2017 2016
o W - WG E 7
FRERERE BORE R TR E R EWERIER e
New Classified or New Classified or
impairment impaired loans impairment impaired loans
allowances written off allowances written off
AT BT T AT T HBHETIT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEBFEH G Loans for use in Hong Kong
TRES R Industrial, commercial and
financial
- Wi - Property development - - 2,911 -
- VEEE - Property investment - - - R
- REE - Financial concerns 3,479 - 1,665 -
- s - Stockbrokers 1,160 - 1,525 -
- SR EEE - Wholesale and retail trade 1,233 - 20 3,462
- Bl - Manufacturing 6,095 - 997 991
- A R - Transport and transport
equipment 174 - 1,635 -
- PRHIEE - Recreational activities B . B B
- HERH - Information technology 11,650 13,708 2,770 -
- it - Others 996 - 5,456 59
{EA Individuals
- EEEEAHEE - Loans for the purchase of
N SRR flats in Home Ownership
B R E R Scheme, Private Sector
’F%?Z%*KA e Participation Scheme and
i Tenants Purchase Scheme - - - -
- MEEHM YR - Loans for purchase of other
£ residential properties R N 7 R
- Ffth - Others 780 290 708 469
TEEB{IE 2 SR Total loans for use in Hong Kong 25,567 13,998 17,694 4,981
H oA Trade finance 2,311 - 33,690 14,904
AEBHED YN B8 Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 46,233 30,165 20,168 2,095
ey Gross advances to customers 74,111 44,163 71,552 21,980
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MEEiaE ()  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. SRiEEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
B. #BEERHAEE (8) B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(f) EEESZERE (8B) (f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(i) EHBERIE2E (ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
FERRUEE
TR P ER L The following geographical analysis of advances to customers is based on the
PR 5 ) M R AR B locations of the counterparties, after taking into account the transfer of risk. For an
i%?ﬁiz}ﬁﬂfﬂt I advance to customer guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from the
L R B i % customer, the risk will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.
- GBRPER R
NP E B2 B A e
HA [E] > A b RS
FERAZ MY -
BEERRAEEE Gross advances to customers
2017 2016
BT BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
& Hong Kong 36,526,969 26,989,241
o B Y Mainland of China 3,853,528 2,427,290
HAth Others 1,902,864 1,351,613
42,283,361 30,768,144
REFEREEES Collectively assessed impairment
BEHE 2 REXE allowances in respect of the gross
advances to customers
2017 2016
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
ik Hong Kong 150,158 121,444
o [=] A Mainland of China 17,023 10,343
HAtr Others 9,152 7,595
176,333 139,382
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. CREREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEER (8
B. 4R HEAIEE (&)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

() EFEFEHE (8
(i EHEBHSEZE

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

FER AR (8D

BHAEEK Overdue advances

2017 2016
T AERETIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
a5 Hong Kong 91,739 50,432
o R A HE Mainland of China 106,201 73,398
HoA Others 1,895 13,200
199,835 137,030

LA SR E R IR Individually assessed impairment

i BAEEEH allowances in respect of the
overdue advances

2017 2016
BT HERETTT
HK$’000 HK$’000
i Hong Kong - .
oA A HE Mainland of China 23,736 18,247
HAth Others 292 10,671
24,028 28,918

PSSR EE SR Collectively assessed impairment

y p
fhEZ BRIEREH allowances in respect of the
overdue advances

2017 2016
BT HERTT
HK$’000 HK$’000
e Hong Kong 392 368
o [e] AT Mainland of China 868 45
HAth Others _ 1
1,260 414
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. CREREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEER (8
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

() EFEFEHE (8
(i EHEBHSEZE

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

FER AR (8D

REESEERESR Classified or impaired advances
2017 2016
BT T T
HK$°000 HK$'000
EE Hong Kong 108 11,707
o [5] AT Mainland of China 198,198 166,361
H Others 1,895 15,025
200,201 193,093
RS ERBES Individually assessed impairment
FRAE (B FIEEAS 2 38 allowances in respect of the
B classified or impaired advances
2017 2016
AT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
e Hong Kong - _
o [57] AT Mainland of China 69,823 70,055
HoAth Others 292 13,353
70,115 83,408
MR ESERBESR Collectively assessed impairment
RAEH GTE Z B allowances in respect of the
{HEH classified or impaired advances
2017 2016
AT IT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
i Hong Kong 108 172
B 3 Mainland of China 1 14
HoAth Others - .
109 186
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

C. Repossessed assets

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

There were no repossessed assets held by the Group as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
Nil). The repossessed assets represent properties in respect of which the Group has
acquired access or control (e.g. through court proceedings or voluntary actions by the
proprietors concerned) for release in full or in part of the obligations of the borrowers.

D. Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

The following tables present an analysis of balances and placements with banks and
other financial institutions that are neither overdue nor impaired as at 31 December by

rating agency designation.

Central banks

Banks and other
financial institutions

Central banks

Banks and other
financial institutions

2017
Aaa & A3 A3 BIF AR #at
Lower than
Aaato A3 A3 Unrated Total
BT AT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
646,082 - - 646,082
14,296,095 2,196,722 753,905 17,246,722
14,942,177 2,196,722 753,905 17,892,804
2016
Aaa & A3 A3 DI SR st
Lower than
Aaa to A3 A3 Unrated Total
BT OBETT BNTIT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
323,646 - - 323,646
5,100,781 496,937 205,409 5,803,127
5,424,427 496,937 205,409 6,126,773

As at 31 December 2017, there were no overdue or impaired balances and
placements with banks and other financial institutions (2016: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Debt securities and certificates of deposit

The following tables present an analysis of the carrying value of debt securities and

certificates of deposit by issue rating. In the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings

designated for the issuers are reported.

2017
Aaa Aal & Aa3 Al & A3 A3 MT TEPAR &st
Lower
Aaa AaltoAa3 AltoA3 than A3 Unrated Total
AT AT BETIT BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Available-for-sale
securities 3,833,534 2,900,793 8,294,149 3,708,085 1,183,957 19,920,518
Loans and receivables - - - - - -
Financial assets
designated at fair
value through profit
or loss - - 155,638 39,674 16,913 212,225
3,833,534 2,900,793 8,449,787 3,747,759 1,200,870 20,132,743
2016
Aaa Aal & Aa3 A1 A3 A3 DT frEETAR dst
Lower
Aaa  AaltoAa3 Al to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
AT T AT EWTIT B¥TT BTt BN TT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Available-for-sale
securities 2,668,929 3,419,158 4,210,807 1,999,824 552,397 12,851,115
Loans and receivables - 381,440 149,882 - - 531,322
Financial assets
designated at fair
value through profit
or loss - - 78,793 392,383 182,767 653,943
2,668,929 3,800,598 4,439,482 2,392,207 735,164 14,036,380

As at 31 December 2017, there were no overdue or impaired debt securities and

certificates of deposit (2016: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions held by the Group due to
the volatility of financial market price (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity
price, commodity price). The Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to
achieve a balance between risk and return. The Group's objective in managing
market risk is to secure healthy growth of the treasury business, by effective
management of potential market risk in the Group's business, according to the
Group's overall risk appetite and strategy of treasury business on the basis of a well-
established risk management regime and related management measures.

In accordance with the Group’s corporate governance principles in respect of risk
management, the Board and RC, senior management and functional
departments/units perform their duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s
market risk. FMD is mainly responsible for managing market risk, assisting senior
management to perform their day-to-day duties, independently monitoring the
market risk profile and compliance of management policies and limits of the Group,
and ensuring that the aggregate and individual market risks are within acceptable
levels.

The Group sets up market risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor and
control market risk. Major risk indicators and limits include but are not limited to VAR,
Stop Loss, Open Position, Stress Testing and Sensitivity Analysis etc. To meet
management requirements, major risk indicators and limits are classified into three
levels, and are approved by the RC, ALCO and the Head of FMD respectively.
Business units are required to conduct their business within approved market risk
indicators and limits.
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4. SREREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.2 SR (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
A EBE A. VAR

N EE [ B R 2 S — The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general market risks to the RC and
TR - 0 2 HA e R i v senior management on a periodic basis. The Group adopts a uniformed VAR
FETHNSEEHE A BSH calculation model, using a historical simulation approach and two years of historical
2 o REEERR RS — 0 R (E market data, to calculate the VAR of the Group over a one-day holding period with
ST > IF R S a 99% confidence level, and sets up the VAR limit of the Group.

LlBZ: 2 SRS EdE Ry
208 5158 99% EEAKFET
e 1 REFAIIRSEEEED
e B > s o A S A

EPREE -
T FEE A B — A TR The following table sets out the VAR for all general market risk exposure® of the
ARG - Group.
iy 25 25 25
F 12F31H REKE SSRE  PomE
Minimum  Maximum
At 31 for for Average for
Year December the year the year the year
AT BB TIT EETT AW TT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ST E b > E R E VAR for all market risk 2017 486 153 693 420
2016 527 289 548 511
PR 2 i i 2 JE (. VAR for foreign exchange risk 2017 486 153 693 420
2016 527 289 548 511
PSR VAR for interest rate risk 2017 - - - -
2016 - - - -
i Note:
LR /BLHE S B 45 18 14 bk 1 Ay JEL B 1. Structural FX positions have been excluded.
g -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

A. VAR (continued)

Although a valuable guide to market risk, VAR should always be viewed in

the context of its limitations. For example:

- the use of historical market data as a proxy for estimating future events
may not encompass all potential events, particularly those which are
extreme in nature;

- the use of a one-day holding period assumes that all positions can be
liquidated or hedged in one day. This may not fully reflect the market risk
arising at times of severe illiquidity, when a one-day holding period may
be insufficient to liquidate or hedge all positions fully;

- the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not take into
account losses that might occur beyond this level of confidence; and

- VAR is calculated on the basis of exposures outstanding at the close of
business and therefore does not necessarily reflect intra-day exposures.

The Group recognises these limitations by formulating stress test indicators
and limits to assess and manage the market risk uncovered by VAR. The
stress testing programme of the market risk includes sensitivity testing on
changes in risk factors with various degrees of severity, as well as scenario
analysis on historical events including the 1994 Bond Market Crash, 1997
Asian Financial Crisis and 2008 Financial Tsunami, etc.

B. Currency risk

The Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in major currencies,
particularly the HK dollar, the US dollar and Renminbi. To ensure the
currency risk exposure of the Group is kept to an acceptable level, risk limits
(e.g. Position and VAR limit) are used to serve as a monitoring tool.
Moreover, the Group seeks to minimise the gap between assets and
liabilities in the same currency. Foreign exchange contracts (e.g. FX swaps)
are usually used to manage FX risk associated with foreign
currency-denominated assets and liabilities.
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4.2 Market risk (continued)

B. Currency risk (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

The following is a summary of the Group’s major foreign currency exposures arising
from trading, non-trading and structural positions and is prepared with reference to the
completion instructions for the HKMA return of foreign currency position.

2017
BT TEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$

ESA ESAE G ot FEMT O ARW  HEisNg SMBeEE

New Others Total

us Euro Singapore Australian  Zealand foreign foreign

Dollars Dollars Dollars Dollars Renminbicurrencies currencies

WE&E Spot assets 24,534,774 329,468 763541 153,719 10,672,154 392518 36,855445

HEaE Spot liabilities (20,930,056)  (305,713) (965,005)  (340,842) (11,156,208)  (407,097) (34,113,965)

BIAE A Forward purchases 1,338,717 54,244 250,185 193353 1211121 422,032 3,469,652

EHAE H Forward sales (4,618,621)  (78,810) (47,349) (5.868)  (750,245)  (407,295) (5,908,188)
£/ (5 B8 Net long/(short)

position 324,814 (811) 1,372 362 (23,178) 158 302,944

“EREME AR Net structural position 1,940,694 881,697 - 2822301

2016
AT TEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$

eI Hit igE T FEETT AREE HAsNE  SNEELEEE

New Others Total

US Japanese Pound Australian  Zealand foreign foreign

Dollars Yen  Sterling Dollars Dollars Renminbi_currencies currencies

WE&ZE Spot assets 11,624,795 82,460 253338 909535 334,789 5,158,096 409,390 18,772,403

HEAE Spot liabilities (9,390,124)  (79,976) (244,038) (883,975) (336,571) (5078281) (451,916) (16,464,881)

IR A Forward purchases 358,917 61,904 3573 3,507 10,281 52,184 490,366

EHAE H Forward sales (2,127,697)  (64,743)  (13,149)  (26,337) (3,099)  (234,887) (9,464) (2,479,376)
£/ (5 B8 Net long/(short)

position 465,891 (355) (276) @77) (1,374)  (144,791) 194 318512

EREME AR Net structural position 790,791 790,791
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

C. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic value
arising from movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s
asset and liability positions. The Group’s interest rate risk exposures are
mainly structural. The major types of interest rate risk from structural
positions are:

- Repricing risk: mismatches in the maturity or repricing periods of assets
and liabilities that may affect net interest income;

- Basis risk: different pricing basis for different transactions resulting that
the yield on assets and cost of liabilities may change by different amounts
within the same repricing period;

- Yield curve risk: non-parallel shifts in the yield curve that may have an
adverse impact on net interest income or economic value; and

- Option risk: exercise of the options embedded in assets, liabilities or
off-balance sheet items that can cause a change in the cash flows of
assets and liabilities.

The Group’s risk management framework applies also to interest rate risk
management. The ALCO exercises its oversight of interest rate risk in
accordance with the “Banking Book Interest Rate Risk Management Policy”
approved by the RC. FMD is responsible for interest rate risk management.
With the cooperation of Treasury Division, FMD assists the ALCO to perform
day-to-day interest rate risk management. Its roles include, but are not
limited to, the formulation of management policies, selection of
methodologies, setting of risk indicators and limits, assessment of target
balance sheet, monitoring of the compliance with policies and limits, and
submission of interest rate risk management reports to the senior
management and RC, etc.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

C. Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group set out interest rate risk indicators and limits to identify, measure,
monitor and control interest rate risk. The indicators and limits include, but
are not limited to, repricing gap limits, basis risk, price value of a basis point
(“PVBP”), net interest income sensitivity ratio (“NII”), economic value
sensitivity ratio (“EV”), etc. The indicators and limits are classified into
different levels, which are approved by the RC, ALCO and the Head of FMD
accordingly. Risk-taking business units are required to conduct their
business within the boundary of the interest rate risk limits. Before launching
a new product or business in the banking book, the relevant departments are
required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the
assessment of underlying interest rate risk and consideration of the
adequacy of current risk monitoring mechanism. Any material impact on
interest rate risk noted during the risk assessment process will be submitted
to the RC for approval.

NIl and EV assess the impact of interest rate movement on the Group’s net
interest income and capital base. They are the Group’s key interest rate risk
indicators. The former assesses the impact of interest rate movement on net
interest income as a percentage to the projected net interest income for the
year. The latter assesses the impact of interest rate movement on economic
value (i.e. the net present value of cash-flows of assets, liabilities and
off-balance sheet items discounted using market interest rate) as a
percentage to the latest capital base. Limits are set by the RC on these two
indicators to monitor and control the Group’s banking book interest rate risk.

The Group uses scenario analyses and stress tests to assess the banking
book interest rate risk that the Group would face under adverse
circumstances. Scenario analyses and stress tests are also used to assess
the impact on net interest income and economic value arising from the
optionality of savings deposits and the prepayment of mortgage loans.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)
C. Interest rate risk (continued)

The tables below summarise the Group’s on-balance sheet exposure to interest rate
risk as at 31 December. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying
amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing date and maturity date.

) -

BE
JE B A RURTT I
HoAth R SieR

TESRTT e Fo At 5 RS
—E T {EANFER
TEHIFIL

REBUATEBLIA
s R

PHEEm TR

SR HA AR IR
SIFRE
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REYE

W - S50 Bkt
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HE)
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2017
—Z =z
—EAN =@E +=ER —ZHFE IEfFME TR Bt
Non-
Upto1l 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over 5 interest
month months months years years bearing Total
BETT BETT BT B%Tr BT B%TT A%t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Assets
Cash and balances with
banks and other financial
institutions 16,365,945 - - - - 922,018 17,287,963
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
maturing between one and
twelve months - 208,899 572,006 - - 780,905
Financial assets designated
at fair value through profit
or loss - - - - 212,225 212,225
Derivative financial
instruments - - - - - 129,146 129,146
Advances and other accounts 33,040,397 9,642,810 134,572 236,466 131 43,054,376
Investment in securities
- Available-for-sale securities 3,385,043 2,130,527 3,701,073 10,703,875 - 90,943 20,011,461
- Held-to-maturity securities - - - R R . B
- Loans and receivables - - - R R - _
Investment properties - - - - - 214,910 214,910
Properties, plant and
equipment - - - - - 1552,253 1,552,253
Other assets (including
deferred tax assets) 23 . . . . 845,669 845,692
Total assets 52,791,408 11,982,236 4,407,651 10,940,341 212,356 3,754,939 84,088,931
Liabilities
Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions (5,091,298)  (823,556) (1,631,637) (2,300,296) - (140,847) (9,987,634)
Derivative financial
instruments - - - - - (18,789) (18,789)
Deposits from customers (35,546,776) (11,652,831) (12,106,227) (1,132,773) - (2,840,830) (63,279,437)
Other accounts and
provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities) (129,043) - - - - (1,110,531) (1,239,574)
Total liabilities (40,767,117) (12,476,387) (13,737,864)  (3,433,069) - (4,110,997) (74,525,434)
Interest sensitivity gap 12,024,291 (494,151)  (9,330,213) 7,507,272 212,356  (356,058) 9,563,497
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4. SEpiEfEEHE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mgERE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
C. MI=Ek& (§&) C. Interest rate risk (continued)
2016
—MEAAN =& H +=AEA BAFE HEME TR dEst
Non-
Upto1l 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over 5 interest
month months months years years bearing Total

Ao BT BT BNTr BN Tor BT BT
HK$'000  HK$000  HKE000  HKE000  HK$O000  HKE000  HK$'000

BE Assets
JEEAFER <2 RAT USRI T R Cash and balances with
HAth SR RS 45 e banks and other financial
institutions 4,893,484 - - - - 380,887 5,274,371

TESRAT R Hofth S Bt Placements with banks and
—ZE+{JHHNEHI> other financial institutions

EHII maturing between one and
twelve months - 680,536 357,332 - - - 1,037,868
FUE B LI ES{EEE A Financial assets designated
B35 RS E at fair value through profit
or loss 432,133 165,862 39,043 16,905 - - 653,943
ST E Derivative financial
instruments - - - - - 99,435 99,435
IR LA R Advances and other accounts 26,116,549 4,166,630 119,906 733,117 614 636 31,137,452
EANE Investment in securities
- AR ERE - Available-for-sale securities 638,240 1,964,945  5807,257 4,440,673 - 5,239 12,856,354
- FE RTINS - Held-to-maturity securities R R R R R R _
- BRI EIGR - Loans and receivables 299,771 154,690 76,861 - - - 531,322
BB Investment properties - - - - - 203,860 203,860
YIS ~ PSR R Properties, plant and
equipment - - - - - 1,532,373 1,532,373
HAr&EE (FFEEERIE  Other assets (including
HE) deferred tax assets) 71 N N a a 735,210 735,281
BESEH Total assets 32,380,248 7,132,663 6,400,399 5,190,695 614 2,957,640 54,062,259
j=Ui= Liabilities
SRIT R HoAth Rt > Deposits and balances from
FE R4S R banks and other financial
institutions (203,683) (89,729) (638,280) - - (72,363)  (1,004,055)
e T A Derivative financial
instruments - - - - - (16,971) (16,971)
BEER Deposits from customers (28,613,844) (7,339,020)  (6,507,596) (66,708) - (2,910,452) (45,437,620)

HoAthBRTE K (BIFERERT  Other accounts and

FRE R R IR T A ) provisions (including
current and deferred tax

liabilities) (154,395) - - - - (618,959)  (773,354)
AR Total liabilities (28,971,922) (7,428,749)  (7,145,876) (66,708) - (3,618,745) (47,232,000)
FZ GRS R T Interest sensitivity gap 3,408,326 (296,086) (745,477) 5,123,987 614  (661,105) 6,830,259
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

D. Sensitivity analysis to market risk exposure of the Group

The Group is principally exposed to HK dollar, US dollar, and Renminbi in
terms of interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2017, if HK dollar, US dollar and
Renminbi market interest rates had a 100 basis point parallel upward shift of
the yield curve in relevant currency with other variables held constant, profit
before tax for the year would have been HK$50,000,000 (2016:
HK$25,500,000) higher. The impact on reserves would be insignificant. The
sensitivity analysis set out above is for illustration only.

Interest rate exposures in banking book

The following is a summary of possible effects of market interest rates shocks
on the Group’s interest rate exposure for major currencies in its banking book.
Subsidiaries are excluded from the analysis below:

12 B 31 HpE
Impact on positions
at 31 December

2017 2016
BFIAE Earnings perspective BETIT T
HRiEE Scenarios HK$°000 HK$'000
ATTEEE Hh 4R AT 1% 100 gL Up 100 basis points parallel shift in
HK dollar yield curves 86,000 40,500
22 S Hh 4P T 1% 100 FLEG Up 100 basis points parallel shift in
US dollar yield curves (59,500) (18,000)
NERH2E Q43 4T % 100 FEES Up 100 basis points parallel shift in
Renminbi yield curves 23,500 3,000

R T LA e B A
L\’ ek (ERRR) T
ﬂ?i& ﬁlﬁﬁ%ﬁ ﬁ?g DE’JPFHEEF

/Wf&*”?}_w?ﬂjﬁ %HZE’]?E%%
JE\Pget T8l ~ $P &AM
AR 2EIME Rl |
RETEHEENEITEHA
ARG HEIME Z Y E
PR e B K L R A
EFEASA AR Ry — o7 -

The sensitivities above are for illustration only and are based on several
assumptions, including, but not limited to, the change in the correlation
between interest rates of relevant currencies, parallel movement of interest
rates, the absence of actions that would be taken to mitigate the impact of
interest rate risk, the effectiveness of hedge accounting, all positions being
assumed to run to maturity, behavioural assumptions of products in which
actual repricing date differs from contractual repricing date or products without
contractual maturity. The above exposures form only a part of the Group’s
overall interest rate risk exposures.

107



& A A
: C:
Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

BRI (8D

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. CRVEREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 RErELEE 4.3 Liquidity risk
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Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds to grow
assets or pay due obligations, and need to bear an unacceptable loss. The
Group maintains sound liquidity risk appetite to provide stable, reliable and
adequate sources of cash to meet liquidity needs under normal
circumstances or stressed scenarios; and to survive with net positive
cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios, without requesting the HKMA to
act as the lender of last resort.

The Group's liquidity risk management objective is to effectively manage the
liquidity of on- and off-balance sheet items with reasonable cost based on
the liquidity risk appetite to achieve sound operation and sustainable
profitability. Deposits from customers are the Group’s primary source of
funds. To ensure stable and sufficient source of funds are in place, the
Group actively attracts new deposits, keeps the core deposit and obtains
supplementary funding from the interbank market. According to different
term maturities and the results of funding needs estimated from stressed
scenarios, the Group adjusts its asset structure (including loans, bonds
investment, interbank placement, etc.) to maintain sufficient liquid assets
which provides adequate funds in support of normal business needs and
ensure its ability to raise funds at a reasonable cost to serve external claims
in case of emergency. The Group is committed to diversify the source of
funds and the use of funds to avoid excessive concentration of assets and
liabilities and prevent triggering liquidity risk due to the break of funding
strand when problem occurred in one concentrated funding source. The
Group has established intra-group liquidity risk management guideline to
manage the liquidity funding among different entities within the Group, and
to restrict their reliance of funding on each other. The Group also pays
attention to manage liquidity risk created by off-balance sheet activities, such
as loan commitments, derivatives, options and other complex structured
products. The Group has an overall liquidity risk management strategy to
cover the liquidity management of foreign currency assets and liabilities,
collateral, intra-day liquidity, intra-group liquidity, the liquidity risk arising from
other risks, etc., and has formulated corresponding contingency plan.

The RC is the decision-making authority of liquidity risk management, and
assumes the ultimate responsibility of liquidity risk management. As
authorised by RC, ALCO exercises its oversight of liquidity risk and ensures
the daily operations of the Group are in accordance with risk appetite and
policies as set by RC. FMD is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
liquidity risk. It cooperates with Treasury Division to assist the ALCO to
perform liquidity management functions according to their specific
responsibilities.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

A3 nisrEemEkE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

AR R A Y A < B S A
PR > B H R - 5TE - B
AR A b > BEE
FIRPORBMEEZELLR - HFLE
o RRFH SR - DR
P& IEEEET - AEER
PR 7 B oA DAl A SRR
IEEER THRETE IR0 - 1
R VE R ETREE SRR T
AH (BEEaEHK - HsEk
IR EBHEt) FIHARTTE -
Sl A S R S A BRI T B &
BEMRIVRES] - REBITREILT
M E AR AN EEATE
H 2 B R BEEREH 4
& e itEEE e B RE
i DUE MR EA S -

ARG &8 R 2 BB
T LM-2 (R AR B A i
B 2 B ) PRI
Ko CEEBIR SR T BT
FE o TR Y B AR A R (]
3% 0 DUSLASEE B R
TE S THERER T - EHEH
DU RS T - REEE X
HEMPRA (WEFFRD K
FHN (AEROREE) THHEEHE
% - IR EEE - AR
HHARE - RIBELEIIA
TP EN R R B AR
bt - DATERIA SRR AL
EARARD © AEEBOE TR
FEtRaER ) R IRk
R FEOMIAE B 15 50 T YRR
30 HZ e KRRt > 2
S AEERYRERE S A R B
JEMTZE RO - DUZEIFH
KERYHAY- Y 2017 212 F 31
B A H R EREHAE
HFVBLERAZENT » AR
T2 30 HERREFEHFR
A Byl 5907,763,000 JT
(2016 4 : #M¢ 2,730,614,000
70D e NEIREEDK -

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators and limits to identify,
measure, monitor and control liquidity risk on daily basis. These indicators and
limits include, but are not limited to liquidity coverage ratio (“LCR”),
loan-to-deposit ratio, Maximum Cumulative Cash Outflow (“MCO”) and liquidity
buffer asset portfolio. The Group applies cash flow analysis to assess the Group’s
liquidity condition under normal conditions and also performs a liquidity stress test
(including institution specific, general market crisis and combined crisis) and other
methods at least on monthly basis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand
various severe liquidity crises. Also, relevant management information systems
such as Assets and Liabilities Management System and Basel Liquidity Ratio
Management System are developed to provide data and the preparation for
regular management reports to facilitate liquidity risk management duties.

In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual LM-2 “Sound
Systems and controls for Liquidity Risk Management” issued by the HKMA, the
Group has implemented behaviour model and assumptions of cash flow analysis
and stress test to enhance the Group’s cash flow analysis under both normal and
stressed conditions. In cash flow analysis under normal circumstances,
assumptions have been made relating to on-balance sheet items (such as
deposits from customers) and off-balance sheet items (such as loan
commitments). According to various characteristics of the assets, liabilities and
off-balance sheet items, the Group forecasts the future cash flow based on
contractual maturity date and the assumptions of customer behaviour and
balance sheet changes. The Group establishes MCO indicator which predicts the
future 30 days maximum cumulative net cash outflow in normal situations based
on the above assumptions, to assess if the Group has sufficient financing
capacity to meet the cash flow gap in order to achieve the objective of continuing
operation. As at 31 December 2017, before taking the cash inflow through the
sale of outstanding marketable securities into consideration, the Bank’s 30-day
cumulative cash flow was a net cash inflow, amounting to HK$5,907,763,000
(2016: HK$2,730,614,000) and was in compliance with the internal limit
requirements.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

A3 nisrEemEkE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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In the liquidity stress test, institution specific, general market crisis and combined
crisis scenario has been set up, combined crisis scenario is a combination of
institution specific and general market crisis to assess the Group’s capability to
withstand a more severe liquidity crisis, with a more stringent set of assumptions
being adopted. Stress test assumptions include the run-off rate of retalil,
wholesale and interbank deposits; drawdown rate of loan commitments and
trade-related contingent liabilities; delinquency ratio and rollover rate of customer
loans; and haircut of interbank placement and marketable securities. As at 31
December 2017, the Group was able to maintain a net cash inflow under the three
stressed scenarios, indicating the Group has the ability to meet financing needs
under stressed conditions. In addition, the Group has a policy in place to maintain
a liquidity cushion which includes high quality or comparable quality marketable
securities issued or guaranteed by sovereigns, central banks, public sector
entities or multilateral development banks with 0% or 20% risk weight or
marketable securities issued by non-financial corporate with a corresponding
external credit rating of A- or above to ensure funding needs even under stressed
scenarios. As at 31 December 2017, the liquidity cushion (before haircut) was
HK$9,055,518,000 (2016: HK$5,211,372,000). A contingency plan is being
established which details the conditions to trigger the plan based on stress test
results and early warning indicators, the action plans and relevant procedures and
responsibility of various departments.

The LCR is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules effective
from 1 January 2015, the Group, being classified as category 1 authorised
institution by the HKMA, is required to calculate LCR on unconsolidated basis.
During the year of 2017, the Group is required to maintain a LCR not less than
80%.

The Group’s liquidity risk management also covers new products or business
developments. Before launching a new product or business, the relevant
departments are required to go through a risk assessment process, which
includes the assessment of underlying liquidity risk and consideration of the
adequacy of the current risk management mechanism. Any material impact on
liquidity risk noted during the risk assessment process will be reported to RC for
approval.
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4. SREREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 merEEERE (%) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
A REMMEEEILER A. Liquidity coverage ratio
2017 2016
IR E LR Average value of liquidity coverage ratio
HE
- BFE - First quarter 181.56% 151.84%
- BoE=E - Second quarter 177.51% 149.42%
- F=FE - Third quarter 156.97% 150.11%
- FIUERE - Fourth quarter 143.03% 140.99%
TREN I B LR The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is calculated based on the arithmetic
HERENZEEN mean of the liquidity coverage ratio as at the end of each working day in the quarter and
B TAE HEEEIRF 1 the calculation methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of liquidity
MEMEESLRNE position.
flir 39 B A B R Eh
RN 2 & R
HIHREYET B 7 7A K dE
RErHE -
B E SR ZE The liquidity coverage ratio is computed on the unconsolidated basis which comprises
FEGF G AT AR the positions of local offices and overseas branches of the Bank specified by the HKMA
B (ER173E OREntE) for its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.
FARI) FizeE s
EREHRRITZA
IR R BN AT
4HRK -
BRREMEEELRE The additional information of liquidity coverage ratio disclosures is available under
W B A ER AR section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.chiyubank.com.

xR T ™ OH
www.chiyubank.com
o T EREEE | —EE
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4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

B. Maturity analysis

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The tables below analyse the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31 December into

ABLHZEEKRE&A relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the end of the reporting
HEHE I H o047 date to the contractual maturity date.
HNERHE EE
K B EEEGLIEIH
Heles BARR 7348
2017
—Z =7
B —EAA =@EA +=ER —EEF HFEMUE THEE st
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1to5 Over 5 HEA
On demand 1 month months months years years Indefinite Total
AT BT BT BT B¥Tx  B¥Tx  B¥TI BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
HiE Assets
R & RFRERT R A Cash and balances with
SRS R banks and other financial
institutions 1,220,907 15,845,476 - - - 221,580 17,287,963
TESRTT M Bt Rl A& Placements with banks and
—ZE+EANEIE other financial institutions
IR maturing between one
and twelve months - - 208,899 572,006 - - - 780,905
FE B DUAEES(ESH A8 Financial assets designated
7 ERiEE at fair value through profit
or loss
- {ABES — Debt securities - 615 1,219 217 210,174 - - 212,225
TSR TA Derivative financial
instruments 94,753 2,454 12,672 10,757 1,565 6,945 - 129,146
B HAERETE Advances and other
accounts
- FFEK —Advances to customers 6,888,069 501,969 1,452,333 6,631,279 20,520,973 6,015,631 26,659 42,036,913
- H5EE — Trade bills 102 209,611 495389 312,361 - - - 1,017,463
SBAEE Investment in securities
— e — Available-for-sale
- s — Debt securities - 2,632,274 1,403,871 2,663,158 10,182,178 - - 16,881,481
- s - Certificates of deposit - 740,668 773,589 1,114,805 409,975 - - 3,039,037
— B ELGER — Loans and receivables
- s — Debt securities - - _ _ _ _ )
— s - Equity securities - - - - - 90,943 90,943
EYE Investment properties - - - - - 214910 214,910
Y~ B R Properties, plant and
equipment - - - - - 1,552,253 1,552,253
HAr & (S IEERIEEE ) Other assets (including
deferred tax assets) 169,556 650,616 569 2,140 1,101 - 21,710 845,692
B Total assets 8,373,387 20,583,683 4,348,541 11,306,723 31,325,966 6,022,576 2,128,055 84,088,931
=0 Liabilities
SRIT R H A SRR~ 1730 Deposits and balances from
Fobkes banks and other financial
institutions (4,669,693) (562,453)  (823,556) (1,631,636) (2,300,296) - - (9,987,634)
TSR TR Derivative financial
instruments (6,350) (2,151) (2,098) (1,760) (6,430) - (18,789)
E-4=reE /¢ Deposits from customers  (28,086,910) (10,300,696) (11,652,831) (12,106,227) (1,132,773) - - (63,279,437)
HAMEIE RS (RfERERT  Other accounts and
FRIE R B AEfRIE & (S ) provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities) (283,080)  (626,315) (1,699)  (180,008) (518) - (147,954) (1,239,574)
=it Total liabilities (33,046,033) (11,491,615) (12,480,184) (13,917,871) (3,435,347) (6,430)  (147,954) (74,525,434)
REE SO Net liquidity gap (24,672,646) 9,092,068 (8,131,643) (2,611,148) 27,890,619 6,016,146 1,980,101 9,563,497
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Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

B. Maturity analysis (continued)

HE
R3S B SR AT B Hit
SRRV

ST R oAt b
—Z2+ZEAREZ
TERIER

FUE R U FEEZ LR AL

- B
TEEm TR

B HAHRTR

- BFERK
- H5EE
- A
- e
- G
- BRI
- e
i
Rk
PIBE ~ B3t R

B (R RIS A )

R

&R
SRAT R Hopth S R 2 Ak
Ttk

IThefTE
HFEN

HLANARIEUR A (EUFSTERS
TR ERIH A D)

2016
—7 =7
BiEE —EAN =EH +fEA —EHE  AFMUE NHETE Hast
Up to 1t03 3to0 12 1t05 Over HH
On demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
BT BT B Tor BT BT BTt ARt BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Assets
Cash and balances with
banks and other financial
institutions 489,770 4,554,574 - - - 230,027 5,274,371
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
maturing between one
and twelve months - - 680,536 357,332 - - - 1,037,868
Financial assets designated
at fair value through profit
or loss
— Debt securities - 432,133 165,862 39,258 16,690 - - 653943
Derivative financial
instruments 96,135 1,162 4 107 2,027 - - 99,435
Advances and other
accounts
— Advances to customers 5,488,549 516,735 2,003,604 3,056,637 13,690,259 5,684,441 105,129 30,545,354
— Trade bills - 84,298 370,191 137,609 - - - 592,008
Investment in securities
— Available-for-sale
— Debt securities - 10,666 1,089,681 2,751,201 3,949,925 - - 7,801,473
— Certificates of deposit - 232,181 619,184 3,429,743 768,534 - - 5,049,642
— Loans and receivables
— Debt securities - 299,771 154,690 76,861 - - - 531,322
— Equity securities - - - - - - 5,239 5,239
Investment properties - - - - - 203,860 203,860
Properties, plant and
equipment - - - - - 1,532,373 1,532,373
Other assets (including
deferred tax assets) 63,290 653,598 169 2,004 37 - 16,183 735,281
Total assets 6,137,744 6,785,118 5,083,921 9,850,752 18,427,472 5,684,441 2,092,811 54,062,259
Liabilities
Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions (232,773)  (43,829)  (89,283)  (638,170) - - - (1,004,055)
Derivative financial
instruments (9,724) (4,086) (1,472) - (1,689) - - (16,971)
Deposits from customers  (23,944,492) (7,579,747) (7,338,112) (6,508,567) (66,702) - - (45,437,620)
Other accounts and
provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities) (260,169)  (240,198)  (39,768)  (72,556) (876) - (159,787)  (773,354)
Total liabilities (24,447,158) (7,867,860) (7,468,635) (7,219,293) (69,267) - (159,787) (47,232,000)
Net liquidity gap (18,309,414) (1,082,742) (2,384,714) 2,631,459 18,358,205 5,684,441 1,933,024 6,830,259
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4. SREREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 RErEeEE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
B. FHAR T (&) B. Maturity analysis (continued)

LAEIHA H B The above maturity classifications have been prepared in accordance with relevant
Ha (ERATE (HiER) provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The Group has reported assets
AT Z BRI such as advances and debt securities which have been overdue for not more than
Uil o AR E R A one month as “On demand”. In the case of an asset that is repayable by different
AHEE 1 HAZE payments or instalments, only that portion of the asset that is actually overdue is
0 PSR RS reported as overdue. Any part of the asset that is not due is reported according to the
BRYE TEIHE ) & residual maturity unless the repayment of the asset is in doubt in which case the
o BN EIFEE amount is reported as “Indefinite”. The above assets are stated after deduction of
oo EEE Y B provisions, if any.

HAEzEERE RS

FAZ B 3 1 7R

- HAARFH 2
TR R B
MRords - BIREEZ
HEZEEBTFERS
T8 ARz SRS
R TRHEER - b
WY Z B E TR
B R (40
A e

1 i eR B HA H B The analysis of debt securities by remaining period to maturity is disclosed in order

B85 i RS to comply with relevant provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The
(ER1TEE (9888) # disclosure does not imply that the securities will be held-to-maturity.

A Z ARSI

Y - FTFHEEAR R

RILEF AR

A -
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ELARER ELIEHH AR
ZIRE o

SHRIER Financial liabilities
SRIT R EH A 4 mii% Deposits and balances
W FE R4Ess  from banks and other
financial institutions

&K Deposits from customers
HoAth R & {5 Other financial
liabilities

SRa G5 Total financial liabilities

SRIER Financial liabilities
1T R Hfth & Fi%  Deposits and balances

W17 Kk4Ekg from banks and other
financial institutions

BFEER Deposits from customers
HAthm & Other financial
liabilities

SR fEE Total financial liabilities

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

C. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(a) Non-derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group as at 31
December for non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual

maturity.
2017
—Z =
—EAA =fEA +=#EA —BHE HEME #Est
Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total
BT BT T BT T AT BT T AET T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
(5,232,703) (825,630) (1,650,267) (2,361,932) - (10,070,532)
(38,360,180) (11,647,606) (12,157,297)  (1,133,207) - (63,298,290)
(904,088) (327) (56,577) (518) (961,510)
(44,496,971) (12,473,563) (13,864,141)  (3,495,657) - (74,330,332)
2016
—F =
—EAN =MEA +=fEH —EAF AFEME Hast
Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total
AT AT AT EETT AT BEETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(276,602) (90,102) (651,466) - (1,018,170)
(31,526,056) (7,352,471) (6,565,775) (69,496) - (45,513,798)
(473,907) (2,956) (23,743) (15) (500,621)
(32,276,565)  (7,445,529) (7,240,984) (69,511) - (47,032,589)
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4. SREEREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
A3 nisrEemEkE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
C. &R oth Z RKITH C. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
BER (E) (continued)
(b) FIETEZHER (b) Derivative cash flows
TEM T AL 12 A The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group by remaining
31 A e S LIEIE A S contractual maturity as at 31 December for derivative financial liabilities
e AR that will be settled on a net basis, together with all derivative financial

instruments that will be settled on a gross basis regardless of whether the

BEAEE T ST 4 T L o o . .
BEEH 2T ERRE contract is in an asset or liability position. The amounts disclosed in the

18+ PTG tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, except for certain
RBZiEeR TR (R derivatives which are disclosed at fair value.
ﬁ fiHl /El\ \Q‘/\j J% :éf &3 g—z g\

5 BRI PTAETEDA
SEAEFIRSN > TR EERY
HAh e BEE Ry R B
B [FH e -

REE LTRSS The Group’s derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a net
FHE SR T E ¥ SRR basis mainly include interest rate swaps whereas derivative financial
SR T AT R instruments that will be settled on a gross basis mainly include currency

PR _ forwards and currency swaps.
RZUTESRMTHTEHE

TR M s -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(continued)

Derivative financial
liabilities settled on a
net basis

Derivative financial
instruments settled on a
gross basis
Total inflow
Total outflow

Derivative financial
liabilities settled on a
net basis

Derivative financial
instruments settled on a
gross basis

Total inflow
Total outflow

(b) Derivative cash flows (continued)

C. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

2017
-z ==
—EAA =@EA +=ZER —ZFHFE AHEUL #Est
Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total
BETT BT A%t B%Te BETT BBt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
(6,101) (1,039) (1,365) (6,842) (15,347)
2,906,945 754,582 779,040 4,440,567
(2,906,539) (742,627)  (761,204) - (4,410,370)
2016
—% =%
—fEAA =EH +ZEA —ZAF  AFME “Est
Up to 1to3 3to 12 l1to5 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total
AT BETOT BT BT BTt BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
(12,606) (950) 62 (1,149) (14,643)
2,215,816 290 2,216,106
(2,215,001) (286) - (2,215,287)
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EGHORHE

HREIALEER 2017 £ 12
H 31 HREF/EKHEERE
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9,951,748,000 j© ( 2016
A HEWE 7,902,378,000
TC) > HEEEEHURIE I —
FEHEHL

AT O S HLAL T 5 R

ALER 2017 412 H 31
H 2 B 5 3 0 e EAth A 755
BOE & OB B W
1,043,810,000 7= (2016
£ 566,364,000
TC) > HFIEAR D4 -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

C. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
(continued)

(c) Off-balance sheet items

Loan commitments

The contractual amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial
instruments as at 31 December 2017 that the Group commits to extend
credit to customers and other facilities amounted to HK$9,951,748,000
(2016: HK$7,902,378,000). Those loan commitments can be drawn within
one year.

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the Group as at 31
December 2017 amounting to HK$1,043,810,000 (2016:
HK$566,364,000) are maturing no later than one year.
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4. CRVEREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BHAREH

4.4 Capital management

KITEAERNEHZHRER
A PSR AT B IR bR U A
HIBE AT > Rl RREERT
e K alEy - BEAREHZ R
GERE AR T E AN -
5 75 I A 1T A B DL fR B R
W~ R AT R MR R
fhy o

RTELEII—EFUNE
AREHHPERAIF ] - 3 H
TR - IWEHGIREIRITIE S
FrEmSmaER - e AERE
AFEHRHVER - BEAREH
ZE G RAEREARITHER
FERM: o AT B AEL
RITRBN S HEERIEA
TEBARE > T -

AT BRI SRR P9 B BT 4R
st ER R ARM IR IR
S Bz AR A 15 R B AR
BOR - /NER O (5 B R R HE R 4
Grarde (FERE) sTEAR
B o ASRTER TS B (E
BIE SRR AGEEGENE
JEBRAVAS B T RAZK -

RIRTEGRHANHBAHE
EEHEANE R H R — ik 5
JEE EAZER - A Rt
R 00 BT AL G A DR e 1 E A
HITT SRR AEK - A T4
SRR (SRR SHEDA
SRR SRR AZDK -

AIATRSEIR A CEBIRIE
[l ) st AR RIRIE R E

The major objective of the Bank’s capital management is to maximise total
shareholders’ return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to
the Bank’s overall risk profile. The ALCO periodically reviews the Bank’s capital
structure and adjusts the capital mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal
balance among risk, return and capital adequacy.

The Bank has developed and maintained a sound framework of policies and
controls on capital management to support the development of the Bank’s
business and to meet the statutory capital adequacy ratio. The ALCO monitors the
Bank’s capital adequacy. The Bank has complied with all the statutory capital
requirements of the HKMA for the reported periods in respect of banking operation
as further elaborated below:

The Bank has adopted the foundation internal ratings-based (“FIRB”) approach to
calculate the credit risk capital charge for the majority of its non-securitisation
exposures. A small residual credit exposures are remained under the standardised
(credit risk) (“STC”) approach. The Bank has adopted the standardised credit
valuation adjustment (“CVA”) method to calculate the capital charge for the CVA
risk of the counterparty.

The Bank continues to adopt the internal models (“IMM”) approach to calculate the
general market risk capital charge for foreign exchange and interest rate
exposures and, with the approvals from the HKMA, exclude its structural FX
positions in the calculation of the market risk capital charge. The Bank continues
to adopt the standardised (market risk) (“STM”) approach to calculate the market
risk capital charge for the remaining exposures.

The Bank continues to adopt standardised (operational risk) (“STO”) approach to
calculate the operational risk capital charge.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. CRVEREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BAEE (8

4.4 Capital management (continued)

AIATH 2017 FEEGHRANE
AR RERFUFE2E
FEEBRETM T HEELR
Fr o REIEDR - B REE
SOIEEIES | NETEA TS ERT
TR £ H A ASHEAE S — SOk
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JERFT ERHIERINEA - fETEE
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EZIKB’P%»*( B - ARTREA
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5 Y RE G LB R 0 T G S EE A
R g IR AL -

RSN RS TEEREFEEE
HiE > HEFEAEETEEZETR
R EEREGE  EAHENE
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The Bank has continued to adopt an internal capital adequacy assessment
process (“ICAAP”) to comply with the HKMA's requirements in the Supervisory
Policy Manual “Supervisory Review Process” in 2017. Based on the HKMA's
guidelines on Pillar I, ICAAP has been initiated to assess the extra capital needed
to cover the material risks not captured or not adequately captured under Pillar 1,
and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital
ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are determined. Meanwhile, operating ranges
for the aforementioned capital ratios have also been established which enable the
flexibility for future business growth and efficiency of capital utilisation. The Bank
considers this ICAAP as an ongoing process for capital management and
periodically reviews and adjusts its capital structure where appropriate in relation
to the overall risk profile.

In addition, the capital plan of the Bank is drawn up annually and then submitted to
the Board of Directors for approval after endorsement of the ALCO. The plan is
built up by assessing the implications of various factors upon capital adequacy
such as the business strategies, return on equity, risk appetite, credit rating, as
well as regulatory requirements. Hence, the future capital requirement is
determined and capital sources are identified also. The plan is to ensure the Bank
maintains adequate capital and appropriate capital structure which align with its
business development needs, thereby achieving an optimal balance among risk,
return and capital adequacy.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

A. Basis of regulatory combination

The combined basis for regulatory purposes comprises the positions of the
Bank’s local offices and overseas branches specified by the HKMA for its
regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. For
accounting purposes, subsidiaries are consolidated in accordance with HKFRSs
and the list of subsidiaries is set out in note 46.

The particulars of subsidiaries which are included within the accounting scope of
consolidation but not included within the regulatory scope of combination are as

EOfEE AN E AT 2 follows:
FEBAIT
2017 2016
B B e EARYEEA
A Name Total assets Total equity Total assets  Total equity
BT BETT AT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#E77T (RRELA) AFE/AT  Chiyu Banking Corporation
(Nominees) Limited 831 831 138,836 138,836
HEEEARAE Seng Sun Development
Company Limited 43,657 43,308 41,002 40,814
TGEARAE Grace Charter Limited ) (10,983) ) (10,981)
ERBEEERERAE Chiyu International Capital
Limited 23,528 19,812 - -
EREEEHARAH Chiyu Asset Management
Limited 6,800 6,141 - -

#2017 £ 12 H 31 H i

AL B 8 B L BT

BEENESORE - iR

BEEGsH RS EE
(2016 4 : fiE) -

#2017 £ 12 H 31 H 7R
FEAE TP 8 A B E B A
T 51 AR RIS 5 8 B A B
EHRE T DEFRIE T B R
Fl4r U7k (2016 4

f) -

VSRR S
BLRFTEE 46 -

There were no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory scope of
combination but not included within the accounting scope of consolidation as at
31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

There were also no subsidiaries which are included within both the accounting
scope of consolidation and the regulatory scope of combination where the
methods of consolidation differ as at 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

The principal activities of the above subsidiaries are set out in Note 46.
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4. SREEREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.4 FEEE () 4.4 Capital management (continued)
B. BEALLE B. Capital ratio
2017 2016
R — A AR CET1 capital ratio 13.44% 17.06%
—EEARLEE Tier 1 capital ratio 17.84% 17.06%
HEEAREER Total capital ratio 19.78% 19.61%
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

B. Capital ratio (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The combined capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above

capital ratios is analysed as follows:

CET1 capital: instruments and reserves

Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital
instruments

Retained earnings
Disclosed reserves

CET1 capital before regulatory
deductions

CET1 capital: regulatory deductions

Valuation adjustments

Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax
liabilities

Gains and losses due to changes in own
credit risk on fair valued liabilities

Cumulative fair value gains arising from
the revaluation of land and buildings
(own-use and investment properties)

Regulatory reserve for general banking
risks

Total regulatory deductions to
CET1 capital

CET1 capital

AT1 capital

Tier 1 capital

2017 2016
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000

300,000 300,000
5,916,657 5,141,470
1,364,678 1,226,854
7,581,335 6,668,324

(6,390) (8,617)
(19,911) (14,179)
(1,302) (75)
(1,308,504) (1,304,297)
(325,391) (230,023)
(1,661,498) (1,557,191)
5,919,837 5,111,133
1,937,712 -
7,857,549 5,111,133
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4. SEiEfEEHE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.4 BREH (8) 4.4 Capital management (continued)
B. HALLR (H) B. Capital ratio (continued)
2017 2016
AT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
THEAR BB RCEHS Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
GBS A LB RN Collective impairment allowances and
B 1 T R R regulatory reserve for general banking
ST RS AS f risks eligible for inclusion in Tier 2
SRAT B capital 263,415 175,301
BEEHIR . B A Tier 2 capital before regulatory
deductions 263,415 175,391
THCEAR BB Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
IE&EE&ERET AZLRE Add back of cumulative fair value gains
AR S b Ry S arising from the revaluation of land
Y1 (E R RIERESR) and buildings (own-use and
g _ investment properties) eligible for
/}E{T{E%E{Eﬁéé inclusion in Tier 2 capital
HY SR THE B 588,827 586,934
B _REARANEE Total regulatory deductions to
R 4 ZE Tier 2 capital 588,827 586,934
s Tier 2 capital 852,242 762,325
B Total capital 8,709,791 5,873,458
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

B. Capital ratio (continued)

The capital buffer ratios are analysed as follows:

2017 2016
Capital conservation buffer ratio 1.250% 0.625%
Higher loss absorbency ratio - -
Countercyclical capital buffer ratio 0.993% 0.528%

As at 31 December 2017, the applicable jurisdictional CCyB ("JCCyB") ratio in
Hong Kong was 1.25% as set by the HKMA. The ratio increased from 0.625% to
1.250% on 1 January 2017. For the rest of the jurisdictions in which the
Bank had private sector credit exposures, the applicable JCCyB
ratios were 0%.

The additional information of capital disclosures is available under section
“Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.chiyubank.com.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

C. Leverage ratio

The leverage ratio is analysed as follows:

2017 2016

AT BETT

HK$’000 HK$'000

Tier 1 capital 7,857,549 5,111,133
Leverage ratio exposure 84,911,456 54,270,647
Leverage ratio 9.25% 9.42%

The additional information of leverage ratio disclosures is available under section
“Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.chiyubank.com.
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5. Fair values of assets and liabilities
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”. The categorisation are determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
methods and based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

— Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities. This category includes debt instruments issued by certain
governments and certain exchange-traded derivative contracts.

— Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly. This category includes majority of the OTC derivative contracts, debt
securities and certificates of deposit with quote from pricing services vendors. It
also includes properties with insignificant adjustments made to observable
market inputs.

— Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable. This category
includes equity investment and debt instruments with significant unobservable
components. It also includes properties with significant adjustments made to
observable market inputs.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group has an established governance structure and controls framework
to ensure that fair values are either determined or validated by control units
independent of the front offices. Control units have overall responsibility for
independent verification of valuation results from front line businesses and all
other significant fair value measurements. Specific controls include
verification of observable pricing inputs; review and approval for new models
and changes to models; calibration and back-testing of models against
observed market transactions; analysis and investigation of significant daily
valuation movements; review of significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments. Significant valuation issues are reported to senior management,
RC and AC.

The Group uses valuation techniques or broker/dealer quotations to
determine the fair value of financial instruments when unable to obtain the
open market quotation in active markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for financial instruments
held by the Group include bond prices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates,
equity and stock prices, volatilities, counterparty credit spreads and others,
which are mostly observable and obtainable from open market.

The technique used to calculate the fair value of the following financial
instruments is as below:

Debt securities and certificates of deposit

The fair value of these instruments is determined by obtaining quoted market
prices from exchange, dealer or independent pricing service vendors or using
discounted cash flow technique. Discounted cash flow model is a valuation
technique that measures present value using estimated expected future cash
flows from the instruments and then discounts these flows using a discount
rate or discount margin that reflects the credit spreads required by the market
for instruments with similar risk. These inputs are observable or can be
corroborated by observable or unobservable market data.
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5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 PAESTERVER TR (8

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
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Derivatives

OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option contracts on foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity or commodity. The fair values of these contracts
are mainly measured using valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow
models and option pricing models. The inputs can be observable or
unobservable market data. Observable inputs include interest rate, foreign
exchange rates, equity and stock prices, commodity prices and volatilities.
Unobservable inputs such as volatility surface may be used for less commonly
traded option products which are embedded in structured deposits. For certain
complex derivative contracts, the fair values are determined based on
broker/dealer price quotations.

Credit valuation adjustments (“CVA”) and debit valuation adjustments (“DVA”)
are applied to the Group’s OTC derivatives. These adjustments reflect market
factors movement, expectations of counterparty creditworthiness and the
Group’s own credit spread respectively. They are mainly determined for each
counterparty and are dependent on expected future values of exposures,
default probabilities and recovery rates.
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A. Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets
Financial assets
designated at fair value
through profit or loss
(Note 20)
- Debt securities
Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21)
Available-for-sale
securities (Note 24)
- Debt securities
- Certificates of deposit
- Equity securities

Financial liabilities
Derivative financial
Instruments (Note 21)

Financial assets
Financial assets
designated at fair value
through profit or loss
(Note 20)
- Debt securities
Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21)
Available-for-sale
securities (Note 24)
- Debt securities
- Certificates of deposit
- Equity securities

Financial liabilities
Derivative financial
Instruments (Note 21)
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5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2017

FRH E_RR F=ZREH 4EEt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BETT AETr BTt A%t
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$’000
- 212,225 - 212,225

- 129,146 - 129,146
502,658 16,378,823 - 16,881,481
- 3,039,037 - 3,039,037

- 76,665 14,278 90,943
502,658 19,835,896 14,278 20,352,832
- (18,789) - (18,789)

2016

BB EIES FB=EH HaEtT
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BTt BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
- 653,943 - 653,943

- 99,435 - 99,435
227,829 6,988,528 585,116 7,801,473
- 5,049,642 - 5,049,642

- - 5,239 5,239
227,829 12,791,548 590,355 13,609,732
- (16,971) - (16,971)

There were no financial asset and liability transfers between Level 1 and Level
2 for the Group during the year (2016: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. WEMNSHENAHE (8)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 PAESTERVER TR (8

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

B. SE=/@RHVEE 2T

B. Reconciliation of level 3 items

2017
SREE
Financial assets
TR EES
Available-for-sale
securities
BHRS Betnd s GHET
Debt Equity
securities securities Total
BT T BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
fr2017 1 H1H At 1 January 2017 585,116 5,239 590,355
518 Losses
— Hir g mdkas — Other comprehensive income
- A ERE S — Change in fair value of
AN EEL available-for-sale
securities (3,049) (496) (3,545)
HA Purchases - 9,535 9,535
=il Sales _ _ _
BHE =g Transfer out of Level 3 (582,067) - (582,067)
#2017 12 A 31 H At 31 December 2017 - 14,278 14,278
2016
BREE
Financial assets
ok &R
Available-for-sale
securities
BEES EdlEices HEET
Debt Equity
securities securities Total
AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2016 FE1H1H At 1 January 2016 - 87,737 87,737
gy Gains
- Hftremzs — Other comprehensive income
- HESSFZ — Change in fair value of
NFEZEL available-for-sale
securities - 334 334
HA Purchases 585,116 - 585,116
HH Sales - (82,832) (82,832)
J* 2016 412 H 31 H At 31 December 2016 585,116 5,239 590,355

4 2017 4 12 F 31 H & 2016
F12 431 H» EME=IE
&R A M= Sk T
S5 FE TR -

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, financial instruments categorised as Level

3 are mainly comprised of debt securities and unlisted equity shares.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. WEMNSHENAHE (8)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 PAESTERVER TR (8

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

B. E=RERAVEEED (F)

FRA 73 B 5 = B R A 5 58
7 A il (E TR 2017 4
FER I = B4k - BRI
AR - A EEE S
FREHE B PEAEHE A
BT HAEEEEERPEN
FHBZE2 > HIREERE
LRl T EE T B = -

I 17 o] fiE B B RE M A SR E
Ty L EHAE 2
SEETIE, RIS BEEE
SR AR AE] o Bl
FEFEEE - A EEESERA
Z A A L R A FE VRE
FAEIERIBG o BRI E N
¥ BEFEME D 5% -
RIS £ (2] 27 Al 4 AT U 25 5 5
b/ w0 s 4,547,000 JT
(2016 4F : ¥ 262,000 7T ) °

5.2 JEDIAPEE BRI TR

ON VB PAE — 1 28 1 Bl A o
B A FE S TR Z BB
fiti » BUF Z I35 R B A% L
TR AT R TR Z I PE -

I 18 R RAT R LA < B
i 8= Ll ca

KRGy 2 BREE Mk ATRNEE
H&—FENEH] > EIRHE{EENPE
GEE=

HEEEK

Kby 2 & F B EER » farh
LEAGTENE - HiRmES A HE
M

SasEEilul=F oo

R B H 3 2 T 2
Wit 5.1 YL AR RO s 25
Rk 2 A -

R
B B USSR A S PR
T R SR POl

=

2

EEGH
KERG 2 % PR S B E (e —
NI R A AR -

B. Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

Debt securities was transferred out of level 3 in 2017 due to change of
valuation observability. For certain illiquid debt securities, the Group
obtains valuation quotations from counterparties which may be based on
unobservable inputs with significant impact on the valuation. Therefore,
these instruments have been classified by the Group as level 3.

The fair values of unlisted available-for-sale equity shares are
determined with reference to multiples of comparable listed companies,
such as average of the price/earning ratios of comparables, or net asset
value, if appropriate comparables are not available. The fair value is
positively correlated to the price/earning ratios of appropriate
comparables or net asset values. Had the net asset value of the
underlying equity investments increased/decreased by 5%, the Group’s
other comprehensive income would have increased/decreased by
HK$4,547,000 (2016: HK$262,000).

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant
market information and information about various financial instruments. The
following methods and assumptions have been used to estimate the fair value
of each class of financial instrument as far as practicable.

Balances with/from banks and other financial institutions and trade bills

Substantially all the financial assets and liabilities mature within one year from
the end of the reporting date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Advances to customers
Substantially all the advances to customers are on floating rate terms, bear
interest at prevailing market interest rates and their carrying value
approximates fair value.

Held-to-maturity securities

The fair value of held-to-maturity securities is determined by using the same
approach as those debt securities and certificates of deposit measured at fair
value as described in Note 5.1.

Loans and receivables
A discounted cash flow model is used based on a current yield curve
appropriate for the remaining term to maturity.

Deposits from customers
Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within one year from the
end of the reporting date and their carrying value approximates fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

The following tables set out the carrying values and fair values of the financial
instruments not measured at fair value, except for the above with their carrying
values being approximation of fair values.

2017
IREME AHE
Carrying value Fair value
AWTIT AT T
HK$’000 HK$°000
Financial assets
Loans and receivables (Note 24) - -
2016
MRHIE ANHE
Carrying value Fair value
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Financial assets
Loans and receivables (Note 24) 531,322 530,325

The following tables show the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments with
fair values disclosed.

2017
F—EB& Z_EH F=E% &Eat
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Ao ARt BNt BT
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$’000
Financial assets

Loans and receivables - - - -

2016
B FBE% F=E4 HaEt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Financial assets
Loans and receivables - 77,004 453,321 530,325
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MR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5 BENSENANEE () 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 A EEIBNIEEREE 5.3 Non-financial assets measured at fair value

AEE i A — e R SO SRR T
55 ¥ (AR XE I < Rl A Y 2 F
-

BV EFE

REE VIR 5 B EMZE R
B o FTAAREE 2SR FE
EMERETTEM « REZ(SEE
TR R B IR T A TR
NEVEFT > B A A S S NEA
BaRrEEG B N EHEE BB
ZNE - WA EYZE PR s K
fE A S - &M ENEEE
REERBETH > AEFEHEY
ORI TS ER b E T E - (S EEE
Eiﬁﬁﬂﬁzigﬁ ﬁﬁﬁijféﬁﬁffﬁVﬂcz¢§

() FEJBHETERAEIE
EITERNZE

W B R R 2 WISERI A
HE - TS E ALY T
I BRI (H5thEE)
w2FEHIGHERER LR
(BAEAE)  FFEATEEEY)
S RGPS 2 R A2 B
HEERE - EHEENGE R
RS BN R E A
.

REEZYZEAMNE RN
M FEIRT > WeER R hE

FOEBRETYIET S o I
EZWER - HHHERE

{ER—BETAEI S L
H AR AR -

(i) HME=BRA TR
¥t

Wy JA Ry = B AR A SR YY)
EZNHEITER T SRR A
U ABEAE > FHEAERY)
BN TR YSE 2 M
P (B AGEE -

The Group uses valuation techniques or quoted market prices in active market
to determine the fair value of non-financial assets.

Investment properties and premises

The Group’s properties can be divided into investment properties and premises.
All of the Group’s investment properties and premises were revalued as at year
end. This year, the valuations were carried out by an independent firm of
chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited, who have among their staff
Fellow and Members of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent
experience in the locations and categories of properties being valued. The
Group’s Management had discussions with the surveyors on the valuation
methods, valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at each interim and annual reporting date. There has been no change
in valuation methods during the year and the methods used are consistent with
last year.

(i) Valuation methods and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of properties classified as Level 2 is determined using either
the market comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of
comparable properties or the income capitalisation approach by reference to
market rent and capitalisation rate, with appropriate adjustments to reflect
the differences between the comparable properties and the subject
properties. These adjustments are considered as insignificant to the entire
measurement.

The Group’s properties are located in Hong Kong and major cities in the PRC
where the property markets are considered active and transparent. Sales
price, market rent and capitalisation rate of comparable properties are
generally observable either directly or indirectly in these markets.

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of all of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 is
determined using either the market comparison approach or the income
capitalisation approach, adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to the
features of the Group’s properties compared to the comparable properties.
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5 BENSENANEE () 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 AR EENIESRIEE (8) 5.3 Non-financial assets measured at fair value (continued)

BEYER FE (8) Investment properties and premises (continued)
(i) ARS = ERAFEARNE (ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)
B (&)
UT BN EET 20 E Y The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair
M Ry e = B AR AR FT value measurement of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 are as
BRI (B 775 R AN TR follows:
ZHRE:
h{E 7% BERNAERERNE it S| TR 2 BN ERT R (7
Valuation method Significant Weighted Relationship of unobservable inputs
unobservable inputs average to fair value.
TGLEIROAE | e RIS A 10.85% S A EEE -
WAEAE bz (HED (2016: 3.67%) The higher the premium,
Market comparison Premium/(discount) on the higher the fair value.
approach or income features of the property
capitalisation compared to comparable PriEbks > A FEIK -
approach properties The higher the discount,
the lower the fair value.
YIEAR S AR EE R E B Premium/(discount) on features of the property is determined after taken into
ZuifE, (PrE) Ty EHn] account various factors, such as time for market movement, location,
ELEY AR EIN &R Ry accessibility, building age/condition, floor level, size, layout etc., with
5 PINEc e 2 TS E) - reference to the differences in features with comparable properties.

firE ~ N - R0
g ~ R MR E -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 Non-financial assets measured at fair value (continued)

A. Fair value hierarchy

Non-financial assets
Investment properties
(Note 25)

Properties, plant and
equipment
(Note 26)

— Premises

Non-financial assets
Investment properties
(Note 25)

Properties, plant and
equipment
(Note 26)

— Premises

2017
£ FER F=ER 4EEt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BETL BETT BT BET
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
7,490 207,420 214,910
- 1,506,300 1,506,300
7,490 1,713,720 1,721,210

2016
FER B BH PER 4T
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
6,990 196,870 203,860
- 1,489,261 1,489,261
6,990 1,686,131 1,693,121

There were no non-financial asset transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for
the Group during the year (2016: Nil).
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B. Reconciliation of level 3 items

B. SE=/@RHVEE 2T

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 Non-financial assets measured at fair value (continued)

2017

FFERIEE

Non-financial assets

Y& ~ SM Rkt
Properties, plant
and equipment

B20174E1H1H

i
- s
- REMEA AR
2 3Fas
- EEEER
- Hrg s
- BEE
78
B
A =B
S

2017 £12 H 31 H

J* 2017 £ 12 H 31 HEFHRY
FEERE A E R ENE AU
T RAVARE G RAEEH

- REVENTEHARZ
U

- HfiFE PG

At 1 January 2017
Losses
— Income statement

— Net gain from fair value
adjustments on
investment properties

— Net gain from
revaluation of
premises

— Other comprehensive
income

— Revaluation of
premises

Depreciation
Additions

Transfer into Level 3
Reclassification

At 31 December 2017

Total unrealised losses for
the year included in income
statement for non-financial
assets held as at 31
December 2017

— Net gain from fair value
adjustments on
investment properties

— Net gain from revaluation
of premises
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REYF* P
Investment

properties Premises

AT T BARTT

HK$°000 HK$°000

196,870 1,489,261

10,550 -

- 702

- (9,403)

- (18,058)

- 42,962

- 836

207,420 1,506,300

10,550 -

- 702

10,550 702




< X

Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

BRI (8D

5. BEMKENAHE (&)
5.3 UIAHER BHFEEREE (&)
B. BF=EHRNHEE2S (4

201641 H1H
518
- U
- EYEN P EHEE
ZAEHR

- EffiFEHESE

- HAtr s

- BEE(G

it

e
HAB=ER
5

2016 £12 H 31 H

14 2016 £ 12 H 31 HEFAHY
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 Non-financial assets measured at fair value (continued)

B. Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)
2016

JEREE

Non-financial assets

Y2k ~ et heascti
Properties, plant
and equipment

EYE FRE
Investment
properties Premises
BRI T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2016 239,720 1,495,414
Losses
— Income statement
— Net loss from fair value
adjustments on
investment properties (13,950) -
— Net loss from
revaluation of
premises - (702)
— Other comprehensive
income
— Revaluation of
premises - (40,931)
Depreciation - (18,034)
Additions - 24,614
Transfer into Level 3 - -
Reclassification (28,900) 28,900
At 31 December 2016 196,870 1,489,261
Total unrealised losses for
the year included in income
statement for non-financial
assets held as at 31
December 2016
— Net loss from fair value
adjustments on
investment properties
(13,950) -
— Net loss from revaluation
of premises - (702)
(13,950) (702)

The transfer of properties into level 3 is due to change in the premium on
features applied between the subject and comparable properties during the
year. Premium on features is determined with reference to differences in
features between the subject properties and the comparable properties
recently transacted in the market. As comparable properties that come
from recent market transactions may be different in each year, the premium
on features applied between the subject and comparable properties would
change from year to year accordingly. As a result, the significance of
adjustments made to observable market inputs may vary and lead to the

transfer of properties into level 3.
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6. Net interest income

6. FEFSUA

2017 2016
BT HARTIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FIEMA Interest income
1707 [B] 2 R HoAth 4 ph i 1Y Due from banks and other financial institutions
R 100,053 94,893
BEEWRK Advances to customers 984,511 805,135
BHEEE RN FEE(LE AR Investment in securities and financial assets at
T L SRS fair value through profit or loss 297,312 245,920
FAtt Others 4,084 3,675
1,385,960 1,149,623
FIESTH Interest expense
E% R H il SRR ERE.  Due to banks and other financial institutions
| (46,963) (18,229)
B Deposits from customers (381,329) (287,703)
FAh Others (7,164) (4,610)
(435,456) (310,542)
SEFIE U A Net interest income 950,504 839,081

B 2017 £ 12 H 31 Hil4E
J& 7 FE WA AR SR
B RKATIE S A S A
2,639,000 7T (2016 4 : il
948,000 ) °

FELANPEE(L AR Z &
5 7 L R (R T A O
ISCC N SS-aaba wallle e i
1,376,182,000 7% (2016 £E :

HEWE 1,123,274,000 7T ) e
435,456,000 7T (2016 4 : &
## 310,542,000 7T.) -

Included within interest income is HK$2,639,000 (2016: HK$948,000) of interest with
respect to income accrued on advances classified as impaired for the year ended 31

December 2017.

Included within interest income and interest expense are HK$1,376,182,000 (2016:
HK$1,123,274,000) and HK$435,456,000 (2016: HK$310,542,000) for financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not recognised at fair value through profit or loss respectively.
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7. FIREE K AEWA

RBERASWA
PRk

g &
Sk
Bk
bS8

PRERE

HoAth

icE23—grdliikreds
L
At

PR RASA

HejRg
LA HEE LA AiRER 2
BRI ARG A R
- BBt RS A
- RS RS HY

St KA A7 E RS
- BeBsE RS A
- RS RS HY

7. Net fee and commission income

Fee and commission income
Insurance

Securities brokerage

Loan commissions

Payment services

Bills commissions

Safe deposit box

Funds distribution

Others

Fee and commission expense
Securities brokerage
Others

Net fee and commission income

Of which arise from:

Financial assets or financial liabilities not at fair value

through profit or loss
- Fee and commission income
- Fee and commission expense

Trust and other fiduciary activities
- Fee and commission income
- Fee and commission expense

140

2017 2016
BETT BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
114,042 119,600
106,287 82,176
146,827 52,939
24,640 20,247
18,025 18,477
17,139 16,097
10,845 7,125
35,406 12,021
473,211 328,682
(13,930) (11,474)
(8,291) (7,652)
(22,221) (19,126)
450,990 309,556
150,122 54,904
(434) (420)
149,688 54,484
6,907 7,126
(429) (218)
6,478 6,908
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8. FEX G MW 8. Net trading gain
2017 2016
AT BT T
HK$°000 HK$°000
s (tR) HA ¢ Net gain/(loss) from:
YRR 5 Fe Y NPEAS ) e i Foreign exchange and foreign exchange
products 6,045 67,186
FERTE Interest rate instruments 1,993 (2,469)
P Commodities (103) 8
7,935 64,725
9. HihSRMEEFKZE 9. Net gain on other financial assets
2017 2016
BETT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
oIk RS Net gain on available-for-sale securities 8,225 84,451
Hith Others (58) (116)
8,167 84,335
10. HMZ=Ug A 10. Other operating income
2017 2016
AT AIETIT
HK$°000 HK$’000
APEER EULA Dividend income from investment in securities
- JELTEEAEE - Unlisted investments 2,380 7,402
&Y TS A Gross rental income from investment properties 5,046 5,618
HREEYZ WA (ZH)  Incomings/(outgoings) in respect of investment
properties 113 (143)
HAr Others 152 2,379
7,691 15,256
J* 2017 N T AR EY)E There are no direct operating expenses included in the “Outgoings in respect of investment

2 R A E R A properties” related to investment properties that were not let during 2017 (2016: HK$41,000).

BBV EHEE
(2016 4£: & 41,000 JT )
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- HlE
- WelEl EAEHIRIH

PR ARG SRR E e
s (MFEE 23)

HAERHE
- HriEAERE
- #lH]
- URIE AR

TAH G RGBT E 2R
PR (I 23)

BB A

FHAth
ARG

11. Net charge of impairment allowances

Advances to customers
Individually assessed
- New allowances
- Releases
- Recoveries

Net charge of individually assessed loan
impairment allowances (Note 23)

Collectively assessed
- New allowances

- Releases
- Recoveries

Net charge of collectively assessed loan impairment
allowances (Note 23)

Net charge of loan impairment allowances

Others

Net charge of impairment allowances
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2017 2016
BT ABEEETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
(35,766) (44,462)
7,816 -
3,930 7,744
(24,020) (36,718)
(38,345) (27,090)
(4) 1)
(38,349) (27,091)
(62,369) (63,809)
69 (108)
(62,300) (63,917)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

12. Operating expenses

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
- Salaries and other costs
- Pension cost

Premises and equipment expenses
(excluding depreciation)

- Rental of premises
- Information technology
- Others

Depreciation (Note 26)
Auditors’ remuneration
- Audit services

- Non-audit services

Other operating expenses

2017 2016
ABTIT BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000

286,661 247,596
22,535 20,706
309,196 268,302
35,959 33,482
13,921 28,434
9,896 10,642
59,776 72,558
25,867 27,896
2,096 2,210
712 322
79,243 87,168
476,890 458,456

13. Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments on investment properties

Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments on

investment properties (Note 25)
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2017 2016
AT BIETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000

11,050 (14,100)
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14. W& /EEYE S 14,

Ktz #lzs (6
=)

VR ~ [ S S
s
HitBEZ I (BHR)

15. #RIE 15.

SRR N Z AR R
T

AR
A
- FENEARIE
- (AR

EMIH
- FENEARIE

RIERTIE
WA A 2 A A R
B PRI
(Ff$&E 300

FBFSHR T TR AR
FHESRFUR AT 16.5%
(2016 4F : 16.5% ) $4 -
TN R 2 R IR A
fhiat FERRA i FIA A SR E 4K
EEBITERR ZIRITH®E
FHE -

Net gain/(loss) from disposal/revaluation of properties, plant and
equipment

2017 2016
AETT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Net gain from disposal of equipment, fixtures and
fittings - 35
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of premises 702 (702)
702 (667)
Taxation
Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:
2017 2016
AR AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Current tax
Hong Kong profits tax
- Current year taxation 134,070 103,538
- Over-provision in prior years (2,115) -
131,955 103,538
Overseas taxation
- Current year taxation 15,974 24,325
147,929 127,863
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
and unused tax credits (Note 30)
(1,119) (11,099)
146,810 116,764

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxation on overseas
profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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IE (8

AR E A A v A AR U
FERUIH > BRI R B AR

STRAVIRIEAZRAIT ¢

BRAAT A

FEF# 16.5% (2016 4F
16.5%) FHHEAVHIHE
HAM BRI A A2 A

IR Z U
PR B AT B <2
e et

NEZIS it

s ARE

16. g5

F— R
BRI

15. Taxation (continued)

Profit before taxation

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation that differs from the theoretical amount
that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong is as follows:

Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%)

Effect of different taxation rates in another country

Income not subject to taxation

Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes

Over-provision in prior years

Foreign withholding tax

Taxation charge

Effective tax rate

16. Dividends

First Interim dividend
Second Interim dividend

145

2017 2016

BT BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

898,642 768,623

148,276 126,823

(1,747) (2,748)

(6,570) (21,844)

6,806 14,816

(2,115) -

2,160 (283)

146,810 116,764

16.34% 15.19%

2017 2016

ST LEE) (=il Hag
Per share Total Per share Total
wBE BT R HIETIT
HK$ HK$’000 HK$ HK$’000
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17. Retirement benefit costs

17. BRAEFI A

REFGTAGEE B TAYFER
SHEIEZE RIS (GRTREMRD]) R
Z SRR T # R PR OReR il 2550
Maat#l - RERERGTE - (2
BAmBCER IR Z & AR
HEAF & 5% LA #
iR R R B AL H # 2 5% ZE 15% K
% (RTHMeEZIRBEM) - BEH
FEFRARIR ~ SRATR IR R F I 1L
HIRBERMI0F Ll EF R T
WrHI100% 2 i F (K - B ii34E
FEOFENET > WHAMFAMAR 12
PSRN PR AT ) > mTUCHY
30% £ 90% 2 £ HLRK - B £ K
Az (CEEtE AR EIRE) B
R -

W% (RiEelRp]) 1220004125
1H it > AR E IR IRaR
St Fat#l 2 2R
TR B IEER fRAR SR AR A E
BB H A R T R BRSOt
FEEHARAT - LWHAT R
AT ZABEAL -

BHE2017412A31H » {FHIRLHE
688,000 77 ( 2016 4F : &k s
479,0007T ) ZiQUR ikt - MR
T B 2 fE B E R AT R s
14,120,0005¢ ( 20164F : &35 Hs
12,776,0007T ) » ifii A< B B [ 5 A <2
BT @ 4k K4 A R AT R B R
3,914,000 57 ( 2016 4F : &9 3
3,483,0007T) -

Defined contribution schemes for the Group’s employees are ORSO schemes
exempted under the MPF Schemes Ordinance and the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice
MPF Scheme. Under the ORSO schemes, employees make monthly contributions to
the ORSO schemes equal to 5% of their basic salaries, while the employer makes
monthly contributions equal to 5% to 15% of the employees’ monthly basic salaries,
depending on years of service. The employees are entitled to receive 100% of the
employer’s contributions upon retirement, early retirement or termination of
employment after completing 10 years of service. Employees with 3 to 9 years of
service are entitled to receive the employer’s contributions at a scale ranging from
30% to 90% upon termination of employment for other reasons other than summary
dismissal. All employer’s contributions are subjected to MPF Schemes Ordinance.

With the implementation of the MPF Schemes Ordinance on 1 December 2000, the
Group also participates in the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme, of which
the trustee is BOCI-Prudential Trustee and the investment manager is
BOCI-Prudential Manager, which are related parties of the Bank.

The Group’s total contributions made to the ORSO schemes for the year ended 31
December 2017 amounted to approximately HK$14,120,000 (2016: approximately
HK$12,776,000), after a deduction of forfeited contributions of approximately
HK$688,000 (2016: approximately HK$479,000). For the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributed approximately HK$3,914,000 (2016: approximately HK$3,483,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2017.
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18. EE - 5EEH ABNFE 18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s

AEHi& emolument
(a) EEME (a) Directors’ emoluments
KEEREERARITEER Details of the emoluments paid to or receivable by the directors of the Bank in
ASRAT KRB HE A R respect of their services rendered for the Bank and managing the subsidiaries
ik 75 T 2 AT e L e s oA o = within the Group during the year are as follows:
EREEWT ¢
2017 2016
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
HREE Directors’ fees 3,272 1,669
HoAth < Other emoluments
- B & RS - basic salaries and allowances 5,716 3,848
- BB ZABAL - discretionary bonuses 6,941 1,859
- HA (CEERIREHO - others (including pension contributions) 1,888 993
17,817 8,369
KT PRILIERITES Fees of HK$1,329,000 (2016: HK$750,000) were paid to the Independent
Z T < 4B £ 785 1,329,000 7T Non-executive Directors during the year.

(2016 : #&M#750,0007C) -
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18. EE - 5EEH ABNFE 18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s

ANBlis (&) emolument (continued)
(b) CG5TEEEMABRE (b) Remuneration for the Senior Management and Key Personnel under
E-YNSLSET | CG-5
HEEREHNZCG5 (TREMN Pursuant to CG-5 Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System issued by the
HINRIEES]) » REEAEE HKMA, details of the remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel of
ZEREEABRTENEN the Group during the year are as follows:
FEEE
() NENFZTHIETH (i) Remuneration awarded during the year
2017
EHEEAR FEAR
Senior Management Key Personnel
R WAL gt FERIE i1 T
Non- Non-
deferred  Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total

AT BRTIT  BRTT ARTIT  BRTIT BT
HK$'000  HK$’000  HK$’000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$°000

[ Fixed remuneration
4 Cash 12,187 - 12,187 8,522 - 8,522
R B Variable remuneration
4 Cash 9,271 518 9,789 5,000 - 5,000
21,458 518 21,976 13,522 - 13,522
2016
EAEEA R FEAE
Senior Management Key Personnel
JEIRIE HEAE HaEt ]340 IEHE HaEtT
Non- Non-
deferred Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total
BT BETIT BETT HATT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
[ Fixed remuneration
B Cash 9,315 - 9,315 7,894 - 7,894
R B Variable remuneration
W Cash 3,357 - 3,357 1,853 - 1,853
12,672 - 12,672 9,747 - 9,747
DA #iB sS4 (20164 : 5 The remuneration above includes 5 (2016: 5) members of Senior Management
#) EEHREH AR K64 (2016 and 6 (2016: 5) members of Key Personnel.

F15%) FEHAE -
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18. EE - 5EEH ABNFE 18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s
ABHie (&)

(b)

CC-5TRSBEHEARRE

BABHIFE (8D

(ii) EFEFTIH

RN

=5
EN T

FR1H1H

S

B

SR ETREN TR 7>

12431 H

AR R > AR EE AT
CEEUNCVEX IN VLIS &5
B (TRfERFrIHEES 1) &

E-3

- FEETAS  EEgEEN

ERETLAE - BRI
EETETS - BIELEERRINE
EHE o

- EEAR  EACEREES K

EAREBAYE - HEBRES
E=PN 7 RN e e
EHAER - EAYE - 5
BNAEECENAR - B
T & MR KA B £
B MEEEEE - DR
W B AT RE B AL
FoHEA-

emolument (continued)

(b) Remuneration for the Senior Management and Key Personnel under
CG-5 (continued)

(ii) Deferred remuneration

2017 2016
EHREHEAR EEAE SHEEAR FEAE
Senior Key Senior Key

Management  Personnel Management Personnel

BETT EBTT BETT BT

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Deferred
remuneration
Vested 498 - 486 -
Unvested 521 - 479 -
1,019 - 965 -
At 1 January 479 - 965 -
Awarded 518 - - -
Paid out (498) - (444) -
Reduced through
performance
adjustments - - (42) -
At 31 December 499 - 479 -

For the purpose of disclosure, Senior Management and Key Personnel
mentioned in this section are defined according to the HKMA's Guideline on a
Sound Remuneration System.

- Senior Management: The senior executives designated by the Board who are
responsible for oversight of the firm-wide strategy or material business lines,
including Chief Executive and Deputy General Managers.

- Key Personnel: The employees whose individual business activities involve
the assumption of material risk which may have significant impact on risk
exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially linked
to the risk management, or those who have direct influence to the profit,
including heads of material business lines, head of Treasury, as well as heads
of risk control functions.
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19. EERESEERERTT 19. Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions
B At SRR
&k

20.

B
7
7

1E

il

TR o SR THIS R
JEUSRAT B FLA B R
FI%SER

SRAT R A R —
{18 H NEIHAZ E I

2017 2016

AT BT T

HK$°000 HK$'000

Cash 176,064 185,466

Balances with central banks 646,082 323,646

Balances with banks and other financial

institutions 620,341 210,685
Placements with banks and other financial

institutions maturing within one month 15,845,476 4,554,574

17,287,963 5,274,371

REBDANTEESE(L 20. Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
AR BREE

43
IS

S

RO ERERE BRI

AR R IS

&

b0
- NEA LR
- INEABLSN B

AT 57
T

Bk

/&

17 R A A
Gikiee

Total securities are analysed by place of listing as follows:

2017 2016
AT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
At fair value
Debt securities
- Listed in Hong Kong 39,673 206,335
- Listed outside Hong Kong 172,552 447,608
Total securities 212,225 653,943
Total securities are analysed by type of issuer as follows:
2017 2016
BRI I
HK$’000 HK$'000
Banks and other financial institutions 195,312 -
Corporate entities 16,913 653,943
Total securities 212,225 653,943
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21. (T4 SR T RS Es

21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

AEEEET IR R AR 074 B
THEOFEEMRREE A -

BB AR — B =E S
W R -

B R R R AR AR [FIBR S0
ARE  BLHIEE SR ARA R & B A
R (WEENREFHHR) KLl EAY
FrA4HE - BRI HIELN - 34

SNERIRER R IR T (7)) B
B (FA7T) REIVERRF:—REH
HHER AR — R P 4T E (B AR R
(GREIIRE ) St (GRUAIIRE) —&
WAy T EAVRER (MIEAGE) /Y
—TE R - BREESNEMFIERER - B
FERYEE T (e BT —EAVIIRERE -
AEEIRE S4B B T TSI MR
BB B BT (AR5 i
TTHEE ) -

FEEZ TSR T HEY/ 2EBEH
FHAHEFIIN TR - S SR T
HHEY), BB BEERRI BN
RARTZERZLGE > E T2 TR
2B HEBE AR T (B
AR P IR 5 7 B (A 2 PHE
SEERYAERE o (B2 > IENGA SRR K
HIARARAVER o s R AR 2 PE - [T
W RE SR A S B P B A (5 S B e
miEE - BEEROTAE SR TR &40
AR R B IZRATRE) - (14
ER TEASETREESA (EE)

SR (BT AUZE > iEEr il
TEA [FIARIA BORA TR E) -

(@) FTEERTE

AEEEETIHAN RO IMTEE M
VSRR JEl g S Pl Sl
B2 B e [ESE i R M T AL A
5 G A AR A S Y AR A
JE R EHBUR AE -

DTS INE R B R SRTIR YA
Rl AR A R
BHTAEE ST TR S - BT
TE it 38 T AR Y R B R A 44 R B
DA PR > AT A AR
MR - R AT S S L #R
ERYZ& > DUEITSER ~ TS #IE -
e B

The Group enters into exchange rate and interest rate related derivative
financial instrument contracts for trading and risk management purposes.

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign currency
on a future date.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash
flows for another. Swaps result in an exchange of currencies or interest rates (for
example, fixed rate for floating rate) or a combination of all these. Except for
certain currency swap contracts, no exchange of principal takes place.

Foreign currency options are contractual agreements under which the seller
(writer) grants the purchaser (holder) the right, but not the obligation, either to
buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at or by a set date or during a set period,
a specific amount of the financial instrument at a predetermined price. In
consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange and interest rate risk, the
seller receives a premium from the purchaser. Options are negotiated
over-the-counter between the Group and its counterparty or traded through the
stock exchange (for example, exchange-traded stock option).

The contract/notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial instruments
held by the Group are set out in the following tables. The contract/notional
amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at
the end of the reporting dates and certain of them provide a basis for
comparison with fair values of instruments recognised on the statement of
financial position. However, they do not necessarily indicate the amounts of
future cash flows involved or the current fair values of the instruments and,
therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The
derivative financial instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable
(liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates or market interest
rates relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial
instruments can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

(a) Derivative financial instruments

The Group trades derivative products (both exchange-traded or OTC) mainly
for customer business. The Group strictly follows risk management policies
and requirement in providing derivative products to our customers and in
trading of derivative products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking
book. A derivative instrument must be included in the approved product list
before any transactions for that instrument can be made. There are limits to
control the notional amount of exposure arising from derivative transactions,
and the maximum tenor of the deal is set. Every derivative transaction must
be input into the relevant system for settlement, mark-to-market revaluation,
reporting and control.
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21. TSR T EHE$H 21, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
it (&)

() TTAERTR (8)

TR S T
BT ANI12A3LHY
G4/ LB R
T

RG]
RIS R ]
E |
HNEESE S
- B
- EHIIE

HEEEY
]|

HERGLY
B3 fe 4
|
HNHERZ S ARE

- HAJRE
- B

VY
st

Exchange rate contracts
Spot and forwards
Swaps
Foreign currency options

- Options purchased
- Options written

Interest rate contracts
Swaps

Exchange rate contracts
Spot and forwards
Swaps
Foreign currency options

- Options purchased
- Options written

Interest rate contracts
Swaps
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(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The following tables summarise the contract/notional amounts and fair values of each
class of derivative financial instrument as at 31 December:

2017
e AFHE

Contract/ Fair values
notional & =00
amounts Assets Liabilities
BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
930,669 94,753 (6,350)
4,383,736 25,883 (4,246)
3,677 1 -
3,677 - (3)
5,321,759 120,637 (10,599)
2,671,358 8,509 (8,190)
7,993,117 129,146 (18,789)

2016
EVE= o ARSI

Contract/ Fair values
notional HE =Y
amounts Assets Liabilities
BT BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
875,601 96,139 (9,724)
2,201,697 1,159 (430)
52 3 -
52 - (3)
3,077,402 97,301 (10,157)
738,987 2,134 (6,814)
3,816,389 99,435 (16,971)
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HEEE
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15 B bR B = AR B
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B IEEHAUAR R AT
ZHER R B AL Z HIR
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AR TIUE A P
Ll A B 0 6746 5 5300
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(2006 £E G U
12,607,0007C ) » X E
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#:11,636,0007T (20164 :
#51%12,607,0007T )

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)

(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The table below gives the credit risk-weighted amounts of the derivative financial
instruments and is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the
HKMA return of capital adequacy ratio.

2017 2016
AT T BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Exchange rate contracts
Spot and forwards 4,468 1,070
Swaps 12,857 2,386
Foreign currency options
- Options purchased 28 3
17,353 3,459
Interest rate contracts
Swaps 19,087 400
36,440 3,859

The credit risk-weighted amounts are calculated in accordance with the Banking
(Capital) Rules. The amounts are dependent upon the status of the counterparty
and the maturity characteristics of each type of contract.

The total fair values of derivatives subject to valid bilateral netting agreements for
the Bank amounted to HK$11,636,000 (2016: HK$12,607,000) and the effect of
valid bilateral netting agreements amounted to HK$11,636,000 (2016:
HK$12,607,000).
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21. $TASRT B R 21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
it (&) (continued)

(b) EHheErst (b) Hedge accounting
BYNELEIFE Hedges of net investments in foreign operation
2017412 H31H » 8H As at 31 December 2017, there were no RMB-denominated deposits from customers
NEBEHENEFEFR W designated as a hedging instrument to hedge against the net investments in foreign
SR B T H > DA operations (2016: Nil).
BINEEFRE (2016 ¢
) -
NG A R o7 2 g There were no gains or losses on ineffective portion recognised in the income
85 18 Y Y 2 = N R R statement during the year (2016: Nil).

(20164 @ fiE) -

22. B HAVRE 22. Advances and other accounts
2017 2016
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
ERNEY Personal loans and advances 7,340,974 5,931,490
INFEIEEK Corporate loans and advances 34,942,387 24,836,654
EHFPEK Advances to customers 42,283,361 30,768,144
EHOREAER (M 23) Loan impairment allowances (Note 23)
- FEE IR - Individually assessed (70,115) (83,408)
- FHHATHE - Collectively assessed (176,333) (139,382)
42,036,913 30,545,354
oo Trade bills 1,017,463 592,098
43,054,376 31,137,452

2017412 H31H  EFERE As at 31 December 2017, advances to customers included accrued interest of
¥E FE = F) & A 8% 57,270,000 7T HK$57,270,000 (2016: HK$40,214,000).
(20164F : ##240,214,00075T) »

2017412 H31H - G AHHE As at 31 December 2017, no impairment allowance was made in respect of trade bills

5 BB AF W AT ) R (E (2016: Nil).
(20164 : 4E) -
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23. ERCUBEERE

23. Loan impairment allowances

2017
FAEBRPAL
Individually assessed

EA AH] et

Personal Corporate Total

AETT AT AETT

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

2017 F1H 1 H At 1 January 2017 - 83,408 83,408

PG (EE 11) Charged to income statement (Note 11) - 24,020 24,020
TR AU E] B Loans written off during the year as

uncollectible - (43,873) (43,873)

W E MR Recoveries - 3,930 3,930

PR E X EHE [ Unwind of discount on impairment

allowances - (2,639) (2,639)

PR S0 7= %H Exchange difference - 5,269 5,269

JA2017 412 F 31 H At 31 December 2017 - 70,115 70,115

2017
FHETHE
Collectively assessed

EA AL gt

Personal Corporate Total

BT T BT AT T

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

20171 H1H At 1 January 2017 4,874 134,508 139,382

UG FEH (s 1) Charged to income statement (Note 11) 693 37,656 38,349
TSN AU e] &K Loans written off during the year as

uncollectible (290) (290)

Wi Bl E A IR Recoveries @) - (4)

PR S 7= %H Exchange difference - (1,104) (1,104)

2017 £ 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2017 5,273 171,060 176,333
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23. EnKBERE (8

23. Loan impairment allowances (continued)

2016
T )5S
Individually assessed

fELA ] Hat

Personal Corporate Total

AT T AT IT BT

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

2016 F1 H 1 H At 1 January 2016 - 65,003 65,003

PG (T 11) Charged to income statement (Note 11) - 36,718 36,718
TR AU E] B Loans written off during the year as

uncollectible - (21,511) (21,511)

W B R Recoveries - 7,744 7,744

PR E X EHE [ Unwind of discount on impairment

allowances - (948) (948)

VE SR Exchange difference - (3,598) (3,598)

22016 412 H 31 H At 31 December 2016 - 83,408 83,408

2016
T & RS
Collectively assessed
{EA AE] {5

Personal Corporate Total

T BT BHTIT

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

20161 H1H At 1 January 2016 4,631 107,020 111,651

UG FEH (s 1) Charged to income statement (Note 11) 713 26,378 27,091
FEAEY > e &= Loans written off during the year as

uncollectible (469) - (469)

Wi Bl E A IR Recoveries 1) - (1)

PEE £ 75 %H Exchange difference - 1,110 1,110

J*2016 /£12 H 31 H At 31 December 2016 4,874 134,508 139,382
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157

24. BEEE 24. Investment in securities
2017
AL ETEE FRESHRCART IR
At fair value At amortised cost
BEZE
THEESRE  FIPEES  SRRERGK
Available- Held-to- Loans
for-sale maturity and Qe
securities securities receivables Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
% Treasury bills 3,944,229 - - 3,944,229
HA{EBE 4% Other debt securities 12,937,252 - - 12,937,252
16,881,481 - - 16,881,481
Fass Certificates of deposit 3,039,037 - - 3,039,037
{538 75 AT A e R Total debt securities and
certificates of deposit 19,920,518 - - 19,920,518
Bt sz Equity securities 90,943 - - 90,943
20,011,461 - - 20,011,461
2016
FE N AT IR FBESH AT IR
At fair value At amortised cost
Az
ot e IS SEORJERGK
Available- Held-to- Loans
for-sale maturity and 4
securities securities receivables Total
WETT BT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
[E% Treasury bills 1,707,412 - - 1,707,412
HoAth (7558 77 Other debt securities 6,094,061 - 531,322 6,625,383
7,801,473 - 531,322 8,332,795
yex(6ic Certificates of deposit 5,049,642 - - 5,049,642
(B AT e AEH Total debt securities and
certificates of deposit 12,851,115 - 531,322 13,382,437
Edfir ez Equity securities 5,239 . N 5,239
12,856,354 - 531,322 13,387,676
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24. Investment in securities (continued)

Investment in securities is analysed by place of listing as follows:

2017
HEZR

b EHESF  IHIRES  SRREREK
Available- Held-to- Loans
for-sale maturity and
securities securities receivables
AT BETT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000

Debt securities and certificates of deposit

- Listed in Hong Kong 6,929,382 -

- Listed outside Hong Kong 3,605,483 -
10,534,865 -

- Unlisted 9,385,653 -
19,920,518 -

Equity securities

- Listed in Hong Kong 76,665 -

- Unlisted 14,278 -
90,943 -

20,011,461 R

Market value of listed held-to-maturity
securities
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24. BEEE (8) 24. Investment in securities (continued)
2016
FaEZz ‘
AL ERS S FIFAHE S  ERURERGR
Available- Held-to- Loans
for-sale maturity and
securities securities receivables
HEEETTT HEEETTT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
{EaE 5 MRS Debt securities and certificates of deposit
- REBLT - Listed in Hong Kong 3,112,447 - _
- NEABDSN - Listed outside Hong Kong 1,690,365 - -
4,802,812 - -
- Ik - Unlisted 8,048,303 - 531,322
12,851,115 - 531,322
Rty 8 25 Equity securities
- WEE LT - Listed in Hong Kong - - )
- JEEm - Unlisted 5,239 B} _
5,239 - -
12,856,354 - 531,322
FAEZEMH EhESs Market value of listed held-to-maturity
i securities
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24. Investment in securities (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Investment in securities is analysed by type of issuer as follows:

Sovereigns
Banks and other financial institutions
Corporate entities

Sovereigns
Banks and other financial institutions
Corporate entities
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2017

BEZ
WHHEEEF  FHIHES SRR
Available- Held-to- Loans
for-sale maturity and
securities securities receivables
AT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
5,099,986 - -
10,359,820 - -
4,551,655 - -
20,011,461 - -

2016

SRR
Tk ERSS FIIAHES ERJERGK
Available- Held-to- Loans
for-sale maturity and
securities securities receivables
BETT  BETT  BETIL
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
4,170,843 - -
7,779,887 - 531,322
905,624 - -
12,856,354 - 531,322
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2017412 H 31 H
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ATAEE:
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#2016 412 31 A

24. Investment in securities (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The movements in investment in securities are summarised as follows:

At 1 January 2017

Additions

Disposals, redemptions and maturity
Amortisation

Change in fair value

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2017

At 1 January 2016

Additions

Disposals, redemptions and maturity
Amortisation

Change in fair value

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2016
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2017

BEZ
WHtHEEE  FHIHES  SRRKEBGK
Available- Held-to- Loans
for-sale maturity and
securities securities receivables
BT OBNTRT OEWTR
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
12,856,354 - 531,322
30,886,223 - -
(24,038,854) - (533,249)
76,777 - 1,231
(40,553) - -
271,514 - 696
20,011,461 - R

2016

A=z
RS FIMHES  ERRJERGK
Available- Held-to- Loans
for-sale maturity and
securities securities receivables
AT IT AETIT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
10,736,574 - -
16,749,638 - 524,979
(14,321,966) - -
(2,312) - 6,358
(51,410) - -
(254,170) - (15)
12,856,354 - 531,322
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25. &Y 25. Investment properties
2017 2016
AT T IT
HK$’000 HK$'000
W1HL1H At 1 January 203,860 246,860
NFEEU S (BE) Fair value gains/(loss) (Note 13)
(BfsE 13) 11,050 (14,100)
ETEEE Y - B Reclassification to properties, plant and
et (BEE 26) equipment (Note 26) - (28,900)
W12 H31 H At 31 December 214,910 203,860
= CUE WA ik e ] The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based on the remaining terms of
ERIAIR AR the leases as follows:
2017 2016
BT AHETIE
HK$°000 HK$'000
EEBRA Held in Hong Kong
FRIHELY (8 50 4F) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 205,810 196,160
EEEDINTE Held outside Hong Kong
HHEATHAT (10 422 50 4F) On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 9,100 7,700
214,910 203,860
#2017 £ 12 H 31 H » %] As at 31 December 2017, investment properties were included in the statement of
AR L BN Z B Y financial position at valuation carried out at 31 December 2017 on the basis of their fair
2 TR 2 value by an independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair
PR EFET AR A SR value represents the price that would be received to sell each investment property in an
2017412 H 31 H LA EH orderly transaction with market participants at the measurement date.

RSP T 2 B E -
NPEEESREREEA
BRI T A 52
HE N EF—HREYEE
HUSHIERS -
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26. WI5% ~ SV BeEktf

26. Properties, plant and equipment

Bt~ Bl
BE SR B st
Equipment,
fixtures and
Premises fittings Total
AT AT ARTIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
MN2017 1 H1H> Net book value at 1,489,261 43,112 1,532,373
FRHEDFE 1 January 2017
by Additions 43,015 11,510 54,525
e Disposals (52) (346) (398)
(R Revaluation (8,701) - (8,701)
FEREHTEE (Kfer 12) Depreciation for the year (Note 12) (18,058) (7,809) (25,867)
FRERE Impairment for the year ; ; _
O EE A KR Reclassification from investment
(b3 25) properties (Note 25) - - -
i Transfer 836 (836) -
PR 0 2R Exchange difference 1) 322 321
201712 H 31 H>Z Net book value at
WRTHH{E 31 December 2017 1,506,300 45,953 1,552,253
2017412 H 31 H At 31 December 2017
A E S E Cost or valuation 1,506,300 146,691 1,652,991
EEHE N EUE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment - (100,738) (100,738)
201712 H 31 H> Net book value at
RETELHE 31 December 2017 1,506,300 45,953 1,552,253
A RANME B The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:
SIMTUTT
2017412 H 31 H At 31 December 2017
HRAME At cost - 146,691 146,691
5 E At valuation 1,506,300 - 1,506,300
1,506,300 146,691 1,652,991
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26. WI5E ~ B3V BEktf

26. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

(%)
Bt~ EE
B Bdi& S HEst
Equipment,
fixtures and
Premises fittings Total
HBEETIT BEETIT ARTIT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
HR2016 1 H 1 H> Net book value at
WRHFHE 1 January 2016 1,495,414 38,388 1,533,802
e Additions 25,532 14,859 40,391
i Disposals 917) - (917)
ik Revaluation (41,633) - (41,633)
FEEHE (i 12) Depreciation for the year (Note 12) (18,034) (9,862) (27,896)
FRERE Impairment for the year B} B} _
B BB Y Reclassification from investment
(FfzE 25) properties (Note 25) 28,900 - 28,900
DR S A H Exchange difference 1) (273) (274)
2016 412 H 31 H> Net book value at
WRTHH{E 31 December 2016 1,489,261 43,112 1,532,373
2016412 H 31 H At 31 December 2016
AE S G E Cost or valuation 1,489,261 138,588 1,627,849
BEHTEE SORE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment - (95,476) (95,476)
2016 412 H 31 H> Net book value at
WRTHSE 31 December 2016 1,489,261 43,112 1,532,373
A RANME B The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:
ST ¢
2016 412 H 31 H At 31 December 2016
HRAME At cost 138,588 138,588
FAHE At valuation 1,489,261 - 1,489,261
1,489,261 138,588 1,627,849
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26. YI5E ~ B3V Bkt

26. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

(&)

R Z R E FAR 4IRIB R
FROTATAIT -

EEEEE
FHIHET (i 50 &)
FRHEATHAY (10 % 50 ££)

EEBLINTE
FHIHET (i 50 &)
FPHATHLY (10 % 50 ££)

#2017 £ 12 A 31 H » 71
A BRI EN Z B EE » T
i 2 RVEET i k= teliE S Tap|
SHTARAER 2017 4
12 7 31 HEPAAHE AR
FTEfT 2 B (E - A PE
et BE B EEART K
ZHIEI T T2
EF—-HEEENGNE
1% o

RPE B EfGEER - B
M EEET I EE LR
BTG RAERRATT

fiFe o e B i e A 2 B it K
{IE1
HfiBEZFEE . (BHR)

2017412 31 H - {#
B EAE BN EAK R et
IS FOR A IRARTINR - AR
] B IR LR N 2 s e
Z B W R E E R B
355,329,000 7T (2016 £F :
HEWE 283,386,000 7T -

The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the remaining terms of the leases as
follows:

2017 2016
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Held in Hong Kong

On long-term lease (over 50 years) 1,144,000 1,132,857
On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 324,500 321,545

Held outside Hong Kong
On long-term lease (over 50 years) 34,200 31,959
On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 3,600 2,900
1,506,300 1,489,261

As at 31 December 2017, premises were included in the statement of financial position at
valuation carried out at 31 December 2017 on the basis of their fair value by an
independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value
represents the price that would be received to sell each premises in an orderly
transaction with market participants at the measurement date.

As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes in value of the premises were
recognised in the premises revaluation reserve and income statement as follows:

2017 2016
AR AT T
HK$°000 HK$'000

Decrease in valuation charged to premises
revaluation reserve (9,403) (40,931)
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of premises 702 (702)
(8,701) (41,633)

As at 31 December 2017, the net book value of premises that would have been included
in the Group’s statement of financial position had the premises been carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses was HK$355,329,000 (2016:
HK$283,386,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

27. Other assets

Precious metals
Accounts receivable and prepayments

28. Deposits from customers

Demand deposits and current accounts
- Corporate
- Personal

Savings deposits
- Corporate
- Personal

Time, call and notice deposits
- Corporate
- Personal

29. Other accounts and provisions

Other accounts payable
Provisions
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2017 2016
AT AT
HK$°000 HK$ 000

38,418 57,023
787,363 664,079
825,781 721,102

2017 2016
EETT BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000
7,195,179 4,678,808
729,061 566,507
7,924,240 5,245,315
5,100,928 4,103,772
14,993,695 14,536,543
20,094,623 18,640,315
15,525,976 10,438,659
19,734,598 11,113,331
35,260,574 21,551,990
63,279,437 45,437,620
2017 2016
BT BETIT
HK$’000 HK$°000
998,725 534,044
1,343 23,644
1,000,068 557,688
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

30. Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements and

R R ER MBS

S ELAE U S e P IR T
W 2 B I P2 B R R fE

IR R e -

M BHIRI RN Z IR LR T
(BE) /AfTEEES -

DUR HAE N Z A

T

B2017E1H1H

Bt (HRD) Witk
(BffE 15)

BRCHA AU R
bEST A=A

H2017£12 A 31 H

H2016 21 H1H

st/ (H&) ek
(P 15)

HRrHAM e
VEE S22

72016 212 H 31 H

unused tax credits in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”.

The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recorded in the statement of
financial position, and the movements during the year are as follows:

2017
o] o .
e BEEM [ G| BEAEE H §Est
Accelerated
tax Premises Impairment
depreciation revaluation Losses allowance Others Total
EMTT B¥TT B¥To BT A¥TT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
At 1 January 2017 13,971 208,855 (44,149) (33,069) 145,608
Charged/(credited) to
income statement
(Note 15) 3,950 466 (5,834) 299 (1,119)
Credited to other
comprehensive income (3,798) - (9,110) (12,908)
Exchange difference - (3,538) - (3,538)
At 31 December 2017 17,921 205,523 (53,521) (41,880) 128,043
2016
hnTes ) ]
EFR%E A B &8 B HAth Hast
Accelerated
tax Premises Impairment
depreciation _revaluation Losses allowance Others Total
BT BT BT AT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2016 9,977 214,083 (52) (29,530) (24,101) 170,377
Charged/(credited) to
income statement
(Note 15) 3,994 2,635 52 (17,697) (83) (11,099)
Credited to other
comprehensive income (7,863) - (8,885) (16,748)
Exchange difference - 3,078 R 3,078
At 31 December 2016 13,971 208,855 (44,149) (33,069) 145,608
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30. WEEFIE (&) 30. Deferred taxation (continued)
EREEMRER AR Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual entity basis when there is a
THE EEARIE A FER legal right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
B > TR AEATIE D R R — taxation relates to the same authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate
R - RIATAFE A A A HY offsetting, are shown in the statement of financial position:

R FIE RO I A E B IR A S T
SIS - TIHEM
IRRAIIIR 2 80 Eat

A E RS
2017 2016
BETT BT
HK$°000 HK$ 000
IRIEFIEE Deferred tax assets (19,911) (14,179)
IRIEFTEE (& Deferred tax liabilities 147,954 159,787
128,043 145,608
31. A 31. Share capital
2017 2016
BETT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
EETTREUE : Issued and fully paid:
3,000,000 Mm% 3,000,000 ordinary shares 300,000 300,000
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B PRR s ARIFTRR A -
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¥ H 5520184E5H 29 -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

32. Additional equity instruments

2017 2016
BT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
US$250 million perpetual non-cumulative
subordinated additional tier 1 capital securities 1,937,712 -

On 29 November 2017, the Bank issued perpetual non-cumulative subordinated additional
tier 1 capital securities (“additional equity instruments”) with a face value of US$250 million
(equivalent to HK$1,938 million net of related issuance costs). The additional equity
instruments are perpetual and bear a 5.25% coupon until the first call date on 29 November
2022. The coupon will be reset every five years if the additional equity instruments are not
redeemed to a fixed rate equivalent to the then-prevailing five-year US Treasury rate plus a
fixed initial spread.

The coupon shall be payable semi-annually. The Bank has the right to cancel coupon
payment (subject to the requirement as set out in the terms and conditions of the additional
equity instruments) and the coupon cancelled shall not be cumulative.

The principal of the additional equity instruments will be written down to the amount as
directed or agreed with the HKMA if the HKMA notifies the Bank that the Bank would
become non-viable if there is no written down of the principal.

The Bank has a call option to redeem all the outstanding additional equity instruments from
29 November 2022 or any subsequent coupon payment date, but subject to restriction as
set out in the terms and conditions.

The first coupon date of this additional equity instruments is at 29 May 2018.
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() &EBFIZERIEATL

BHEZRA Oft
H) Bk

el
P15
IR ELE RS
PrE A Aol
EifsE 2 SR (kR
B CED)
JFEIHH&E®E 3 EHZ
FEIERAT R FoM 2
TSR Z )
JFEIHH&E®E 3 EHZ
FESRAT e Hofth Bl
M ENFICZ )
FHE By DL P EE bRt
A2 EREREZ
TSR TR 2 B
SRR AR 2 558
R B
Hith g 2 58)
FRAT R HA R
Tk B itk 2
TR )
HMARTH R e 2 )
bERERE)

FRFRATACE IS A
S CRED

KRB HERET
BT
- BYAIE
- BAFE
- EYE

before taxation

Operating profit

Depreciation

Net charge of impairment allowances

Unwind of discount on impairment allowances
Advances written off net of recoveries

Change in balances with banks and other
financial institutions with original maturity over
three months

Change in placements with banks and other
financial institutions with original maturity over
three months

Change in financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss

Change in derivative financial instruments

Change in advances and other accounts

Change in investment in securities

Change in other assets

Change in deposits and balances from banks
and other financial institutions

Change in deposits from customers

Change in other accounts and provisions

Effect of changes in exchange rates

Operating cash inflow/(outflow) before taxation
Cash flows from operating activities included:
— Interest received

— Interest paid
— Dividend received
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash inflow/(outflow)

2017 2016
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
886,890 783,390
25,867 27,896
62,300 63,917
(2,639) (948)
(40,237) (14,236)
215,763 (252,993)
236,904 2,261,449
441,718 331,938
(27,893) (15,500)
(11,940,582) (3,394,288)
(4,570,228) (3,146,218)
(104,610) (570,726)
8,983,579 (201,947)
17,841,817 676,706
442,380 (406,040)
(95,716) (29,666)
12,355,313 (3,887,266)
1,293,175 1,197,329
(365,989) (326,478)
2,380 7,402
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33. EEFHSMERME 33. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)
(8

(b) & MERBRETEEHSE (b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
Forth
2017 2016
AWTIT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEFERS KFESIEHEHE 3 Cash and balances with banks and other
BN BERsh T R & financial institutions with original maturity
it R A4S AR within three months 16,910,381 4,681,026
FEEIHIHGE 3 MARNZE Placements with banks and other financial
SRAT Ry Eo 4 ml Ak > institutions with original maturity within
EHAERL three months _ 20,059
EFEFHIHE 3B Treasury bills with original maturity within
[ % three months 1,613,199 -
FEHIEHE 3B Certificates of deposit with original maturity
70 within three months 489,136 .
19,012,716 4,701,085
(c) HHgEESHI BRI E (c) Reconciliation with the consolidated statement of financial position
W&
2017 2016
AT HBIETIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
EFERE REIGRTRE Cash and balances with banks and other
4 iR I 45 AR financial institutions 17,287,963 5,274,371
TESRAT B HoAth < Bl A — Placements with banks and other financial
ZEFTE AANERZ E institutions maturing between one and
IR twelve months 780,905 1,037,868
HHHEE Investment in securities
Hop o A EEE Of which: Available- for-sale securities 20,011,461 12,856,354
TEGEE BRI R FT R Amount shown in the consolidated statement
& of financial position 38,080,329 19,168,593
B AR A 3 @A Less: Amounts with an original maturity of
DO beyond three months (19,067,613) (14,467,508)
TESF IR E BRI Cash and cash equivalents in the
SRERFEHEE consolidated cash flow statement 19,012,716 4,701,085
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34. SRIRE(EFRIE 34. Contingent liabilities and commitments
EARBRERRIE 2 IRA A The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each significant class of
AT R LR Y &8 R IRRIVE contingent liability and commitment and the aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and
e rmdRed - HAgTHE T is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of capital
Az G AR R A E SRR adequacy ratio.
RESSERR AT
2017 2016
BT AT T
HK$°000 HK$°000
HFEEEREE Direct credit substitutes 9,930 5,148
HAZZ B AR iR & E Transaction-related contingencies 34,579 25,786
B B AR iR EE Trade-related contingencies 999,301 535,430
REE IR Commitments that are unconditionally cancellable
K without prior notice 7,305,474 6,026,415
HAtrRyE > [REHIH B Other commitments with an original maturity of
-1FEHT - up to one year 123,054 93,769
1R - over one year 2,523,220 1,782,194
10,995,558 8,468,742
(S & E It EEE Credit risk-weighted amount 1,579,341 782,016
EE R IR BEERE (5} The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
172 (BAR) #HA) =& - 1t Rules. The amount is dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity
HEERC AT B F 2 B characteristics of each type of contract.
BIEGHZ HHRE M -
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35. BEAKIE 35. Capital commitments
AR R T 75 e 3 o #s The Group has the following outstanding capital commitments not provided for in the financial
2 EARESHOT statements:
2017 2016
AT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
(e e EE R T Authorised and contracted for but not provided for 578 15,651
CUtEEAREL Authorised but not contracted for - -
578 15,651
DA B ARAE R 5y Ry i The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments to purchase computer
A BERSHEE BR > DU equipment and software, and to renovate the Group’s premises.
AR I TR 2K
i
36. ZOBFHEXKE 36. Operating lease commitments
(a) fERZEFAA (a) As lessee
R4 B =~ &8 The Group has commitments to make the following future minimum lease payments
HEEY THIRASE under non-cancellable operating leases:
B R AR A R FH 7R
FrZE S5 2 i<
2017 2016
AT HAIETIT
HK$°000 HK$’000
T R Land and buildings
- i 1A - Not later than one year 31,934 28,566
-1FEMEESFERN - Later than one year but not later than five
years 33,137 24,721
65,071 53,287
T TR 2 4 Certain non-cancellable operating leases included in the table above were subject to
LT R k20 renegotiation and rent adjustment with reference to market rates prevailing at specified
Tohafe H HA =~ T EBEE agreed dates or according to the special condition as stipulated in the leases.
KINIFE AR R BH
VEFH 3%
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36. LLBEHERE (&)

(b) fERHFEA

FRABA FT LN 2 &L
&L TV AL
HEEITENZAKA
BAE L fe (BB SR 5 -

BN NS ==
- R 14
S LAEDLEE 5 AR

FREE L EHE
THH R EE  FHE R
HEH 1HEE 34
LI — R R & i
SR EE B KR R A H
i > RERH S T 0L 2R
TMHEEERH S -

37. HF

755 ] TE T ¥ % JH 81
A LR E R KR
{8 - ZERERLRELEAR
SRV IEF RS EAR -

MR E S AR E T
HRANELA PR
BT RS R B
TR BAEAREILERE R
FRME N E ARG -

36. Operating lease commitments (continued)

(b) As lessor

The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases:

2017 2016
BT IT AT
HK$’000 HK$°000
Land and buildings

- Not later than one year 4,887 3,272

- Later than one year but not later than
five years 2,401 1,431
7,288 4,703

The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease arrangements, with
leases typically for a period from one to three years. The terms of the leases generally
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for rent adjustments according
to the prevailing market conditions at the expiration of the lease.

37. Litigation

The Group has been served a number of claims and counterclaims by various independent
parties. These claims and counterclaims are in relation to the normal commercial activities
of the Group.

No material provision was made against these claims and counterclaims because the
directors believe that the Group has meritorious defences against the claimants or the
amounts involved in these claims are not expected to be material.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

38. Segmental reporting

(a) Operating segments information

The Group divides its businesses into three operating segments. They are
Personal Banking, Corporate Banking and Treasury. The classification of
the Group’s operating segments is based on customer segment and
product type.

Both Personal Banking and Corporate Banking provide general banking
services including various deposit products, overdrafts, loans, trade related
products and other credit facilities, investment and insurance products, and
foreign currency and derivative products. Personal Banking mainly serves
retail customers while Corporate Banking mainly deals with corporate
customers. Treasury manages the funding and liquidity, and the interest
rate and foreign exchange positions of the Group in addition to proprietary
trades. “Others” mainly represents the Group’s holdings of premises,
investment properties and equity investments.

Measurement of segment assets, liabilities, income, expenses, results and
capital expenditure is based on the Group’s accounting policies. The
segment information includes items directly attributable to a segment as
well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Inter-segment
funding is charged according to the internal funds transfer pricing
mechanism of the Group, which is primarily based on market rates with the
consideration of specific features of the product.

As the Group derives a majority of revenue from interest and the senior
management relies primarily on net interest income in managing the
business, interest income and expense for all reportable segments are
presented on a net basis.

175



< X

Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

BRI (8D

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

38. EHE (&)

38. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) HEEBEY (&)

(a) Operating segments information (continued)

2017
EASHT T  UEEH HAth, et EhHES e
Personal  Corporate
Banking Banking Treasury Others Subtotal Eliminations Consolidated
WETT BT AWTT AT BT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FRIE (GZH) A Netinterest (expense)/income
- Ik - External (108,683) 705,985 353,202 - 950,504 - 950,504
- P - Inter-segment 397,871  (205,561)  (192,310) - - - -
289,188 500,424 160,892 - 950,504 - 950,504
HIREE RS A Netfee and commission
income 243,428 206,682 880 - 450,990 - 450,990
FR GRS (5 Nettrading gain/(loss)
Ei=)) 18,406 10,431 843 (21,745) 7,935 - 7,935
FERBLAHESHE  Netgain on financial
S AEES SRl T. instruments designated at fair
HREs value through profit or loss - - 793 - 793 - 793
HoptreRmbigie 5 Net (loss)/gain on other
(B8 s financial assets - (58) 8,225 - 8,167 - 8,167
HAZ A Other operating income 73 592 - 32,220 32,885 (25,194) 7,691
HEHUREEERTS Net operating income before
LN impairment allowances 551,005 718,071 171,633 10,475 1,451,274  (25,194) 1,426,080
TRAEZER S Net charge of impairment
allowances (1,491)  (60,806) - 3) (62,300) - (62,300)
TREBUTA Net operating income 549,604 657,265 171,633 10,472 1,388,974 (25,194) 1,363,780
2O Operating expenses (293,676) (123,800) (18,736) (65,872) (502,084) 25,194 (476,890)
K (BBR) Operating profit/(loss) 255,928 533,465 152,897 (55,400) 886,890 - 886,890
YL N Net gain from fair value
2GS adjustments on
investment properties - - - 11,050 11,050 - 11,050
e EftEE - 28 Netgain from
MRSl disposal/revaluation of
properties, plant and
equipment - - - 702 702 - 702
BEETSA (BE)  Profit/(loss) before taxation 255,928 533,465 152,897 (43,648) 898,642 - 898,642
=73 Assets
A Segment assets 11,157,458 37,427,977 33,714,547 1,788,949 84,088,931 - 84,088,931
& Liabilities
SrEfEE Segment liabilities 46,934,286 20,678,962 6,564,641 347,545 74,525,434 - 74,525,434
HAtrEDe} Other information
BN Capital expenditure 12,540 758 29 41,200 54,527 - 54,527
ree Depreciation 104 17 16,875 8,871 25,867 - 25,867
Egan: ] Amortisation of securities - - (78,008) - (78,008) - (78,008)
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38. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) Operating segments information (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

FHE (ZH) /WA Netinterest (expense)/income
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2016
ASYT T RSt At et EOHEH GrE
Personal Corporate
Banking Banking Treasury Others Subtotal _Eliminations  Consolidated
AT HEETT AT AT AT AT BEETT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
- External (14,268) 545,250 308,099 - 839,081 - 839,081
- Inter-segment 314,383  (104,373)  (210,010) - - - -
300,115 440,877 98,089 - 839,081 - 839,081
Net fee and commission
income/(expense) 213,795 96,193 (432) - 309,556 - 309,556
Net trading gain/(loss)
17,844 13,058 (2,202) 36,025 64,725 - 64,725
Net loss on financial
instruments designated at fair
value through profit or loss - - (7,190) - (7,190) - (7,190)
Net (loss)/gain on other
financial assets - (116) 12,559 71,892 84,335 - 84,335
Other operating income 75 2,818 - 38,536 41,429 (26,173) 15,256
Net operating income before
impairment allowances 531,829 552,830 100,824 146,453 1,331,936 (26,173) 1,305,763
Net (charge)/reversal of
impairment allowances (1,062) (63,743) - 888 (63,917) - (63,917)
Net operating income 530,767 489,087 100,824 147,341 1,268,019 (26,173) 1,241,846
Operating expenses (294,312)  (114,137) (16,386) (59,794) (484,629) 26,173 (458,456)
Operating profit 236,455 374,950 84,438 87,547 783,390 - 783,390
Net loss from fair value
adjustments on
investment properties - - - (14,100) (14,100) - (14,100)
Net loss from
disposal/revaluation of
properties, plant and
equipment - - - (667) (667) - (667)
Profit before taxation 236,455 374,950 84,438 72,780 768,623 - 768,623
Assets
Segment assets 9,303,696 23,952,327 19,147,478 1,658,758 54,062,259 - 54,062,259
Liabilities
Segment liabilities 35,826,897 10,822,718 293,266 289,119 47,232,000 - 47,232,000
Other information
Capital expenditure - 1,133 - 39,258 40,391 - 40,391
Depreciation 6,008 3,944 139 17,805 27,896 - 27,896
Amortisation of securities - - (4,045) - (4,045) - (4,045)
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38. EEHE (&) 38. Segmental reporting (continued)
(b) FEHEEIREY (b) By geographical area
PUNE R R £ 2 The following information is presented based on the principal places of operations:
EEEMEL T
2017 2016
FRHUBRE FRHCRE P
EHRIZ BRIRAT HEHRTZ i ‘E;’d
BEBWA A FECEUTA it
Net operating Net operating .
income before Profit  income before Profit
impairment before impairment before
allowance taxation allowance taxation
BT AT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
Ak Hong Kong 1,320,121 875,847 1,133,900 727,426
R A3 Mainland of
China 105,959 22,795 171,863 41,197
1,426,080 898,642 1,305,763 768,623
2017 2016
BEE E | =3 dEE JEREhEE
Non-current Non-current
Total assets assets Total assets Assets
BT AT BT HETIT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hitk Hong Kong 74,240,614 1,763,057 50,703,565 1,731,013
R A3 Mainland of
China 9,848,317 4,392 3,358,694 5,248
84,088,931 1,767,449 54,062,259 1,736,261
39. B EE 39. Assets pledged as security
2017412 H31H » A% As at 31 December 2017, the liabilities of the Group amounting to HK$2,387,000 (2016:
B BRI 2 B E R HK$667,000) were secured by bills. The amount of assets pledged by the Group to secure
7 #4 2,387,000 7t ( 2016 these liabilities was HK$2,373,000 (2016: HK$665,000) included in “Trade bills”.

4 1 J#5667,0007T ) - A%
] R 12 O L 55 5 (3R 1T
2,373,0007T (20164 :
#4665,0007T ) Wit " H 5
gL MBI -
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40. &R T B Z1E$5 40. Offsetting financial instruments
TRITAEECTIRS =2
BT MR RRSS E A s A
LAt AH 2T 1h s & S AN < il

The following tables present details of the Group’s financial instruments subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements:

THEFFE -
2017
RERMBR R TR
THRESER
Related amounts not set
off in the statement of
. . financial position
REBERRRS REBREES
ERRLR G CRERem JIm S E . Bomz
HEELREH AR A ST A B izt
Gross amounts of
Gross recognised Net amounts of
amounts of financial liabilities  financial assets
recognised set off inthe presented in the Cash
financial statement of statement of Financial collateral Net
assets financial position financial position instruments received amount
ARTIT BEWETIT BEWETIT AWTIT AWTIT BETT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
&E Assets
#7445l Derivative financial
TH instruments 33,653 - 33,653 (5,516) - 28,137
HAr&EZE Other assets 949,188 (424,913) 524,275 - - 524,275
982,841 (424,913) 557,928 (5,516) - 552412
2017
RERMBRRETEH
FHREEH
Related amounts not set
off in the statement of
R . financial position
_ RMBRRET REBRILRS
CHERSA {EH DR SImI S A & . Bl
=itk | AR A8 EMT A e B
Gross amounts of Net amounts of
Gross recognised financial
amounts of  financial assets liabilities
recognised set off inthe presented in the Cash
financial statement of statement of Financial collateral Net
liabilities financial position financial position _instruments pledged amount
AT BT BT HERTIT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
=i Liabilities
£74E 4R Derivative financial
TEH instruments 5,516 - 5,516 (5,516) - -
HAth&f{& Other liabilities 443,693 (424,913) 18,780 - - 18,780
449,209 (424,913) 24,296 (5,516) - 18,780
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40. &RET E 7S () 40. Offsetting financial instruments (continued)

RE

Assets

74 4 Fh Derivative financial

TR

instruments

HAth&#ZE  Other assets

=i}

#7445t Derivative financial

TE
HAth & {5

Liabilities

instruments
Other liabilities

2016
RERM BRI FHEEH
islEaE
Related amounts not set off
in the statement of financial
N N position
o RMEBIRERT RMER LR
ORGSR R OSSR IR e E E [=tie e -
LA B fEAEEE TR ST A Bl PR
Gross amounts of
Gross recognised Net amounts of
amounts of  financial liabilities financial assets
recognised set off in the presented in the Cash
financial statement of statement of Financial collateral Net
assets  financial position  financial position  instruments received amount
AT AHET T AT BT OBNTL BNTT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3,293 - 3,293 (3,293) - -
613,296 (505,764) 107,532 - - 107,532
616,589 (505,764) 110,825 (3,293) - 107,532
2016
RENMBIRONEPIREE
il
Related amounts not set off
in the statement of financial
N N position
o RMEBRIRT RER LR
CRElSRl i CHRei R & & M [i% s o -
A feE B fEAEEH R SR TH i PR
Gross amounts of Net amounts of
Gross recognised financial
amounts of financial assets set liabilities
recognised off in the presented in the Cash
financial statement of statement of Financial collateral Net
liabilities  financial position _ financial position _instruments pledged amount
HHETTL HHETTL BT BT BT BN
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
5,558 - 5,558 (3,293) - 2,265
517,013 (505,764) 11,249 - - 11,249
522,571 (505,764) 16,807 (3,293) - 13,514
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40. &RET E2#$Y () 40. Offsetting financial instruments (continued)

AR EEGETE RSN For master netting agreements for OTC derivative transactions entered into by the Group
ETERZ G FHERE related amounts with the same counterparty can be offset if an event of default or other
Tohade > (Mo 38 A R A B LA predetermined events occur.
BhHFEN A Al[E—2
ZyiF 2 M e B T ER
TFEHAEE -
41. EEHEEWK 41. Loans to directors
RgEE (AR 5 Particulars of loans made to directors of the Bank pursuant to section 383 of the Hong
383fr ke (AH (FEHESE Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Flza &R #fl) FE=% Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
HIBUE » [FIASRT T HHE
i ERGEENT
2017 2016
AT BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
R M AR 2 AR Aggregate amount of relevant transactions
X5 HE outstanding at year end - :
NENREERERZ S Maximum aggregate amount of relevant
= B8R transactions outstanding during the year - 3,704
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42. FEEMEALARE 42. Significant related party transactions

BATIHIHEAZRL -

AR E AT E R A E TR
TR R A AR E 25
32,114,773 By - Hrp
fy 1,929,373 RL&ETHME
PERAEAIRAE (T EMERE
RE ) AT R TEE
SRITRRAATRAE (T EFE
MRS ) BV REIEAT
185,400 fe TIRFEMZ
B Wit 2017 4£ 3 A 27
H (B2 #ET5E > Ak
Y R M A % AR IE R
AR

745 B P T P B R SR AT e %
el BFIERRR TR — AT
e \RSEFIE] (T )
JRILAT SRR T

(2) BRI RN
2 Fopt A AT
%5

0}

AR 2 E RN E]
EEREIE SRR
MRAE T HEREES
) EREIESER
B FIEPE R = A E
ANE) AP A
FIR SR T 2B -

K HR oy 8L PRI SR AT
BT IR A &
BT o 0 2017 4F 12
H 31 H - AEEIHRANE
W e FEAS [ P BB SR AT
IR SRR o3 ) R VB
2,909,000 T K # #
3,285,218,000 7T {4
A HAZE 2017 4 12 A
31 HEFMEIFRTTAL
LB AR A
A R ST HH 48R 51 A
Ryl 271,000 JTEGH
% 1,404,000 T -

General information of the parent companies:

BOCHK, the Group’s former immediate holding company, disposed 2,114,773 shares,
being all interests in the Group, of which 1,929,373 shares to Xiamen International
Investment Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd, and
185,400 shares to Committee of Jimei Schools respectively. The transaction was
completed and the shares transfer of the Group was effected on 27 March 2017 (“effective
date”).

The Group is ultimately controlled by Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd., which is a
Chinese commercial bank established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

(@) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
controlled by the parent companies

0]

The Group’s immediate holding company is Chiyu International Financial Holdings
Limited (“Chiyu International Holdings”), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Xiamen
International Investment Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by Xiamen
International Bank Co., Ltd.

The majority of transactions with Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. arise from
money market activities. As at 31 December 2017, the related aggregate amount due
from and to Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. of the Group were HK$2,909,000 and
HK$3,285,218,000. The aggregate amounts of income and expenses of the Group
arising from these transactions with Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. from effective
date to 31 December 2017 were HK$271,000 and HK$1,404,000 respectively.
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42. FEEMEALAE 42. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(4)

() BERAE R B E]

ZHANAFETHRS
(8

R oy LR E PR 2
AT G RE & T
e A 2017 42 12 H 31
H > A AR R RS By
&M 74,737,000 7T - B2
2017 4£ 12 H 31 H F4FEE
SLBESY B 2 HoAth A ]
RSB A ERE P A
HYSZ HIHEBR Ry ki 68,000
S

(i)

AEEEPL 2017 £ 3 H 27
Halz EEER A S
AR M iREEEZ
BUSRAT 2] -

b < 2 TP B R T 2 PR Y
B INET R 2 AT E S
EIRNI EE i o a=o i =
RAEEEHNRAEEE

A -

3

b <5 Y AL P st T AR T B
AR -

rhEE N B R B 5 e 2
i T 5 R B < R R B
ftizEd > i s RN
BRI BT R ~
BRARE - TSt R LA
A B L P e
IR AN TG - AR %
— fik T S PR KB BT
T - (CEARAE - IRt e
LA B A P ) AR AT
MHATHER RS -

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
controlled by the parent companies (continued)

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies
arise from deposits from customers. As at 31 December 2017, the related aggregate
amount of the Group was HK$74,737,000. The aggregate amount of expenses of the
Group arising from these transactions with other companies controlled by the parent
companies for the year ended 31 December 2017 was HK$68,000.

(ii)
Prior to 27 March 2017, the Group’s immediate holding company is BOCHK, which
is in turn controlled by BOC.

Central Huijin is the controlling entity of BOC, and it is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
CIC which is a wholly state-owned company engaging in foreign currency
investment management.

Central Huijin has controlling equity interests in certain other entities in the PRC.

The Group is subjected to the control of the State Council of the PRC Government
through CIC and Central Huijin, which also directly or indirectly controls a significant
number of entities through its government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other
state controlled entities. The Group enters into banking transactions with government
authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state controlled entities in the normal course
of business at commercial terms.
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42. FEEMEALAE 42. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(4)

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies

() BERAE R B E]

> HALA BETHR S controlled by the parent companies (continued)
(&)
B G EFEEARFER These transactions include, but are not limited to, the following:
AT HIEIE -
- 58 RIS FER - lending, provision of credits and guarantees, and deposit taking;
2
- SRITHEIZEZ TR - inter-bank balance taking and placing;
8%
- e BEE - R - sales, purchase, underwriting and redemption of bonds issued by other state
(5] FH At B A PR controlled entities;
REPTs (T2 E5
- RSN  DERK R AHRE - rendering of foreign exchange, remittance and investment related services;
&%W%l
SRS - provision of fiduciary activities; and
- E E/A}A$% ﬁQLI - purchase of utilities, transport, telecommunication and postage services.
B S BRTS -
R 4y B o B $R AT A The majority of transactions with BOC arise from money market activities. The
HYAZ 5 R Q"‘”’ﬁzﬁiiﬁ/é aggregate amounts of income and expenses of the Group arising from these

gy - 2017 FFEEEH
AT S o B SR AT A 48 I 25
ST EIR P EEATUA
Fe S BT B Ry b
3,429,000 7T ( 2016 4F :
i 17,713,000 7T) K
3 1,332,000 7T 2016
4% 9,034,000 7T )-

RERST B3 H Al £F
IR FA A F Y
RKAKBEPGFR -
2017 EEE AR H AR
LB AR
M2 R
2,488,000 7T ( 2016 4F :
i 11,260,000 7T) ©

PR L hiiheER A1 BLHA R
O E] R BEA E R 2
A FRARE AR -

AR IR SR T B
PR B AT SR T R TS
5&% BIFREGK ~ BRI

A:‘m Fﬁ EI/\

transactions with BOC for the period of 2017 before effective date were HK$3,429,000
(2016: HK$17,713,000) and HK$1,332,000 (2016: HK$9,034,000) respectively.

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the former parent
companies arise from deposits from customers. The aggregate amount of expenses of
the Group arising from these transactions for the period of 2017 before effective date
was HK$2,488,000 (2016: HK$11,260,000).

Save as disclosed above, transactions with other parent companies and the other
companies controlled by the parent companies are not considered material.

The Group enters into banking transactions with these entities in the normal course of
business which include loans, investment securities and money market transactions.
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42. FEERMEALIRS 42. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(&)

(b) FEFEANE (b) Key management personnel

FHEEREASEERL Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility
BEEREEE AN for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
KB E ~ FEER including directors and senior management. The Group accepts deposits from and
HEEEEER AL grants loans and credit facilities to key management personnel in the ordinary
BiEEEEEEEAN course of business. During both the current and prior periods, no material
8 - REEFEIEREK transaction was conducted with key management personnel of the Bank and its
TEHEZIEEEAR holding companies, as well as parties related to them.

TR e A FAR I BERK R
EERE - PRI EE
M AN A B
RIT R HIZER AT Z L
HiE g A\ B A R
ATHETERRS -

FEESEAEEEZ12H The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31 December
31 H IR i is detailed as follows:
T
2017 2016
AT HIETIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
HE - B EEIE T Salaries, other short-term employee
TEF FB AR TEF benefits and post-employment benefits 24,703 13,999
(c) KB AEINIEEER (c) Balances with subsidiaries
2017 # 12 H31 H - As at 31 December 2017, the aggregate sums of amounts due to subsidiaries of the
REBITHEHE EBBE Bank arising from transactions entered into during the normal course of business at
o 35— % P S (RO T commercial terms are HK$50,529,000(2016: HK$19,424,000).

R o EE I RE T I 18
H] RO M CE Ry B
50,529,000 7t ( 2016
H# ¢ B ¥ 19,424,000
T
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43.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

International claims

The below analysis is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA
return of international banking statistics. International claims are exposures to
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies based on the locations of the counterparties
after taking into account the transfer of risk, and represent the sum of cross-border claims
in all currencies and local claims in foreign currencies. For a claim guaranteed by a party
situated in a country different from the counterparty, the risk will be transferred to the
country of the guarantor. For a claim on an overseas branch of a bank whose head office is
located in another country, the risk will be transferred to the country where its head office is
located.

B S AT E A [F] R
JEU B SRS B HE DR Z T
FEHY - AR T R
3T Hm it S 2%
AT Z ST

A SR A1 731 [ ¢ B 6 3K
HEET R R % (5B
P fEMELREE 10%30L F >

Claims on individual countries or areas, after risk transfer, amounting to 10% or more of the
aggregate international claims of the Group are shown as follows:

AR
2017
FESITRNANERE
Non-bank private sector
FESRAT SRl R
T BT SRR AN &gt
Non-bank
Official financial Non-financial
Banks sector institutions private sector Total
AT AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
o R A 3, Mainland of China 9,777,000 86,000 984,000 4,311,000 15,158,000
s Hong Kong 1,209,000 - 833,000 11,542,000 13,584,000
2016
FEERITRA AT
Non-bank private sector
B JFoR(T e
$R1T BTt R [IVNG i “ast
Non-bank
Official financial Non-financial
Banks sector Institutions  private sector Total
AT AT AT AT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
R P Mainland of China 7,989,000 70,000 - 1,031,000 9,090,000
TGt Hong Kong 169,000 475,000 7,036,000 7,680,000

186



LI N § ]
: 4 AT
Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

MeEEiaE (&)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

44. JESRTTHYAHIEBSE&  44. Non-bank Mainland exposures

&
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TR o L 3 e 3 1) 2
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ters - Hits AR R EH
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HOTEN ~ #OTBUTRFARY
ter - HitE A E R EE
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The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the categories of non-bank
counterparties and the types of direct exposures with reference to the completion
instructions for the HKMA return of Mainland activities, which includes the Mainland
exposures extended by the Bank only.

2017

BEAR BEAE

SEF RAH I
e BREE  RRRE  WRRRE

ltems in On-balance Off-balance
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Central government, central

government-owned entities and their

subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 4,550,578 1,855 4,552,433
Local governments, local

government-owned entities and their

subsidiaries and joint ventures 2 4,057,713 706,241 4,763,954
PRC nationals residing in Mainland

or other entities incorporated in

Mainland and their subsidiaries and

joint ventures 3 7,386,894 529,247 7,916,141
Other entities of central government

not reported in item 1 above 4 414,527 3,468 417,995
Other entities of local governments not

reported in item 2 above 5 - - R

PRC nationals residing outside

Mainland or entities incorporated

outside Mainland where the credit is

granted for use in Mainland 6 3,331,521 77,787 3,409,308
Other counterparties where the

exposures are considered to be

non-bank Mainland exposures 7 490,126 - 490,126
Total 8 20,231,359 1,318,598 21,549,957
Total assets after provision 9 84,092,574

On-balance sheet exposures as
percentage of total assets 10 24.06%
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44. JESRTTRIPAIEBR AR

44. Non-bank Mainland exposures (continued)

® (&)
2016
HiEAA HEAMR
S RAHY LM
HpETEH et e EFEEE R ERE
ltems in On-balance  Off-balance
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R ~ BRI Central government, central
s ENEAEIRGE government-owned entities and their
3% subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 2,716,268 3,287 2,719,555
HoOAFBUR ~ #OFBURRFERY Local governments, local
s ENEAERGE government-owned entities and their
3% subsidiaries and joint ventures 2 2,731,461 173,192 2,904,653
FEFEEEANEREEM TR PRC nationals residing in Mainland
ML MEIRS ~ HHEA or other entities incorporated in
" NGERE Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 3 4,329,181 299,473 4,628,654
REFEAE FiltsE—IEF 2 Other entities of central government
A EC A AR not reported in item 1 above 4 270,794 3,100 273,894
REFELE_ilis 18 55 Other entities of local governments not
JF A LA iR reported in item 2 above 5 ; ; )
NS REFEESNE  PRC nationals residing outside
it agtsRs - EAREAR Mainland or entities incorporated
(B35 outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland 6 1,876,776 254,687 2,131,463
Hith 32 5 ¥ FmEEE&EHE  Other counterparties where the
AR B ESR T P S B exposures are considered to be
HKIE non-bank Mainland exposures 7 489,774 - 489,774
Hast Total 8 12,414,254 733,739 13,147,993
HIRCE M R HY & SR Total assets after provision 9 53,929,209
LEABENNER &Y On-balance sheet exposures as
(& LR E 4yt percentage of total assets 10 23.02%
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45, BRI Rk fEZS® 45, Statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity

R
(a) MHERIR

12H31H

BE

JEE TR i R SR AT e oAt <z it
PRISEI SRR

FESRAT R EA S B — =+
{18 5 NEHEAZ E B

FUE B EE LR ARRZ
EREE
PTESM TR
B HAHRTH
IFE
RE B E
FEUABFS a8 2 =R
&V
VI ~ Sehh Rt
TR A
HitzE

BN

=i
BRTT R ELAth e R 2 7R
SR

TAESM TR
A
BT B8 2 =1k
AT R A ff
ERI RIS
TEERIHA

A fELEE

BE

A

et th
TR MBS AN A (S

BINEART R

HARLEH

A EARREH

KHEEEH 2018 42 3 [ 27 HidE
ARG DU AR

B 1z
HE #HE

(a) Statement of financial position

As at 31 December

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions

Placements with banks and other financial
institutions maturing between one and
twelve months

Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments
Advances and other accounts
Investment in securities
Investment in subsidiaries
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits and balances from banks and
other financial institutions

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Other accounts and provisions

Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities

EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves

Capital and reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the Bank

Additional equity instruments

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

2017 2016
AWTIT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000

17,287,963 5,274,371

780,905 1,037,868
212,225 653,943
129,146 99,435
43,054,376 31,137,452
20,011,461 13,387,676
11,713 3,913
8,057 -
214,910 203,860
1,531,551 1,512,370
19,911 14,179
825,781 721,102
84,087,999 54,046,169
9,987,634 1,004,055
18,789 16,971
63,329,964 45,457,044
- 129,521
1,000,068 557,688
87,744 55,841
144,753 156,725
74,568,952 47,377,845
300,000 300,000
7,281,335 6,368,324
7,581,335 6,668,324
1,937,712 -
9,519,047 6,668,324
84,087,999 54,046,169

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2018 and signed on behalf of the

Board by:
LYU Yaoming ZHENG Wei
Director Director
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(continued)

(b) Statement of changes in equity

#2016 /£ 1 H 1 H At1 January 2016, as

FFE

previously reported

817 ELFIHT H)45 651 Adjustment to opening

Lk

balance of retained
earnings

#2016 4£1 H 1 H At1 January 2016, as

=Y restated
R RERF Profit for the year
Hofth 42 TR Other comprehensive
income:
R Premises
A S % Available-for-sale
securities
B Currency translation
difference
LU HEEH Total comprehensive
income
S A B R Transfer to retained
earnings
FRER Dividend

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

45. Statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity

12016 4 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2016

2017 421 H 1 HZ At 1 January 2017, as
FERTIHR previously reported
17 B FIHA )45 82 19 Adjustment to opening

LR

balance of retained
earnings

22017 41 A 1 HZ At 1 January 2017, as

g restated
iyl Profit for the year
HAtr S Other comprehensive
Income:
R Premises
At S Available-for-sale
securities
AR Currency translation
difference
ExAllenitl Total comprehensive
income
BTHINEA TR Issue of additional
equity instruments
R SRR Transfer to retained
earnings
FREE Dividend

#2017 412 5 31 [ At 31 December 2017

* PR BEEERE 39 SRR
SN > BB R
W oY B B R E R R

FEHURE?

39.

17— I (B AR AR B

FA TS o

=47
Reserves
ORI
[FEEEN  REFATE
[EZN =47 EEEHG SO REEE  AWEER HEEt BINEATLE

Reserve for

fair value

changes of

Premises available- Additional

Share revaluation for-sale Regulatory Translation Retained equity Total
capital reserve securities reserve* reserve _ earnings Total _ instruments equity
AT BN TT AT BETOT BT BT BT AT BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000
300,000 1,144,726 12,923 223,259 2,774 4,618,523 6,302,205 - 6,302,205
- - - - - (46,273) (46,273) - (46,273)
300,000 1,144,726 12,923 223,259 2,774 4,572,250 6,255,932 - 6,255,932
- - - - - 575,984 575,984 - 575,984
- (33,714) - - - - (33,714) - (33,714)
- - (55,084) - - - (55,084) - (55,084)
- - (1,314) - (73,480) - (74,794) - (74,794)
- (33,714) (56,398) - (73,480) 575,984 412,392 - 412,392
- - - 6,764 - (6,764) - - -
300,000 1,111,012 (43,475) 230,023 (70,706) 5,141,470 6,668,324 - 6,668,324
300,000 1,111,012 (43,475) 230,023 (70,706) 5,187,743 6,714,597 - 6,714,597
- - - - - (46,273) (46,273) - (46,273)
300,000 1,111,012 (43,475) 230,023 (70,706) 5,141,470 6,668,324 - 6,668,324
- - - - - 870,555 870,555 - 870,555
- (6,843) - - - - (6,843) - (6,843)
- - (39,668) - - - (39,668) - (39,668)
- - (1,742) - 90,709 - 88,967 - 88,967
- (6,843) (41,410) - 90,709 870,555 913,011 - 913,011
- - - - - - - 1,937,712 1,937,712
- - - 95,368 - (95,368) - - -
300,000 1,104,169 (84,885) 325,391 20,003 5,916,657 7,581,335 1,937,712 9,519,047
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* In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking risks, including future losses or
other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised under Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS”)
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49.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

46. Subsidiaries of the Bank

The particulars of all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the Bank as at 31 December 2017

are as follows:

HYEESTER YR
B EERllipg—¢ Stk -d=E L] TR Rt TR
Place and date of Issued Interest
Name incorporation/operation share capital held Principal activities
ERIRT (LA ARAE & fyilicall 100% ARER R S P e
19814£11H3H 100,000 #Jt
Chiyu Banking Corporation Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Nominee service and
(Nominees) Limited 3 November 1981 HK$100,000 investment holding
HEEFEARAF & fyilicall 100% P I SR
1961412 11H 2,800,000 7T THET
Seng Sun Development Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Investment holding and
Company, Limited 11 December 1961 HK$2,800,000 leasing of properties
to group companies
oA IRATE & Eepiiliah) 100%* g et
200145 H4H 2 Byt
Grace Charter Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100%* Investment holding
4 May 2001 HK$2
ERBEEERARAE wE Lopiliean) 100% ENG IR = o
20173 H 13 H 1,000,000 #7T
Chiyu International Capital Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Core Business not yet
Limited 13 March 2017 HK$1,000,000 commenced
EREEEEARAE wE Lopiliah) 100% REAGAEE T B
2017 £ 3 H 13 H 6,800,000 #7T
Chiyu Asset Management Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Core Business not yet

Limited

*AIRITRI R ARy

2017412 H31H A&
T2 HBERAF BER
BUR et - BN EIN T AT
THERIT - HAR SR E] By
EFEIERTT > A EE—
BT o g A B I B 5 1

AT HY TR SR o

Pty 2

HH RO ER A

BREENZHRTA -

MBwRLAE

AR, 2018 4 3 H
27 H&FER G R

Seffi -

47.

48.

49.

13 March 2017

HK$6,800,000

* Shares held indirectly by the Bank

Immediate and ultimate holding company

At 31 December 2017, the immediate holding company of the Bank is Chiyu International
Financial Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong and its ultimate holding
company is Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd., a Chinese commercial bank incorporated in

the PRC.

Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the financial statement

presentation adopted in the current year.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors

on 27 March 2018.
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B4R Deputy General Manager
(e Chan Yiu Fai

BRI Fung Chi Lap

BhERgE&E Assistant General Manager
TRFL Chang Yu Man

PRETH Lam Sung Pan

=IRZ Wong Siu Man

B E Yip Man Kai

192



CEXEX:

Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

THTHEL

Branch Network

AT
BRANCH (Br.)

EHBE

HONG KONG ISLAND

P T
Central Br.

EAatT
North Point Br.

BT
Wanchai Br.

FET
Sheung Wan Br.

PEEE ST
Western Br.

SR
Quarry Bay Br.

BBFIT
Aberdeen Br.

JURE
KOWLOON

LLH 1T
Hung Hom Br.

7

Kwun Tong Br.

FKI T
Sham Shui Po Br.

HroRrETT
San Po Kong Br.

SHRRHE ST
Yau Ma Tei Br.

HLEIT

Castle Peak Road Br.

SEBST
Kowloon Bay Br.

TINE ST

Tokwawan Br.

BELST
Tsz Wan Shan Br.

ikt
ADDRESS

AP ER{ERE T 78 5%
No. 78 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, H.K.

T dL L2 48 390-394 I
G/F, No. 390-394 King's Road, North Paint, H.K.

RS FEESTE 323-331 5 T C A1 D &f
Shop C & D, G/F, No. 323-331 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, H.K.

T LIREEAE T 315-319 ST 3 G
Shop 3, G/F, No. 315-319 Queen’s Road Central, Sheung Wan, H.K.

EIETEIE B G AT 443-445 SF N 13 554

Shop 13, G/F, No. 443-445 Queen's Road West, Western District, H.K.

M FEUR YL 967-967A SR T
G/F, No. 967-967A King's Road, Quarry Bay, H.K.

FHEE T 138-140 5T
G/F, No. 138-140 Aberdeen Main Road, Aberdeen, H.K.

JURESTRERA A% 23-25 S 1~
G/F, No. 23-25 Gillies Avenue South, Hung Hom, Kin.

JUHEBUEE 398-402 S T A Hifi
Unit A, G/F, No. 398-402 Kwun Tong Road, Kin.

JUREF KIS 7 A% Fg i 235-237 SfH T
G/F, No. 235-237 Laichikok Road, Sham Shui Po, Kin.

JUHERT e TR 1E 61-63 St T
G/F, No. 61-63 Hong Keung Street, San Po Kong, Kin.

SUEE IR EyEE 117-119 SRt T
G/F, No. 117-119 Shanghai Street, Yaumatei, Kin.

JUHEA/KIS H I 226-228 ST
GIF, No. 226-228 Castle Peak Road, Sham Shui Po, Kin.

FURES LB SR R EE it T 10 & 10A 9

Shop 10 & 10A, G/F, Kai Lok House, Kai Yip Estate, Kowloon Bay, Kin.

SUBE B 78-80W 9EHE T 11-13 954H
Shop 11-13, G/F, No. 78-80W To Kwa Wan Road, Kin.

FUBEREE L0 7 48 TO3A 5k
Shop 703A, 7/F, Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre, Kin.
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B
TELEPHONE

(852) 3556 9730

(852) 3556 9731

(852) 3556 9734

(852) 3556 9737

(852) 3556 9739

(852) 2811 3131

(852) 3556 9753

(852) 3556 9732

(852) 3556 9733

(852) 3556 9735

(852) 3556 9736

(852) 3556 9738

(852) 3556 9740

(852) 3556 9741

(852) 3556 9742

(852) 3556 9751
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Branch Network (continued)

AT
BRANCH (Br.)

o
NEW TERRITORIES

BT

Tuen Mun Br.

ZEBAR T
Kwai Hing Estate Br.

RIFARF T
Tai Po Tai Wo Estate Br.

REWACE 1T
Belvedere Garden Br.

EBNT
Tsuen Wan Br.

YYHBERSET
Shatin Sui Wo Court Br.

BT
Ma On Shan Br.

T
Sheung Tak Estate Br.

T,
MAINLAND OF CHINA

P53 1T
Xiamen Br.

EEIAT
Xiamen Jimei Sub-Br.

B LS AT
Guanyinshan Sub-Br.

EINST
Fuzhou Br.

ikt
ADDRESS

592 ESE HAAN.D.S N & 1 ## N-125 4
Shop N-125, Level 1, Zone N, H.A.N.D.S, On Ting Estate, Tuen Mun, N.T.

Hr SR EA BRI T 1 SEEl
Shop 1, G/F, Hing Yat House, Kwai Hing Estate, Kwai Chung, N.T.

Fr SRR ACFI A T 112-114 546
Shop 112-114, G/F, On Wo House, Tai Wo Estate, Tai Po, N.T.

BRI E =T 5A SR
Shop 5A, G/F, Belvedere Square, Belvedere Garden Phase 3, Tsuen Wan,
N.T.

B FLEE ) DUE 3 131-135 ST
G/F, No. 131-135 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, N.T.

WS HBECRSGREOR 5 1 A8 F7 ki
Shop F7, 1/F, Commercial Centre, Sui Wo Court, Shatin, N.T.

UG HUDETCE e L 3 1 313 Uil

Shop 313, Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza, Bayshore Towers, Ma On Shan, N.T.

SRR LU S e R 2 1 238 i
Shop 238, 2/F, Sheung Tak Shopping Centre, Sheung Tak Estate,
Tseung Kwan O, N.T.

TEtEE AT E AR 861 5t 1 # 111-113 BT
Unit 111-113, 1/F, No. 861 Xiahe Road, Xiamen, Fujian Province, China

EtEE A ET AR A ILE 68-71 5
No.68-71 Lehai Bei Li, Jimei District, Xiamen, Fujian Province, China

oh B e P T RS AR G 170 5% 9 512 17 Jg 1702E K 1703A =

B
TELEPHONE

(852) 3988 9508

(852) 3556 9745

(852) 3556 9746

(852) 3556 9747

(852) 3988 9518

(852) 3556 9749

(852) 3556 9750

(852) 3556 9752

(86-592) 585 7690

(86-592) 619 3300

Unit 1702E & 1703A, No. 9 Building, No. 170 Tapu East Road, Siming District, (86-592) 599 0520

Xiamen, Fujian Province, China
HRE R A TR T TS 210 SREIMCRIE 1 4%

1/F, International Building, No. 210 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian Province,
China
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